
LOS ANGELES BOARD OF                                                 
HARBOR COMMISSIONERS  
Harbor Administration Building 
425 S. Palos Verdes Street 
San Pedro, California 90731 

  

 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 
 

Board of Harbor Commissioners 
Lucille Roybal-Allard, President  

Diane L. Middleton, Vice President 
Michael Muñoz  

Edward R. Renwick 
I. Lee Williams 

 
 

BOARD MEETINGS - The Board’s Regular Meetings are held at 9:00 A.M. at the Harbor 
Administration Building Boardroom as scheduled on the Port’s website at 
www.portoflosangeles.org. A quorum of three of five Commissioners is required to transact 
business and three Aye votes are required to carry a motion. 
 

OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE PUBLIC TO ATTEND THE MEETING  
AND PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

 Members of the public may attend the Board meeting in person at the Harbor Administration 
Building located at 425 S. Palos Verdes St., San Pedro, CA  90731. 

 The Board meeting will also be broadcast live at 
https://www.portoflosangeles.org/commission/agenda-archive-and-videos. Live Board 
meetings can also be heard at: (213) 621-CITY (Metro), (818) 904-9450 (Valley), (310) 471-
CITY (Westside) and (310) 547-CITY (San Pedro Area). 

 In-Person Comments: Live, oral public comments will be taken in person, only, and not via 

teleconference. Members of the public will be given an opportunity to address the Board on 

(1) any item on the agendas prior to the Board’s consideration of that item, including the 

consent and closed session agenda; and (2) subjects within the subject matter jurisdiction of 

the Board (general public comment).  Members of the public who wish to speak should 

complete a speaker card indicating the agenda item number on which they will comment, or 

designate “general public comment.” Each speaker is allowed to speak up to 3 minutes per 

agenda item. The Presiding Officer shall, however, exercise discretion to determine if such 

period of time should be reduced or extended based upon, but not limited to, such factors as 

the length of the agenda or substance of the agenda items, the quantity of public comment 

speaker cards submitted, the need for the Board to conclude its business as expeditiously 

as is practicable and/or the Board is at risk of losing a quorum, among other factors. Members 

of the public who do not complete their comments within the time allotted, can submit their 

full comments in writing for inclusion in the record. Upon request, non-English speakers will 

be granted additional speaking time for translation assistance.  

 

1/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 2 of 16 

 

 

 Written comments or materials may be submitted by emailing commissioners@portla.org or 
brought to the meeting. If you request to distribute documents to the full Commission, please 
present the Board Secretary with twelve (12) copies.  Otherwise, your materials will simply 
be added to the official meeting record. All written comments or materials submitted for this 
meeting will be provided to the Commissioners and entered into the official meeting minutes. 
Please submit your written comments prior to 3:00 pm on the day before the scheduled 
meeting. Requests to distribute literature to the general public attendees of the meeting shall 
be placed on a literature table outside the Boardroom during and until 30 minutes after the 
Board meeting.  

 Para sumetir su comentario en español, se puede enviar a nuestro correo electrónico: 
commissioners@portla.org, un día antes de la junta, o puede llamar a nuestra Oficina 
de Comisionados al (310) 732-3444 para grabar su mensaje. Alguien de nuestra oficina 
estará disponible para traducir su comentario en inglés y entregarlo a los 
Comisionados del Puerto. 

  
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

 

 Commission actions are not final until the expiration of the next five meeting days of the City 
Council except actions subject to appeal or review by the Council pursuant to the Charter, 
ordinance or other applicable law.  If the Council asserts jurisdiction during this five meeting-
day period, the Council has 21 calendar days thereafter in which to act on the matter.  

 Please note that this agenda is subject to revision in accordance with the Brown Act.  In the 
event the agenda is revised prior to the meeting, Port staff will post the revised agenda on 
the Port’s web site (www.portoflosangeles.org/).  Updated agendas will also be available at 
the meeting. 

 Notice to Paid Representatives: If you are compensated to monitor, attend, or speak at this 
meeting, City law may require you to register as a lobbyist and report your activity. See Los 
Angeles Municipal Code 48.01 et seq. More information is available at 
ethics.lacity.org/lobbying. For assistance, please contact the Ethics Commission at (213) 
978-1960 or ethics.commission@lacity.org. 

 As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Los 
Angeles does not discriminate on the basis of disability and, upon request, will provide 
reasonable accommodation to ensure equal access to its programs, services, and activities.  
Sign language interpreters, assistive listening devices, and translation services may be 
provided.  To ensure availability, 72-hour advance notice is required.  

 If you have any questions regarding meeting procedures, please contact the Harbor 
Commission Office prior to the meeting at (310) 732-3444. 

 

 

 

2/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 3 of 16 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

OPEN SESSION 

 

A. Roll Call 

 

 

B. Approval of the Minutes 

 

 None 

 

C. Executive Director Remarks 

 

 

D. Comment from the Public on Non-Agenda Items 

 

 

E. Report from the Neighborhood Council Representatives – An opportunity for 
 Neighborhood Council representatives to provide remarks on Neighborhood Council 
 Resolutions or Community Impact Statements filed with the City Clerk which relate to any 
 agenda item listed or being considered on this agenda for the Board of Harbor 
 Commissioners. 
 
 
F. Reports of the Commissioners 

 

 

 

G. Board Committee Reports 

  

None 

 

 

H. Presentation 

 

None 

 

I. Level I Coastal Development Permit 

  

 None 

  

 

 

3/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 4 of 16 

 

 

J.   Special Order of the Day - Level II Non-Appealable Coastal Development Permit  
 

Public Hearing 
 

1(a)  ISSUANCE OF A NON-APPEALABLE LEVEL II COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
(NO. 23-03) TO APM TERMINALS PACIFIC LTD. FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF 
THREE CONTAINER CRANES AT PIER 400 

 
 
Pursuant to the California Coastal Act of 1976, as amended and the Port of Los Angeles’ certified 
Port Master Plan, notice is hereby given to all interested persons and organizations that the Los 
Angeles Board of Harbor Commissioners will hold a public hearing to receive public comments 
prior to considering the following for a Coastal Development Permit.  
 
 

Planning & Strategy 
 
1(b)  RESOLUTION NO.____________ - ISSUANCE OF A NON-APPEALABLE LEVEL II 

COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT (NO. 23-03) TO APM TERMINALS PACIFIC LTD. 
FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF THREE CONTAINER CRANES AT PIER 400 

 
Transmittal 1 
Transmittal 2 
Transmittal 3 
 
 
Summary: Staff requests approval to issue a Level II non-appealable Coastal Development 
Permit (CDP) No. 23-03 to APM Terminals Pacific Ltd. (APMT) for the replacement of three ship 
to shore (STS) container cranes at Pier 400 to support ongoing terminal operations. APMT will 
be financially responsible for the payment of expenses related to the removal of existing cranes 
and installation of new cranes. 
  
Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) hold a public hearing for the proposed Coastal 

Development Permit No. 23-03, a non-appealable Level II permit; (2) find that the Director of 

Environmental Management has determined that the proposed action is categorically exempt 

from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article III, Class 

2(2) of the Los Angeles City CEQA Guidelines; (3) find that the proposed project conforms with 

the Port of Los Angeles certified Port Master Plan (PMP); (4) upon closure of the public hearing, 

resolve to approve the issuance of CDP No. 23-03, consistent with the project description listed 

on Application for Port Permit No. 230208-021, and direct the Director of Planning and Strategy 

to execute and issue said permit on behalf of and as the designee of the Executive Director; and 

(5) adopt Resolution No.____________. 

 

4/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 5 of 16 

 

 

K. Board Reports of the Executive Director 

 

Consent Items (2 – 7)  

 

Office of the City Attorney 

 

2. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEGAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT NO. 21-9809 WITH THOMPSON COBURN LLP FOR FEDERAL CLEAN 

AIR ACT MATTERS 

 

Transmittal 1 

Transmittal 2 

 

Summary: The Office of the City Attorney (Office) requests approval of the First Amendment to 

Agreement No. 21-9809 (First Amendment) between the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department 

(Harbor Department) and Thompson Coburn LLP (Thompson). The proposed First Amendment 

will increase the Agreement authority by $100,000, from $225,000 currently, to $325,000 as 

proposed. The three-year Agreement term will remain unchanged; the Agreement will expire on 

June 25, 2024.   Under Agreement No. 21-9809, Thompson performs legal services to assist the 

Office in its advice to the Harbor Department on Federal Clean Air Act (FCAA) legal matters. 

The Harbor Department will continue to be financially responsible for payment of expenses 

incurred under the Agreement. 

 

Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(f) of the Los Angeles City 

CEQA Guidelines; (2) find in accordance to Charter Section 1022 that the scope of work of the 

proposed Agreement can be more economically and feasibly provided by an independent 

contractor than by City employees; (3) approve the First Amendment to Legal Services 

Agreement No. 21-9809 with Thompson Coburn LLP, to increase the compensation authority by 

$100,000 for a maximum compensation authority of $325,000; (4) authorize the Executive 

Director and Board Secretary to execute and attest to the First Amendment; and (5) adopt 

Resolution No.____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 6 of 16 

 

Environmental Management 

 

3. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. 12-

3049 BETWEEN THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES HARBOR DEPARTMENT AND THE 

CITY OF LONG BEACH HARBOR DEPARTMENT TO HOST AND MAINTAIN THE 

PORTS’ DRAYAGE TRUCK REGISTRY 

 

Transmittal 1 

 

Summary: Staff requests approval of the proposed Fourth Amendment to Agreement No. 12-

3049 (Agreement) between the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department (Harbor Department) 

and the City of Long Beach Harbor Department (LBHD) (collectively Ports) to host and maintain 

the Ports’ Drayage Truck Registry (PDTR). The proposed Fourth Amendment will extend the 

term of the Agreement three years to December 31, 2026.  Compensation authority will remain 

at $450,190, and no additional funding will be added to the Agreement. The Harbor Department 

will continue to be financially responsible for the payment of expenses incurred under this 

Agreement. 

 

Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(f) of the Los Angeles City 

CEQA Guidelines; (2) accept and approve the proposed Fourth Amendment to extend the term 

of Agreement No. 12-3049 between the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department and the City of 

Long Beach Harbor Department through December 31, 2026; (3) authorize the Executive 

Director to execute and the Board Secretary to attest to said Amendment for and on behalf of 

the Board; and (4) adopt Resolution No.___________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 7 of 16 

 

 

Waterfront & Commercial Real Estate 

 

4. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVE REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-11 

WITH LOS ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE  

 

Transmittal 1 

Transmittal 2 

 

Summary: Staff requests approval of Revocable License No. 2023-11 (License) with the Los 

Angeles Maritime Institute (LAMI) to allow temporary use of Berth 85 for the berthing and docking 

of brigantine vessels and to load and unload passengers on a non-exclusive first come basis as 

available.  Berth 85 consists of 65,620 square feet of water and dock space. The proposed 

License is subject to cancellation by the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department (Harbor 

Department) or licensee upon 90 days’ written notice. LAMI, a California non-profit corporation, 

operates the TopSail Youth Program for middle and high school students, including at-risk youth, 

on maritime education and hands-on tall ships sailing within the Port of Los Angeles (Port).  The 

program has been in operation at the Port since 1992. Curriculum focuses on the Port, the 

maritime industry, communication, teamwork, and instills responsibility, leadership, and self-

esteem by providing character-building experiences. Currently under Revocable Permit 2017-

006, LAMI is using Downtown Harbor Cut Slips 1 and 2 for passenger sailing. Given the 

significant benefits received by the Harbor Department from the services provided by LAMI, staff 

requests waiving the monthly compensation.  LAMI will be financially responsible for all other 

costs, including but not limited to utilities, equipment, labor, Port Police security, site repair and 

maintenance. 

 

Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article III, Class 1 (18)(b) of the Los Angeles 

City CEQA Guidelines; (2) find that the proposed action is in the best interest of the City of Los 

Angeles Harbor Department based on the value of services delivered to the community, and the 

compensation that would be due and owed imposes an understandable hardship; (3) approve 

Revocable License No. 2023-11 with Los Angeles Maritime Institute; (4) authorize the Executive 

Director to execute and the Board Secretary to attest to Revocable License No. 2023-11; and 

(5) adopt Resolution No.____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 8 of 16 

 

Waterfront & Commercial Real Estate 

 

5. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVE REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-12 

WITH LOS ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE 

 

Transmittal 1 

Transmittal 2 

 

Summary: Staff requests approval of Revocable License No. 2023-12 (License) with the Los 

Angeles Maritime Institute (LAMI) to allow temporary use of Berth 73 for the berthing and docking 

of brigantine vessels as well as small-scale maintenance activities for the brigantine vessels on 

a non-exclusive basis.  Berth 73 consists of 36,570 square feet of water and dock space. The 

proposed License is subject to cancellation by the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department 

(Harbor Department) or licensee upon 90 days’ written notice. This License is expected to be 

terminated in the next 12-18 months upon delivery of the property to the San Pedro Public Market 

otherwise known as West Harbor. LAMI, a California non-profit corporation, operates the TopSail 

Youth Program for middle and high school students, including at-risk youth, on maritime 

education and hands-on tall ships sailing within the Port of Los Angeles (Port).  The program 

has been in operation at the Port since 1992. Curriculum focuses on the Port, the maritime 

industry, communication, teamwork, and instills responsibility, leadership, and self-esteem by 

providing character-building experiences.  Currently under Revocable Permit 2017-006, LAMI is 

using Downtown Harbor Cut Slips 1 and 2 for passenger sailing. Given the significant benefits 

received by the Harbor Department from the services provided by LAMI, staff requests waiving 

the monthly compensation.  LAMI will be financially responsible for all other costs, including but 

not limited to utilities, equipment, labor, security, site repair and maintenance. 

 

Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article III, Class 1 (18)(b) of the Los Angeles 

City CEQA Guidelines; (2) find that the proposed action is in the best interest of the City of Los 

Angeles Harbor Department based on the value of services delivered to the, and the 

compensation that would be due and owed imposes an understandable hardship; (3) approve 

proposed Revocable License No. 2023-12 with Los Angeles Maritime Institute; (4) authorize the 

Executive Director to execute and the Board Secretary to attest to Revocable License No. 2023-

12; and (5) adopt Resolution No.____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 9 of 16 

 

Waterfront & Commercial Real Estate 

 

6. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL OF REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 

2023-10 WITH HARBOR BREEZE CORPORATION    

 

Transmittal 1 

Transmittal 2 

 

Summary: Staff requests approval of the proposed Revocable License No. 2023-10 (License) 

with Harbor Breeze Corp. (Harbor Breeze) to use and occupy 65,620 square feet of property at 

Berth 85 in San Pedro.  Harbor Breeze will use the site for commercial charter vessel passenger 

operations, which includes tours on behalf of the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department (Harbor 

Department) and those not sponsored by the Harbor Department.  Premises shall be used on a 

non-exclusive basis for the berthing and docking of prescheduled tour group s.  The proposed 

License is subject to cancellation by the Harbor Department or Harbor Breeze upon 90 days’ 

written notice.  Under the proposed License, Harbor Breeze will be required to pay compensation 

to the Harbor Department based on seven percent of gross receipts for all activities except dinner 

cruises, which will be charged five percent.   

 

Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article III, Class 1 (18)(b) of the Los Angeles 

City CEQA Guide; (2) approve proposed Revocable License No. 2023-10 with Harbor Breeze 

Corp.; (3) authorize the Executive Director to execute and the Board Secretary to attest to the 

Revocable License No. 2023-10; and (4) adopt Resolution No.____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 10 of 16 

 

 

Waterfront & Commercial Real Estate 

 

7. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL OF REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 

2023-09 WITH ODYSSEY YACHT CHARTER, LLC 

 

Transmittal 1 

Transmittal 2 

 

Summary: Staff requests approval of the proposed Revocable License No. 2023-09 (License) 

with Odyssey Yacht Charter LLC (Odyssey Yacht) to use and occupy 4,440 square feet of 

property at Berth 84 in San Pedro for commercial charter vessel passenger operations.  

Premises shall be used on a non-exclusive basis and serve prescheduled tour groups.  The 

proposed License is subject to cancellation by the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department 

(Harbor Department) or Odyssey Yacht upon 90 days’ written notice. Under the proposed 

License, compensation would be equivalent to seven percent of gross receipts. 

 

Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article III, Class 1 (18)(b) of the Los Angeles 

City CEQA Guidelines; (2) approve Revocable License No. 2023-09 with Odyssey Yacht Charter 

LLC; (3) authorize the Executive Director to execute and the Board Secretary to attest to  

Revocable License No. 2023-09; and (4) adopt Resolution No.___________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 11 of 16 

 

 

Regular Items (8 – 12) 

 

Community Relations 

8.  RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - COMMUNITY INVESTMENT GRANTS FOR 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. DBA EXP AND LOS 

ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE 

 

Transmittal 1 

Transmittal 2 

Transmittal 3 

Transmittal 4 

 

Summary: Staff requests approval of the proposed agreements between the City of Los Angeles 

Harbor Department (Harbor Department) and International Trade Education Programs, Inc. dba 

EXP (EXP) and Los Angeles Maritime Institute (LAMI) for Community Investment Grants 

supporting their educational programs (Agreements). EXP and LAMI were selected through the 

Community Investment Grant Program process.  The proposed Agreements are for two years in 

the amounts of: 1) EXP - $346,150 per year for a total of $692,300; 2) LAMI - $290,000 per year 

for a total of $580,000. The combined two-year total for both Agreements is $1,272,300. The 

Harbor Department is financially responsible for funding the proposed Agreements. 

 

Recommendation: Board Resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(f) of the Los Angeles City 

CEQA Guidelines; (2) find that the proposed Community Investment Grants are consistent with 

the criteria of the Board-approved Sponsorship/Hosting Policy (March 2010); (3) approve the 

proposed Agreement with EXP for a term of two years and a total not-to-exceed amount of 

$692,300; (4) approve the proposed Agreement with LAMI for a term of two years and a total 

not-to-exceed amount of $580,000; (5) authorize the Executive Director and the Board Secretary 

to execute and attest to the proposed Agreements with EXP and LAMI; and (6) adopt Resolution 

No.____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 12 of 16 

 

Construction 

 

9. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - AWARD AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION 

CONTRACT. CONTRACTOR: SKANSKA USA CIVIL WEST CALIFORNIA DISTRICT 

INC. STATE ROUTE 47(SR-47)/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE AND FRONT 

STREET/HARBOR BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION. 

SPECIFICATION NO. 2816 

 

Transmittal 1 

Transmittal 2 

Transmittal 3 

 

Summary: Staff requests approval of an award of a contract (Contract) to Skanska USA Civil 

West California District Inc. (Skanska) to construct the State Route 47 (SR-47)/Vincent Thomas 

Bridge (VTB) and Front Street/Harbor Boulevard Interchange Reconfiguration project (Project).  

The Project will modify the existing on and off ramps of the SR-47/VTB and Front Street/Harbor 

Boulevard interchange to improve safety, access, and efficient operation in and around the Port 

of Los Angeles complex.  The lowest responsive and responsible bidder is Skanska, located at 

1995 Agua Mansa Road, Riverside California.  The Contract amount of $90,988,550, plus a 10% 

contingency, is $100,087,405, and the Contract duration is 990 calendar days.  Certain 

expenses up to $65,783,000, incurred under the proposed Contract are eligible for 

reimbursement under the following grants: the California Senate Bill 1 Trade Corridor 

Enhancement Program; the United States Department of Transportation Maritime 

Administration; and the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transit Authority.  Payment of 

expenses incurred under the proposed Contract will be the financial responsibility of the City of 

Los Angeles Harbor Department (Harbor Department). 

 

Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action has been previously evaluated pursuant to the 

requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(i) of 

the Los Angeles City CEQA Guidelines; (2) find that, in accordance with the Los Angeles City 

Charter Section 1022, work under the subject Contract can be performed more feasibly by an 

independent contractor rather than by City employees; (3) award and approve Specification No. 

2816 for Item Nos. 1 through 55 of the Bid Proposal Line Items to Skanska for a total amount of 

$100,087,405 including a 10% contingency, and a total term of 990 calendar days; (4) authorize 

the Executive Director to execute and the Board Secretary to attest to this Contract for and on 

behalf of the Board; (5) delegate and authorize the Executive Director to adjust the final bid 

quantities and accept the construction Contract upon its completion in accordance with City 

Charter Section 655 (g); and (6) adopt Resolution No.____________. 

 

 

 

12/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 13 of 16 

 

 

Environmental Management 

 

10. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL OF A COST SHARE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES HARBOR DEPARTMENT AND THE PORT 

OF LONG BEACH TO FUND A TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT 

WITH PACIFIC HARBOR LINE, INC. 

 

Transmittal 1 

Transmittal 2 

 

Summary: Staff requests approval of the proposed Cost Share Agreement between the City of 

Los Angeles Harbor Department (Harbor Department) and the Port of Long Beach (POLB) to 

fund a Clean Air Action Plan (CAAP) Technology Advancement Program (TAP) project with 

Pacific Harbor Line, Inc. (PHL) to design and demonstrate battery-electric locomotive (BEL) 

charging infrastructure for the “EMDX 50” zero-emission (ZE) switcher locomotive Project 

(Project). The total cost of the Project is $4,751,904. TAP funding in the amount of $845,390 will 

be split equally between the Harbor Department and POLB.  The PHL project team will pay the 

remaining amount. As lead agency, POLB has already entered into an agreement with PHL to 

implement the Project. If the proposed Agreement is approved, then the Harbor Department 

would be financially responsible for $422,695, or 50% of the TAP cost share of the Project. 

 

Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action is administratively and categorically exempt from the 

requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(f) 

and Article III Class 6 of the Los Angeles City CEQA Guidelines; (2) approve the Cost Share 

Agreement between the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department and the Port of Long Beach for 

the reimbursement of $422,695; (3) authorize the Executive Director to execute and Board 

Secretary to attest to said agreement for and on behalf of the Board of Harbor Commissioners; 

and (4) adopt Resolution No.____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 14 of 16 

 

Executive Office 

 

11. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 

OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE BY THE 

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY OF ONE OR MORE SERIES 

OF ITS ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY SENIOR LIEN 

REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS AND/OR SUBORDINATE LIEN REVENUE 

REFUNDING BONDS AND AUTHORIZING SUCH OTHER ACTIONS AS ARE 

NECESSARY TO ASSIST THE AUTHORITY IN THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH 

REFUNDING BONDS AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO 

 

Transmittal 1 

Transmittal 2 

Transmittal 3 

Transmittal 4 

 

Summary: Staff requests approval of certain documents related to the proposed issuance of the 

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (ACTA) Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds 

and/or Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds (2024 ACTA Bonds) including certain 

disclosures required from the Port of Los Angeles. Given the Port of Los Angeles’ role as a 

partial guarantor of ACTA’s debt along with the Port of Long Beach, it must provide certain 

financial and operating disclosures to the bond market for any ACTA bond transaction both at 

the time of the initial offering and for as long as the bonds remain outstanding.  ACTA is 

projecting that future revenues will be insufficient to cover debt service payments starting in 

Fiscal Year (FY) 2026 through 2037, and that shortfall advance payments would be required 

from the two ports to help make up the difference. The proposed transaction is expected to 

reduce the amount of debt service during this time period, thereby reducing the need for shortfall 

advance payments from the ports. Bond market conditions at the time of the transaction will 

determine the level of debt service savings that will be achieved. 

 

Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(f) of the Los Angeles City 

CEQA Guidelines; (2) authorize the execution and delivery of the Continuing Disclosure 

Certificate, the Letter of Representation, and other related documents and certificates in 

connection with the issuance and sale of the 2024 ACTA Bonds; (3) authorize the City of Los 

Angeles Harbor Department’s Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, each of them acting 

individually, to comply with the terms and intent of the Board’s Resolution, to assist ACTA in the 

issuance of the 2024 ACTA Bonds, to execute and deliver any documents or instruments related 

thereto and to take such other actions as may be deemed necessary or desirable in order to 

carry out the purposes of the Board’s Resolution subject to: (i) approval of the issuance of the 

2024 ACTA Bonds by ACTA; and (ii) the conditions set forth in the Resolution; (4) approve 

14/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 15 of 16 

 

certain disclosures relating to the finances and operations of the Harbor Department to be 

contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement for the 2024 ACTA 

Bonds including the Audited Financial Statements of the Harbor Department, with such changes 

thereto as the Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer may require or approve; and (5) 

adopt Resolution No.____________. 

 

 

 

Engineering 

 

12. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL AGREEMENT WITH AECOM 

TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. FOR THE ENGINEERING AND ARCHITECTURAL 

SERVICES FOR THE PORT OF LOS ANGELES AND PORT OF LONG BEACH GOODS 

MOVEMENT TRAINING FACILITY 

 

Transmittal 1 

Transmittal 2 

 

Summary: Staff requests approval of an agreement (Agreement) with AECOM Technical 

Services, Inc. (AECOM), to provide professional engineering and architectural services for the 

Port of Los Angeles and Port of Long Beach Goods Movement Training Facility (Training Facility) 

project. The Agreement has a contract term of three years, with a not-to-exceed amount of 

$9,777,141. The Harbor Department will be financially responsible for the payment of expenses 

incurred under the proposed Agreement. 

 

Recommendation: Board resolve to (1) find that the Director of Environmental Management has 

determined that the proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in accordance with Article II Section 2(f) of the Los 

Angeles City CEQA Guidelines; (2) approve a personal services agreement with AECOM, 

Technical Services, Inc. for engineering and architectural services for the Training Facility project 

with a not-to-exceed amount of $9,777,141 and a term of three years; (3) authorize the Executive 

Director to execute and the Board Secretary to attest to said Agreement for and on behalf of the 

Board; and (4) adopt Resolution No.____________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15/486



SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

 

Page 16 of 16 

 

L. Closed Session 

 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO  
 LITIGATION 

(Subdivision (d)(2) of Government Code Section 54956.9) 
 
 Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of 

Section 54956.9: (one case) 
 
 
2. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
 (Government Code Section 54956.8) 
 

Provide instructions to its real estate negotiators with respect to proposed 
Permits 958 and 959 with Pasha Stevedoring & Terminals LP 

 
Property:   Berths 174-181, Wilmington 

   Berths 206-209, Terminal Island 
 
 City Negotiator:  Marisa Katnich 
 
 Tenant Negotiator:  Jay Bowden 

 
Negotiating Parties:  City and Pasha Stevedoring & Terminals LP 

 
 Under Negotiation:   Price and Terms 

 

 

 

 

M. Adjournment 

16/486



Separator Page

1(b)  RESOLUTION NO.____________ - ISSUANCE OF A 

NON-APPEALABLE LEVEL II COASTAL DEVELOPMENT 

PERMIT (NO. 23-03) TO APM TERMINALS PACIFIC LTD. 

FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF THREE CONTAINER 

CRANES AT PIER 400

17/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 21, 2023 

FROM: PLANNING AND STRATEGY 

SUBJECT:  RESOLUTION NO. _____________ – ISSUANCE OF A NON-
APPEALABLE LEVEL II COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT (NO. 23-
03) TO APM TERMINALS PACIFIC LTD. FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF
THREE CONTAINER CRANES AT PIER 400

SUMMARY: 

Staff requests approval to issue a Level II non-appealable Coastal Development Permit 
(CDP) No. 23-03 to APM Terminals Pacific Ltd. (APMT) for the replacement of three ship 
to shore (STS) container cranes at Pier 400 to support ongoing terminal operations. 
APMT will be financially responsible for the payment of expenses related to the removal 
of existing cranes and installation of new cranes. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Harbor Commissioners (Board): 

1. Hold a public hearing for the proposed Coastal Development Permit No. 23-03, a non-
appealable Level II permit;

2. Find that the Director of Environmental Management has determined that the
proposed action is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article III, Class 2(2) of the Los Angeles City
CEQA Guidelines;

3. Find that the proposed project conforms with the Port of Los Angeles certified Port
Master Plan (PMP);

4. Upon closure of the public hearing, resolve to approve the issuance of CDP No. 23-
03, consistent with the project description listed on Application for Port Permit No.
230208-021, and direct the Director of Planning and Strategy to execute and issue
said permit on behalf of and as the designee of the Executive Director; and

5. Adopt Resolution No._______________.

18/486



DATE:  NOVEMBER 21, 2023  PAGE 2 OF 4
  

SUBJECT:  NON-APPEALABLE LEVEL II CDP NO. 23-03 TO APMT PIER 400 
CRANE PROJECT 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Background/Context – Permit No. 827 grants APMT the use of approximately 512 
acres of land, berths, and facilities for container terminal and ancillary operations. Permit 
No. 827 and the Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (SEIR) for the Pier 400 
Container Terminal and Transportation Corridor Project were approved by the Board on 
October 5, 1999. Pier 400 opened with 10 cranes, and has added an additional 9 cranes 
since opening, which brings the total to 19 cranes. APMT is now proposing to remove 
three of its existing older container cranes and replace them with three new cranes. The 
total number of STS cranes at Pier 400 would remain 19. The replacement cranes are 
needed to yield the typical maximum number of cranes that could be deployed without 
being impeded by any structures on the vessel.  
 
Project Description – The proposed project includes the delivery of three new STS cranes 
manufactured by Shanghai Zhenhua Heavy Industries Company Limited at Pier 400 
(Transmittal 1). The three older cranes would be removed and replaced with three new 
cranes. The new STS cranes would be approximately 292 feet tall with the boom down. 
While this is approximately 40 feet taller than the older cranes being replaced, it is the 
same height as the current cranes. No demolition activities would occur on site, nor would 
any diking, filling, or dredging of any water areas occur.  
 
Coastal Development Permit Requirements – The proposed project is a Level II non-
appealable project in accordance with Section 6.4 of the PMP. A Level II permit is required 
for projects that involve significant resources; cause major changes in land and/or water 
use and in the density or intensity of the use; have the potential of creating significant 
environmental impacts that can or cannot be mitigated; or are appealable. The proposed 
project is a Level II CDP because the proposed project replaces three STS cranes which 
involves significant resources as outlined in Section 6.4.3 of the PMP (Transmittal 2). 
 
Procedurally, a Level II non-appealable CDP requires a public hearing that is publicized 
at least fifteen calendar days prior to the scheduled date of the hearing. A public notice 
for the proposed development was published on November 14, 2023 (Transmittal 3). 
 
The Director of Planning and Strategy has determined that the proposed project is 
consistent with the PMP and the Chapter 8 policies of the California Coastal Act of 1976 
(Coastal Act). Located in Planning Area 3 of the PMP, this container crane STS project 
is consistent with its Container land use designation. The proposed project is consistent 
with Sections 30701 of the Coastal Act and Policy 1.3 of the PMP, which encourages the 
modernization of the Port and construction of necessary facilities within the boundaries 
of the Port in order to minimize future dredging and filling to create new ports in new areas 
of the state. The proposed project is consistent with Section 30708 of the Coastal Act and 
Policy 2.1 of the PMP on the location, design, and construction of development in order 
to 1) minimize substantial adverse impacts, 2) minimize potential traffic conflicts between 
vessels, and 3) prioritize the use of existing land use for the port purpose of shipping 
industries. 
 

19/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 21, 2023  PAGE 3 OF 4

SUBJECT:  NON-APPEALABLE LEVEL II CDP NO. 23-03 TO APMT PIER 400 
CRANE PROJECT 

Review and Consideration of the Proposed Project – Section 6.7.3 of the PMP provides 
that all decisions of the Board shall be accompanied by written conclusions about the 
consistency of the application with the PMP and the Coastal Act, and findings of fact and 
reasoning supporting the decision. Approval of an application shall be accompanied by 
specific findings of fact supporting the following legal conclusions: (a) that the 
development is in conformity with the PMP; and (b) that either the development will have 
no significant adverse environmental impacts, or there are no feasible alternatives or 
mitigation measures as provided in CEQA which would substantially lessen any 
significant adverse impact that the development as finally proposed may have on the 
environment.1 Such findings are recommended in this Report, and if adopted through a 
Board resolution, are intended to effectuate compliance with the foregoing requirements. 

Alternatively, should the Board in its discretion not elect to approve the proposed CDP it 
has the ability to make findings in connection with that action and in regard to conformity 
with the PMP, the Coastal Act, and/or CEQA. 

It also should be noted that, while the PMP provides that “Board action on Level II Coastal 
Development Permits shall be decided by majority vote of those members present. Board 
members may vote “yes” or “no,” or may abstain from voting. An abstention shall not be 
deemed a “yes” vote,” the Los Angeles Administrative Code (LAAC) Division 21 - 
Departments & Commissions, Section 21.19 requires Commissioners who are present to 
vote with a “yes” or “no” vote without abstentions. If there is non-vote or an abstention by 
a Commissioner present when the question is put to the Board, the LAAC requires the 
record to reflect it as a “yes” vote. In connection with this item, the LAAC, not the PMP, 
will be followed on the subject of abstentions. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

The proposed action is approval of the Non-Appealable Level II CDP No. 23-03 to APMT 
Pier 400 Crane Project, which is an activity for the replacement of an industrial structure 
with a new structure of substantially the same size and purpose. Therefore, the Director 
of Environmental Management has determined that the proposed action is categorically 
exempt from the requirements of CEQA in accordance with Article III Class 2(2) of the 
Los Angeles City CEQA Guidelines. 

1 The PMP also provides that, if feasible mitigation measures are not available, the Board 
can adopt a statement of overriding considerations, and that where the Board has placed 
conditions on a project, the impacts of which the previous CEQA analysis did not account 
for, the matter shall be deferred until the conditions of CEQA and other applicable laws 
have been met. 

20/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 21, 2023  PAGE 4 OF 4

SUBJECT:  NON-APPEALABLE LEVEL II CDP NO. 23-03 TO APMT PIER 400 
CRANE PROJECT 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Approval of the proposed CDP has no direct financial impact to The City of Los Angeles 
Harbor Department. Acquisition, installation, as well as ongoing annual operating, and 
maintenance costs associated with the cranes would be borne by APMT. 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

The City Attorney has reviewed this Report and has determined that it satisfies the 
requirements of Section 6.6 of the PMP. 

TRANSMITTALS: 

1. Site Location Map
2. CDP No. 23-03
3. Public Notice

FIS Approval:_____ 
CA Approval:_____ 

MICHAEL KEENAN MICHAEL DiBERNARDO 
Director of Planning and Strategy Deputy Executive Director 

APPROVED: 

EUGENE D. SEROKA 
Executive Director 

Author: D. Jordan 

APP No. 230208-021

For

21/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

22/486



CDP 23-03 APMT Pier 400 Crane Project

APMT Pier 400 Crane Project

NAVAL MOLE

Harbor Department
Planning & Strategy Division
Map Produced August 2023

±
0 0.15 0.30.075 Miles

ITD-GIS     8/8/2023

Transmittal 1

23/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

24/486



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 7, 2023 

 
 

COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
 
 

1. Coastal Development Permit Number:  23-03 
 

2. Name/Address of Permittee:   APM Terminals Pacific, Ltd. 
2500 Navy Way 

        San Pedro, CA, 90731 
         

3. Permit Type:      Level II 
 

Non-appealable __X____ Appealable ____ Emergency       
 
4. Development Location:    Berths 401-406  

5. Development Description: 
 

CDP No. 23-03 allows APM Terminals Pacific Ltd. to replace three ship-to-
shore cranes at Pier 400 as outlined in APP No. 230208-021. 

 
6. The Executive Director has found that: 
 

The proposed development conforms to the certified Port of Los Angeles Master 
Plan, as amended, and the California Coastal Act of 1976, as amended. 
 
The proposed development is consistent with the project description listed on the 
Application for Port Permit No. 230208-021. 

 
The proposed development complies with the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act.   

Transmittal 2 

25/486



 
 

7. This permit is issued subject to the following standard conditions imposed pursuant 
to the certified Port of Los Angeles Master Plan, as amended, and the California 
Coastal Act of 1976, as amended: 

 
a) No property rights, either in real estate or material, or any exclusive 

privileges are granted, and the permit does not authorize any injury to 
private property or invasion of private rights, or any infringement of federal, 
state or local laws or regulations. 

 
b) Final working drawings shall have been submitted to the Chief Harbor 

Engineer for review and approval, and a Harbor Engineering Permit issued 
prior to commencement of any portion of the development. 

 
c) All construction and operations shall occur in accordance with the approved 

plans. 
 
d) This permit is issued subject to the applicant obtaining all other approvals 

and/or permits required by applicable law from agencies having jurisdiction 
over any aspect of the development. Construction shall not commence until 
such approvals and permits have been obtained. 

 
e) Any person who has obtained a permit for development may assign such 

permit to another person subject to the following conditions outlined in 
Section 6.8.6 of the Port of Los Angeles Master Plan. 

 
f) The permit shall not become effective until the issuance is reported to the 

Board of Harbor Commissioners and the original and two signed copies of 
the permit have been returned to the Los Angeles Harbor Department, upon 
which all permittee(s) or agent(s) authorized in the permit application have 
acknowledged that they have received a copy of the permit and have 
accepted the contents. 

 
g) Work must commence within two (2) years from the date of the executed 

coastal development permit, unless otherwise specified. If construction has 
not commenced, this permit will expire two (2) years from the date of the 
executed permit. Any extension of time of said commencement date must 
be applied for prior to expiration of the permit. 

 
h) Issuance of this coastal development permit does not change the obligation 

of the applicant to meet all other time requirements in any other permits or 
agreements granted by the City of Los Angeles. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

26/486



 
 

Issued on behalf of the Los Angeles Board of Harbor Commissioners by: 

 
 

EUGENE D. SEROKA 
Executive Director 

 
 
 
 
 

By:     
MICHAEL KEENAN  DATE 
Director of Planning and Strategy 

 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
 
I, _____________________________, permittee/agent, hereby acknowledge receipt of 

Coastal Development Permit No. 23-03, and that I understand and have accepted its 

contents and conditions.  

 

 

 

_________________________________  ________________________ 
SIGNATURE       DATE 
 
 
 
 
MK:rp 
 
APP No. 230208-021 
 

 

(please print) 

name) 

27/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 3

28/486



IMPORTANT – PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
Port of Los Angeles 

 
 

Pursuant to the California Coastal Act of 1976 as amended and the Port of Los 
Angeles’ certified Port Master Plan, notice is hereby given to all interested persons 
and organizations that the Los Angeles Board of Harbor Commissioners will hold 
a public hearing to receive public comments prior to considering a Coastal 
Development Permit (CDP) for: 

 
APMT PIER 400 CRANE PROJECT (CDP NO. 23-03) 

 
In accordance with Section 6.0 Development Guidelines of the Port Master Plan, 
the Los Angeles Board of Harbor Commissioners will hold a public hearing to 
receive public comments on this proposed project during a Special Board meeting 
on November 29, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. in the Harbor Administration Building Board 
Room at 425 S. Palos Verdes Street, San Pedro, CA 90731. 
 
Any person unable to attend the public hearing may submit written comments via 
e-mail to CDPComments@portla.org. Comments sent via e-mail should include 
the project title in the subject line. Written comments may also be submitted to the 
Director of Planning and Strategy, P.O. Box 151, San Pedro, CA 90733. 
Comments should be submitted no later than the day before the scheduled public 
hearing date. 
 
The staff report and recommendation on the proposed project are anticipated to 
be available for review after 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, November 22, 2023 by 
visiting the Port of Los Angeles website, www.portoflosangeles.org. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Transmittal 3 

29/486



Separator Page

2. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO LEGAL SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. 

21-9809 WITH THOMPSON COBURN LLP FOR FEDERAL 

CLEAN AIR ACT MATTERS

30/486



31/486



32/486



33/486



34/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

35/486



Transmittal 136/486



37/486



38/486



39/486



40/486



41/486



42/486



43/486



44/486



45/486



46/486



47/486



48/486



49/486



50/486



51/486



52/486



53/486



54/486



55/486



56/486



57/486



58/486



59/486



60/486



61/486



62/486



63/486



64/486



65/486



66/486



67/486



68/486



69/486



70/486



71/486



72/486



73/486



74/486



75/486



76/486



77/486



78/486



79/486



80/486



81/486



82/486



83/486



84/486



85/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

86/486



87/486



88/486



89/486



Separator Page

3. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - FOURTH 

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. 12- 3049 BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES HARBOR DEPARTMENT 

AND THE CITY OF LONG BEACH HARBOR 

DEPARTMENT TO HOST AND MAINTAIN THE PORTS’ 

DRAYAGE TRUCK REGISTRY

90/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 20, 2023 

FROM: ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. _____________ - FOURTH AMENDMENT TO 
AGREEMENT NO. 12-3049 BETWEEN THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
HARBOR DEPARTMENT AND THE CITY OF LONG BEACH HARBOR 
DEPARTMENT TO HOST AND MAINTAIN THE PORTS’ DRAYAGE 
TRUCK REGISTRY 

SUMMARY: 

Staff requests approval of the proposed Fourth Amendment to Agreement No. 12-3049 
(Agreement) between the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department (Harbor Department) 
and the City of Long Beach Harbor Department (LBHD) (collectively Ports) to host and 
maintain the Ports’ Drayage Truck Registry (PDTR). The proposed Fourth Amendment 
will extend the term of the Agreement three years to December 31, 2026.  
Compensation authority will remain at $348,190, and no additional funding will be added to 
the Agreement. The Harbor Department will continue to be financially responsible for 
the payment of expenses incurred under this Agreement. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Harbor Commissioners (Board): 

1. Find that the Director of Environmental Management has determined that the
proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(f) of the Los Angeles City
CEQA Guidelines;

2. Accept and approve the proposed Fourth Amendment to extend the term of Agreement
No. 12-3049 between the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department and the City of
Long Beach Harbor Department through December 31, 2026;

3. Authorize the Executive Director to execute and the Board Secretary to attest to
said Amendment for and on behalf of the Board; and

4. Adopt Resolution No.__________.

91/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 20, 2023 PAGE 2 OF 5 

SUBJECT: FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. 12-3049 

DISCUSSION: 

Background/Context – On November 20, 2006, the City of Los Angeles and City of Long 
Beach (Departments) Boards of Harbor Commissioners (Boards) approved the Clean Air 
Action Plan (CAAP).  A key component of the CAAP is the implementation of a Clean 
Truck Program (CTP), which required all drayage trucks serving the Ports to meet U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 2007 emissions standards (clean trucks) by 
January 1, 2012, earlier than state law’s CARB Drayage Truck Rule.  Other CTP 
enhancements were adopted over the years, including Concession Agreements and 
Tariffs, which provide the Harbor department with critical motor carrier and truck 
information and access controls to its terminals necessary for its environment, safety and 
security objectives.  The PDTR is the database system that provides such information to 
both Ports.  At a November 2, 2017 joint meeting, the Boards approved the 2017 CAAP 
update.  The 2017 CAAP update set the CTP goal to transition the port drayage industry’s 
fleet to zero-emission by 2035. Currently, there are approximately 1,800 trucking 
companies dispatching over 20,000 clean trucks to serve the Ports. 

PDTR History – In 2008, the California Air Resources Board adopted the State Drayage 
Truck Regulation,1 which set certain requirements for drayage trucks to access marine 
ports and railyards statewide, as well as a State Drayage Truck Registry (State DTR) to 
confirm trucks’ compliance with the regulation. To ensure success of the CTP, the Harbor 
Department and LBHD recognized the need to also develop their own drayage truck 
database system, the PDTR, to provide key information about licensed motor carriers and 
trucks and compliance with CTP requirements, as well as to assist in the collection of 
registration and truck fees. A software consultant designed and developed this database 
system for Ports in 2009. Once the permanent PDTR was developed, both Departments 
decided that LBHD would host the PDTR on its server rather than contracting the service 
to an outside vendor. This decision was based on expensive cost estimates received from 
outside vendors and LBHD’s already established server capability. LBHD was able to 
provide the services at a fraction of the cost of outside vendors. LBHD took responsibility 
for various services including the PDTR hosting, routine operation, scheduled 
maintenance, and disaster recovery efforts. LBHD has been hosting the PDTR since 2009 
and has not encountered any major issues. They perform occasional testing and have 
made several upgrades to the security infrastructure, but the PDTR systems have not 
required significant personnel time. Overall, this has been an economically favorable 
arrangement for both parties compared to proposed costs for similar outside services. 
The Harbor Department is interested in continuing this arrangement going forward. The 
Chief Information Officers from the Departments have been involved in these decisions 
and agree that this is the best course of action. 

1 https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/drayage-trucks-seaports-railyards 

92/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 20, 2023 PAGE 3 OF 5 

SUBJECT: FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. 12-3049 

On December 17, 2020, the Board approved the Third Amendment to the Agreement 
extending it by three years to December 31, 2023. To date, the total amount paid 
from the Agreement is $183,190 leaving a remaining authority of $165,000. 

Fourth Amendment – Staff recommends the approval of the proposed Fourth Amendment 
to extend the term of the Agreement for three additional years (Transmittal 1).  The proposed 
cost to the Harbor Department for three years is a maximum not-to-exceed amount 
of $117,000.  No additional funding authority will be added to the Agreement since it 
has a remaining authority of $165,000, which will be sufficient to fund the proposed 
extension. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

The proposed action is the approval to the proposed Fourth Amendment to 
the Agreement between the Harbor Department and LBHD to host and maintain the 
PDTR, which is an administrative activity. Therefore, the proposed action is 
administratively exempt from the requirements of CEQA in accordance with Article II 
Section 2(f) of the Los Angeles City CEQA Guidelines.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The proposed Fourth Amendment extends the Agreement by three years 
through December 31, 2026. The Agreement authority is $348,190 of which $183,190 
has been spent-to-date. The remaining $165,000 will cover the expenditures 
anticipated for the amendment so no additional funds are being requested at this time. 

It is anticipated that funds will be expended as follows:  
Fiscal Year Amount 
2023/2024 $15,000    
2024/2025 $34,000 
2025/2026 $34,000 
2026/2027 $34,000 

TOTAL $117,000 

Funds in the current fiscal year are available in Account 59967 (Clean Truck Program 
Administrative Costs), Center 0330 (Environmental Management Division), Program 000 
(Base Budget). Future year funds will be requested to be budgeted through the Harbor 
Department’s annual budgeting process. 

The Harbor Department’s financial obligations for future fiscal years are contingent upon 
Board appropriation of funds.  If any subsequent fiscal year funds are not appropriated 
by the Board for the work required by the agreement, the agreement would be terminated. 

93/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 20, 2023 PAGE 4 OF 5 

SUBJECT: FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. 12-3049 

However, such termination shall not relieve the parties of liability for any obligations 
previously incurred. 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

The Office of the City Attorney has reviewed and approved the Fourth Amendment as to 
form and legality. 

94/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 20, 2023 PAGE 5 OF 5 

SUBJECT: FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. 12-3049 

TRANSMITTAL: 

1. Fourth Amendment to Agreement No. 12-3049 between the City of Los Angeles and
the City of Long Beach

FIS Approval: _____ 

CA Approval: _____ 

LISA WUNDER MICHAEL DiBERNARDO 
Acting Director of Environmental Management Deputy Executive Director 

APPROVED: 

EUGENE D. SEROKA 
Executive Director 

LW:AC:mrx 
AUTHOR: A. COLUSO 

FILE: Y:\_ADMIN\_BOARD REPORTS\_AIR QUALITY\CTP\POLB - PDTR Hosting\PDTR - Fourth Amendment 2023\Environmental_PDTR Fourth Amend_Board 
Report - FINAL.docx 
UPDATED: 11/1202023  10:16 am - MRX 

For

95/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

96/486



TRANSMITTAL 1

97/486



98/486



99/486



100/486



101/486



102/486



Separator Page

4. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVE 

REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-11 WITH LOS 

ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE

103/486



104/486



 

 
 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 14, 2023 
 
FROM: WATERFRONT & COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE  
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. ___________ - APPROVE REVOCABLE LICENSE 

NO. 2023-11 WITH LOS ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE  
 
SUMMARY:  
 
Staff requests approval of Revocable License No. 2023-11 (License) with the Los Angeles 
Maritime Institute (LAMI) to allow temporary use of Berth 85 for the berthing and docking 
of brigantine vessels and to load and unload passengers on a non-exclusive first come 
basis as available.  Berth 85 consists of 65,620 square feet of water and dock space. The 
proposed License is subject to cancellation by the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department 
(Harbor Department) or licensee upon 90 days’ written notice.  
 
LAMI, a California non-profit corporation, operates the TopSail Youth Program for middle 
and high school students, including at-risk youth, on maritime education and hands-on 
tall ships sailing within the Port of Los Angeles (Port).  The program has been in operation 
at the Port since 1992. Curriculum focuses on the Port, the maritime industry, 
communication, teamwork, and instills responsibility, leadership, and self-esteem by 
providing character-building experiences. Currently under Revocable Permit 2017-006, 
LAMI is using Downtown Harbor Cut Slips 1 and 2 for passenger sailing.  
 
Given the significant benefits received by the Harbor Department from the services 
provided by LAMI, staff requests waiving the monthly compensation.  LAMI will be 
financially responsible for all other costs, including but not limited to utilities, equipment, 
labor, Port Police security, site repair and maintenance.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Harbor Commissioners: 
 
1. Find that the Director of Environmental Management has determined that the 

proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article III, Class 1 (18)(b) of the Los Angeles 
City CEQA Guidelines; 
 

2. Find that the proposed action is in the best interest of the City of Los Angeles Harbor 
Department based on the value of services delivered to the community, and the 
compensation that would be due and owed imposes an understandable hardship;  
 

3. Approve Revocable License No. 2023-11 with Los Angeles Maritime Institute; 
 

 

 

105/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 14, 2023                        PAGE 2 OF 3 
 
SUBJECT: REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-11 WITH LOS ANGELES MARITIME 

INSTITUTE 
 
4. Authorize the Executive Director to execute and the Board Secretary to attest to 

Revocable License No. 2023-11; and  
 

5. Adopt Resolution No. _____________. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Background – LAMI operates the free TopSail Youth Program for upper elementary, 
middle and high school students, including at-risk, under resourced youth, on maritime 
education and hands-on tall ships sailing within the Port of Los Angeles.  TopSail Youth 
Program curriculum focuses on the Port, the maritime industry, communication, 
teamwork, and instills responsibility, leadership, and self-esteem by providing character-
building experiences.  LAMI also operates the free TopSail STEM and Sea Scouts/Youth 
program, which teaches science and job skills for youth in the local community. These 
programs have been in operation at the Port since 1992.  
 
Given the benefits that LAMI provides through its free programs and operations, staff 
recommends waving compensation for this use.  
 
Summary of Significant License Terms: 
 
Effective Date – The month-to-month License (Transmittal 2) will be effective upon 
execution by the Executive Director and revocable upon 90 days’ written notice. 
 
Premises – The premises consists of 65,620 square feet of water and dock space at Berth 
85. Tenant is responsible for site maintenance, insurance,  and upkeep. 
 
Compensation – Compensation will be waived due to the public benefits provided to local 
and regional communities from LAMI’s operations.   
 
Use – Premises will be used for the berthing and docking of brigantine vessels and to 
load and unload passengers on a non-exclusive first come basis, as available. 
 
Other – LAMI will need to coordinate its sailing schedule and returns with other potential 
users of the premises. No advertising, scheduling, collection of money, or any other 
activities other than the loading and unloading of passengers and supplies are permitted. 
LAMI will provide a schedule of charters including passengers five business days before 
each intended use. The Director of Waterfront and Commercial Real Estate (Director) or 
designee reserves the right to deny LAMI’s request to use premises upon 24 hours written 
notice to licensee.  LAMI’s vessels can use Berth 85 only to unload and load passengers 
and must return to each vessel’s primary berthing location after each trip unless another 
charter is scheduled within four hours of loading.  At other times, LAMI’s vessels can only 
dock onsite for up to one hour prior to scheduled departure or one hour after arrival time.  
The Harbor Department will not be responsible for tenant’s inability to load or unload 
passengers due to unavailability of premises.   
 
 
 
 

106/486



For

107/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

108/486



-J 

co 

er 

0 
co 
er 

(/) 

N 
c.n 

0 
0 

w 

z 

-..J 

'65, 20 SF --

--

� 

N88° •:i4'59"E 

101.35' 

N 1727 

E6476 

6TH ST 

200' 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

NOTES: 

SCALE: 

1) NO SUBSTRUCTURES ARE SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING. ACCURATE SUBSTRUCTURE INFORMATION MUST BE 

OBTAINED FROM LESSEES AND L.A.H.D. ENGINEERING RECORDS.

2) HORIZONTAL DATUM IS BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAO 83), CALIFORNIA COORDINATE
SYSTEM, ZONE 5, FEET.

3) ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE GRID DISTANCES. TO OBTAIN A REASONABLE REPRESENTATION 
OF THE GROUND DISTANCE, DIVIDE THE DISTANCE HEREIN BY THE AVERAGE SCALE FACTOR OF 1.000076.

AS SHOWN PERMIT MAP -AUTHORITY NO. RL 2023-11 
DRAWN: P. HOANG 

CHECKED: C. SAR 

DESIGNED: p. HOANG LOS ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE 
'1'111! P01l'l'Ul1 I.OS Al\'filil.l!S 

DRAWING NUMBER 

llNGINElllUNG DIVISION 
,12r, s. PAI.OS l'liHDES STRF.lil' SAN PllDllO CA 1101:11-:1:um 5-7424

Exhibit A TRANSMITTAL 1109/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

110/486



TRANSMITTAL 2

111/486



112/486



113/486



114/486



115/486



116/486



117/486



118/486



119/486



120/486



121/486



122/486



123/486



124/486



125/486



126/486



127/486



Separator Page

5. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVE 

REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-12 WITH LOS 

ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE

128/486



129/486



130/486



For

131/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

132/486



36,570 Sf' 

100' 
200' 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

NOTES: 

SCALE: 

1) NO SUBSTRUCTURES ARE SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING. ACCURATE SUBSTRUCTURE INFORMATION MUST BE

OBTAINED FROM LESSEES AND L.A.H.D. ENGINEERING RECORDS.

2) HORIZONTAL DATUM IS BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAO 83), CALIFORNIA COORDINATE
SYSTEM, ZONE 5, FEET.

3) ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE GRID DISTANCES. TO OBTAIN A REASONABLE REPRESENTATION

OF THE GROUND DISTANCE, DIVIDE THE DISTANCE HEREIN BY THE AVERAGE SCALE FACTOR OF 1.000076.

AS SHOWN PERMIT MAP - AUTHORITY NO. RL 2023-12 
DRAWN: P. HOANG 

CHECKED: C. SAR 

DESIGNED: P. HOANG 
LOS ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE 

TUil l'Oll'l' 011 I.OS AN'Glll.l!S 
DRAWING NU�BER 

ENGINElllUNG DIVISION 
,125 s. 1•,uos \'lillDF.S S'l'llElil' SAN l'F.DHO (:A 1107:t l·:rnoo 5-7425

Exhibit A  TRANSMITTAL 1
133/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

134/486



TRANSMITTAL 2

135/486



136/486



137/486



138/486



139/486



140/486



141/486



142/486



143/486



144/486



145/486



146/486



147/486



148/486



149/486



Separator Page

6. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL OF 

REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-10 WITH HARBOR 

BREEZE CORPORATION

150/486



151/486



152/486



153/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

154/486



TRANSMITTAL 1

155/486



156/486



157/486



158/486



159/486



160/486



161/486



162/486



163/486



164/486



165/486



166/486



167/486



168/486



169/486



170/486



171/486



172/486



173/486



174/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

175/486



S
 H

A
R

B
O

R
 B

LV
D

PARCEL NO. 1

6TH ST

N 1727936.14
E 6476933.97

425 S. PALOS VERDES STREET SAN PEDRO CA 90731-3309

THE PORT OF LOS ANGELES

PERMIT MAP - AUTHORITY NO. RL 2023-10

HARBOR BREEZE
5-7406

D
W

G
:  

N
:\c

ad
d\

pr
oj

ec
t\R

.O
.W

.L
EA

SE
\S

ig
ne

d 
D

ra
w

in
gs

\5
-7

40
6 

R
EV

 1
.d

w
g 

   
 U

SE
R

: h
oa

ng
p

D
AT

E:
  J

un
 1

5,
 2

02
3 

 2
:3

7p
m

  X
R

EF
S:

BD
R

Y-
PI

ER
 IM

AG
ES

:L
5_

64
71

_1
72

5d
 L

5_
64

77
_1

72
5a

GRAPHIC SCALE
NOTES:

1) NO SUBSTRUCTURES ARE SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING. ACCURATE SUBSTRUCTURE INFORMATION MUST BE
OBTAINED FROM LESSEES AND L.A.H.D. ENGINEERING RECORDS.

2) HORIZONTAL DATUM IS BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD 83), CALIFORNIA COORDINATE
SYSTEM, ZONE 5, FEET.

3) ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE GRID DISTANCES. TO OBTAIN A REASONABLE REPRESENTATION
OF THE GROUND DISTANCE, DIVIDE THE DISTANCE HEREIN BY THE AVERAGE SCALE FACTOR OF 1.000076.

Exhibit A

7-14-22for

REV. 1  06/23  DELETED PARCEL NO. 2 & REVISED AUTHORITY NO.

176/486



Separator Page

7. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL OF 

REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-09 WITH ODYSSEY 

YACHT CHARTER, LLC

177/486



178/486



179/486



180/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

181/486



TRANSMITTAL 1

182/486



183/486



184/486



185/486



186/486



187/486



188/486



189/486



190/486



191/486



192/486



193/486



194/486



195/486



196/486



197/486



198/486



199/486



200/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

201/486



S
 H

A
R

B
O

R
 B

LV
D

PARCEL NO. 1

6TH ST N 1727319.18
E 6477010.46

425 S. PALOS VERDES STREET SAN PEDRO CA 90731-3309

THE PORT OF LOS ANGELES

PERMIT MAP - AUTHORITY NO. RL 2023-09

ODYSSEY YACHT
5-7423

D
W

G
:  

N
:\c

ad
d\

pr
oj

ec
t\R

.O
.W

.L
EA

SE
\S

ig
ne

d 
D

ra
w

in
gs

\5
-7

42
3.

dw
g 

   
 U

SE
R

: h
oa

ng
p

D
AT

E:
  J

un
 1

4,
 2

02
3 

 4
:3

6p
m

  X
R

EF
S:

BD
R

Y-
PI

ER
 IM

AG
ES

:L
6_

64
71

_1
72

5d
 L

6_
64

77
_1

72
5a

GRAPHIC SCALE

NOTES:
1) NO SUBSTRUCTURES ARE SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING. ACCURATE SUBSTRUCTURE INFORMATION MUST BE

OBTAINED FROM LESSEES AND L.A.H.D. ENGINEERING RECORDS.

2) HORIZONTAL DATUM IS BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD 83), CALIFORNIA COORDINATE
SYSTEM, ZONE 5, FEET.

3) ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE GRID DISTANCES. TO OBTAIN A REASONABLE REPRESENTATION
OF THE GROUND DISTANCE, DIVIDE THE DISTANCE HEREIN BY THE AVERAGE SCALE FACTOR OF 1.000076.

Exhibit A

6-14-23

TRANSMITTAL 2202/486



Separator Page

8.  RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - COMMUNITY 

INVESTMENT GRANTS FOR INTERNATIONAL TRADE 

EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. DBA EXP AND LOS 

ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE

203/486



I,\ 
THE PORT 
OF LOS ANGELES 

Executive Director's 
Report to the 

Board of Harbor Commissioners 

DATE: 

FROM: 

NOVEMBER 15, 2023 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. - COMMUNITY INVESTMENT GRANTS 
FOR INTERNATIONAL TRADE EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. OBA 
EXP AND LOS ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE 

SUMMARY: 

Staff requests approval of the proposed agreements between the City of Los Angeles 
Harbor Department (Harbor Department) and International Trade Education Programs, 
Inc. dba EXP (EXP) and Los Angeles Maritime Institute (LAMI) for Community 
Investment Grants supporting their educational programs (Agreements). 

EXP and LAMI were selected through the Community Investment Grant Program 
process. The proposed Agreements are for two years in the amounts of: 1) EXP - 
$346, 150 per year for a total of $692,300; 2) LAMI - $290,000 per year for a total of 
$580,000. The combined two-year total for both Agreements is $1,272,300. The Harbor 
Department is financially responsible for funding the proposed Agreements. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Harbor Commissioners (Board): 

1. Find that the Director of Environmental Management has determined that the 
proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(f) of the 
Los Angeles City CEQA Guidelines; 

2. Find that the proposed Community Investment Grants are consistent with the 
criteria of the Board-approved Sponsorship/Hosting Policy (March 201 0); 

3. Approve the proposed Agreement with EXP for a term of two years and a total 
not-to-exceed amount of $692,300; 

4. Approve the proposed Agreement with LAMI for a term of two years and a total 
not-to-exceed amount of $580,000; 

5. Authorize the Executive Director and the Board Secretary to execute and attest 
to the proposed Agreements with EXP and LAMI; and 

204/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023 PAGE 2 OF 8 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT GRANTS FOR INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. DBA EXP AND LOS ANGELES 
MARITIME INSTITUTE 

6. Adopt Resolution No. --- 

DISCUSSION: 

Background/Context - On March 1, 2023, the application for Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 
Community Investment Grants was made available on the Port of Los Angeles' website. 
The Community Investment Grant program, which has been in place since FY 2014, 
funds a variety of non-profit groups that organize community programs and events 
benefiting both the Harbor Department and Harbor Area. A virtual workshop for those 
interested in applying was held in April and grant applications were due in May. The 
selection committee was comprised of six members with familiarity of the Harbor 
communities. The selection committee consisted of three Harbor Department 
employees, two community representatives and one Council District 15 representative. 

Community grant proposals were split into two categories: General $99,999 and under; 
and Large - $100,000 and over. For the large grants, all six members rated the 
proposals and discussed appropriate funding levels for those programs selected to 
receive grants. The EXP and LAMI applications came in under the "large" category with 
requests of $850,000 in total yearly funding. The selection committee is recommending 
funding at $346,150 for EXP and $290,000 for a period of two years each. 

EXP - International Trade Education Programs, Inc. (ITEP) dba EXP, was established in 
1999 by maritime industry leaders and founded by a former Port of Los Angeles Harbor 
Commissioner. Their goal was to bridge the gap between the port industry's need for a 
skilled workforce and the local high school's struggle to graduate students. ITEP 
recognized early on the importance of forging partnerships where businesses offer 
pathways to high growth careers, internships, apprenticeships, job shadowing and work 
based learning opportunities. These real-world experiences offer students a glimpse 
into their future while giving them a competitive edge in the workforce. 

In 2018, EXP completed a thorough review of its organizational strategy and 
stakeholder perceptions, developing a five-year strategic plan including a new brand 
identity that would capture the depth and breadth of EXP program services throughout 
the targeted service areas. EXP launched in September 2018. With the tagline "The 
opportunity engine," the EXP brand captures the organization's entrepreneurial drive, 
honors its enduring legacy in the Port of Los Angeles (POLA), and remains true to its 
core mission: to help young people gain experience, unlock doors and build the 
confidence they need to succeed in school and have a solid understanding of how they 
can pursue a career of their interest in the Port and maritime business ecosystem. 

From a humble beginning serving a handful of students in one pathway academy, 
International Trade Academy, at Phineas Banning High School in Wilmington, EXP has 

205/486



NOVEMBER 15, 2023 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT GRANTS FOR INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. OBA EXP AND LOS ANGELES 
MARITIME INSTITUTE 

DATE: PAGE 3 OF 8 

grown exponentially. In 2013, EXP programs touched the lives of 1,500 students. By 
2019, EXP reached more than 6,000 students in Southern California. Today, EXP is 
proud to make its programs accessible to approximately 8,200 students in 12 schools 
and 18 industry pathways spanning the Greater Los Angeles Region. 

EXP works in collaboration with industry, education, student, and community partners to 
identify and address barriers and challenges, to effectively deliver services that are 
responsive to student and community needs. They are committed to maximizing their 
students' workforce development experiences and expose them to the vast array of 
college and career opportunities. EXP's comprehensive programs and services engage 
students throughout their high school journey and beyond in the following ways: 

1) College and Career EXPioration is a comprehensive program initiative 
designed to empower high school students with the knowledge and skills they 
need to make informed decisions about their future education and career path. 
These programs include off-campus career discovery and exploration day 
events, where students learn about careers in an array of high-wage and high 
growth industries and have the opportunity to interact with a variety of industry 
professionals. These activities are crafted to inspire, inform, and guide students 
on their journey towards higher education and meaningful careers. 

2) The EXPression Program is an innovative and transformative initiative that 
places mentorship as its core, aiming to inspire and guide students on a journey 
of self-discovery, personal growth, and creative expression. This unique program 
platform allows students to connect with caring and experienced mentors that are 
passionate about nurturing talent, sparking creativity, and helping mentees 
unleash their full potential. EXP delivers a fall and spring Industry Coaching 
Program and a signature Young Fellows Program (mentoring) series. 

3) The Career EXPerience Program is a dynamic work-based learning initiative 
that bridges the gap between education and the professional world by offering 
students real-world experiences. The program provides students with the 
opportunity to explore potential career paths, gain hands-on experiences, and 
build essential skills through work-based learning, ultimately helping them make 
informed decisions about their futures after high school. The Career EXPerience 
Program includes: 

a. Signature Guest Speaker Series 
b. Job Shadowing and Business Site Tours 
c. College and University Tours 
d. Career Fairs 
e. Summer Maritime Immersion Program 
f. 12-month Internship Program, featuring a series of career-readiness 

workshops, resume and cover letter development, mock interviews, 

206/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023 PAGE 4 OF 8 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT GRANTS FOR INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. OBA EXP AND LOS ANGELES 
MARITIME INSTITUTE 

employer interviews, and a high-quality paid internship in a supportive 
professional environment. 

4) Career EXPanded Opportunities is a transformative initiative that provides 
post-high school students and young adults with a wide array of employment 
resources, professional development, and networking opportunities as they 
navigate the critical transition to post-secondary education and/or career. 

Notably, during the summer of 2023, approximately 80 EXP-supported students 
entering their senior year of high school participated in the Harbor Department's 
Summer Internship Program. The students receive a practical introduction and real 
world work experience in careers related to maritime, trade, transportation and logistics, 
environmental, and security sectors, to name a few. 

Exposure to the Port and other various maritime-related industries offered by this 
program helps generate awareness, interest, and preparation among EXP students; the 
next generation of maritime industry professionals. Likewise, the EXP program helps to 
ensure a continued strong, stable workforce which can greatly benefit the POLA and 
maritime industries for decades to come. 

LAMI - TopSail is a program of the Los Angeles Maritime Institute, a non-profit, public 
benefit corporation which operates in conjunction with the Los Angeles Maritime 
Museum. TopSail is an experiential education program for at-risk youth which has been 
in operation since 1992. The program consists of three to five one-day sails in and 
around San Pedro Bay with the option of a multi-day voyage, usually to Catalina Island. 
TopSail's programs use the twin brigantines, the Exy Johnson and the Irving Johnson, 
the Official Tall ships of the City of Los Angeles. 

TopSail is known as a highly successful program which promotes teamwork, teaches 
responsibility, and encourages leadership and self-esteem by providing character 
building opportunities. At the same time, participants receive educational information 
regarding the Port and the maritime industry. For some of the participants, the TopSail 
voyages represent their first awareness of the Port and its operations. Testimonials from 
educators, participants and others indicate that the TopSail experience has served to 
encourage the majority of the students to stay in school and lead more productive lives. 
More than 100,000 students have been served over the past decade alone. 

Agreement Requirements - All Harbor Department Community Investment Grants must 
be for programs, projects and events that are Tidelands Trust compliant. They must 
show a nexus to these requirements, and it must be clearly explained on the 
application. This is not only a factor for the committee in the selection process but is 
also reviewed by the City Attorney's Office before final selection is confirmed. Those 
without a Tidelands Trust nexus cannot be supported with Harbor Department Funds. 

207/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023 PAGE 5 OF 8 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT GRANTS FOR INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. DBA EXP AND LOS ANGELES 
MARITIME INSTITUTE 

The two large grant awardees in this case, have shown a Tidelands Trust nexus and 
have been reviewed by the City Attorney's Office. 

Each grant Agreement requires the Grantee to list the benefits expected to be realized 
by both the Grantee as well as the Harbor Department if a grant request is funded. 
While Grantee benefits differ based upon their respective missions or goals, benefits 
realized by the Harbor Department typically include recognition of the Port's investment 
in the Grantee's outreach materials, website, eblasts, flyers, etc. Additionally, where 
appropriate, Harbor Department participation opportunities in Grantee programs are 
encouraged. 

The Harbor Department's Community Investment Grant oversight does not end at the 
writing of the check. Community Relations staff monitor grantee programs, projects and 
events throughout the year and a wrap-up report is required from each grant recipient 
by the close of the fiscal year in which they received their grant. Failure to provide a 
wrap-up report or follow-through on Harbor Department recognition as detailed in their 
Agreement will detrimentally affect future year grant opportunities should these 
requirements not be met. 

Past Agreements 

ITEP/EXP - In FY 2007, the Board of Harbor Commissioners approved Agreement 
E2490, a one-year grant of $440,000 to specifically assist ITEP with the expansion of its 
maritime education programs, start-up costs for establishing ITEP as an independent, 
non-profit corporation, and for development of marketing materials to solicit corporate 
sponsorships. In a letter dated December 14, 2005, the State Tidelands Commission 
approved utilization of Port revenue for this program and provided recommendations on 
future funding. The State Tidelands Commission stated that compliance with the 
recommendations were within the Port of Los Angeles' discretion, but not mandated by 
the Commissions' granting statute or existing public trust doctrine. In all subsequent 
actions, the Board of Harbor Commissioners has exercised its authority to determine 
the level of funding and how those funds should be used. 

The Board subsequently approved Agreement E2646, providing funding of $400,000 
each year for FY 2008 and FY 2009 to assist with development of a model academy for 
potential implementation on a regional or state-wide basis. ITEP met or exceeded all 
requirements of Agreement E2646, including the establishment of academies at San 
Pedro High School, Barstow High School in the Inland Empire, Excel High School in 
Oakland and at high schools in Gardena and Carson. 

Funding was not provided to ITEP in FY 2010 because they were able to operate with 
prior year funds received from the Port. 

208/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023 PAGE 6 OF 8 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT GRANTS FOR INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. DBA EXP AND LOS ANGELES 
MARITIME INSTITUTE 

The Board approved Agreement 10-2897 in FY 2011, a three-year agreement which 
continued to provide ITEP with $400,000 per year for its programs. 

The Board approved Agreement 13-3154 on August 12, 2013, in the amount of 
$400,000 for the academic year ending June 30, 2014, and in 2014, a one-year 
agreement in the amount of $330,000 was approved. 

Under the Community Investment Grant Program, the following grants have been made: 
$680,000 total (Agreement 15-3350) for FY 2016 and FY 2017; $700,000 total 
(Agreement 19-3672) for FY 2020 and FY 2021; and $670,000 total (Agreement 21- 
9909) for FY 2022 and FY 2023. 

LAMI - The Board of Harbor Commissioners initially approved a two-year agreement 
with LAMI for TopSail in March 1997 for FY 1998 and FY 1999, for a total of $200,000 
per year. At the conclusion of the second year, the success of the program was re 
evaluated prior to eventual sponsorship of a third and fourth year at the same level. 

Agreement No. 2177 was approved in March 2002 for annual sponsorship of $300,000 
for an additional three-year period. Subsequently, the Board approved the first 
Amendment to Agreement No. 2177 which increased the annual sponsorship by 
$467,000 to assist with capital repayment costs for the completion of twin brigantines 
commissioned on April 27, 2002. Both actions were also approved by the City Council. 
Agreement No. 2177 covered fiscal years 2002 through 2004. 

Agreement No. 2330 was approved in July 2004 for annual sponsorship of $450,000 for 
an additional three-year period. This action was approved by the City Council in 
September 2004. Agreement 2330 covered fiscal years 2005 through 2007. 

Agreement No. 2581 was approved on February 27, 2007. This agreement was for 
three years with a sliding financial package starting at $525,000 and increasing three 
percent each year for a final year compensation of $556,972. 

Agreement No. 10-2890 was approved on October 13, 2010. This agreement was for 
three years with a financial package of $350,000 per year for a total amount of 
$1,050,000. An amendment to this Agreement in the amount of $175,000 continued 
funding of the LAMI program through the end of calendar year 2013. 

Agreement 13-3213 was approved on December 12, 2013, for $175,000 bringing total 
funding in FY 2014 to $350,000 and, in 2014, a one-year agreement for $225,000 was 
approved. 

Under the Community Investment Grant Program, the following grants have been made: 
$510,000 total (Agreement 15-3351) for FY 2016 and 2017; $550,000 total (Agreement 

209/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023 PAGE 7 OF 8 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT GRANTS FOR INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. DBA EXP AND LOS ANGELES 
MARITIME INSTITUTE 

17-3520) for FY 2018 and FY 2019; $550,000 total (Agreement 19-3673) for FY 2020 
and FY 2021; and $520,000 total (Agreement 21-9837) for FY 2022 and FY 2023. 

EXP submitted a grant application (Transmittal 1) which requested $450,000 in funding 
to prepare high school students in underserved communities in the Harbor Gateway 
area, including the Wilmington, San Pedro, and Harbor City communities. Based upon 
its review of EXP's application, the selection committee recommended a grant of 
$346,150 per year, or $692,300 over a two-year period. Based upon the selection 
committee's recommendation, staff proposes entering into the proposed grant 
agreement (Transmittal 2) with EXP. 

LAMI submitted a grant application (Transmittal 3) which requested $400,000 in funding 
to administer the TopSail Youth Program. Based upon its review of LAMl's application, 
the selection committee recommended a grant of $290,000 per year, or $580,000 over 
a two-year period. Based upon the selection committee's recommendation, staff 
proposes entering into the proposed grant agreement (Transmittal 4) with LAMI. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 

Find that the proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(f) of the Los 
Angeles City CEQA Guidelines as determined by the Director of Environmental 
Management. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Approval of the proposed Agreements will commit $692,300 to EXP and $580,000 to 
LAMI to fund each of these grant agreements for a total of $1,272,300 over a two-year 
period. 

FY 2024 funding in the amount of $636,150 is available within Account 52031 
(Sponsorships), Center 0220, Program 000. If the agreements are approved, $636,150 
($346,150 for EXP and $290,000 for LAMI) will again be requested to be budgeted as 
part of the Harbor Department's FY 2025 annual budget adoption process. If future 
fiscal year funds are not appropriated by the Board in any subsequent fiscal year, the 
agreements shall be terminated. However, such termination shall not relieve the parties 
of liability for any obligation previously incurred. 

210/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023 PAGE 8 OF 8 

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT GRANTS FOR INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. DBA EXP AND LOS ANGELES 
MARITIME INSTITUTE 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

The Office of the City Attorney has reviewed and approved the proposed Agreements 
as to form and legality. 

TRANSMITTALS: 

1. Grant Application - EXP 
2. Agreement- EXP 
3. Grant Application - LAM I 
4. Agreement- LAMI 

FIS Approval n B 
CA Approval 50 

CECILIA MORENO 
Director of Community Relations 

A~f3~ 

ARLEY BAKER 
Sr. Director of Communications & 
Stakeholder Engagement 

~ i__A.1,.--_ 

DAVID LIBATIQUE 
Deputy Executive Director 
Stakeholder Engagement 

APPROVED: 

7'?.~ -BfuwvM For 
EUGENE D. SEROKA 
Executive Director 

ES:DL:AB:CM:JB:cp 
Author: C. Pina 

211/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

212/486



Port of Los Angeles 

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 
Please include additional pages, if necessary, for any of the responses 

Applicant Information 

Organization Name 
(include electronic file with logo) 

 International Trade Education Programs, Inc. (ITEP) dba EXP 

Tax Exempt Non-Profit Entity 
§501(c)(3) Status

Internal Revenue Service letter confirming 501(c)(3) tax exempt status 
ATTACHED below 

City of L.A. Business Tax 
Registration Certificate 
(BTRC) Number 

000213201-0001-1 

Event/Program/Project 
Name 

Preparing the Next Generation Workforce 

Date(s) 
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024 

Location(s) Greater Southern California area with core emphasis on Harbor 
Gateway Area, including the Wilmington, San Pedro, and Harbor City 
communities. 

Brief Description (more 
detailed information to be 
included on next page) 

Prepare high school students in underserved communities for college 
and career opportunities in Port-related and other high-skill and high-
growth industries. 

Estimated Attendance 
8,200 

Free or Ticketed Event? 
Anticipated ticket price? 

N/A – EXP does not have fees associated with student participation. 

Budget BUDGET ATTACHED below 

Contact Name 
Amy L. Grat, CEO 

Contact Address 2417 E. Carson Street, Suite 200 – Carson, CA 90810 

Contact Phone 
424.368.7100 ext. 103 (o) or 818.421.4843 (c) 

Contact E-Mail amygrat@expfuture.org 

Amount of Funding Applicant 
currently receives from the 
Harbor Department (for any and 

all programs/projects) 

$335,000 

Funding Request for Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024 (July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024) 

Transmittal 1

213/486



Port of Los Angeles 

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

List the exact amount of funding being requested: $ 450,000 

Note: funding will be awarded on an annual basis based on the budget allocated by the Los Angeles Board of 
Harbor Commissioners. Fund award in prior years does not represent what will be awarded in Fiscal Year 2023- 
2024. The right is reserved to fund up to the amount requested. 

214/486



Port of Los Angeles 

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

 

 

 
 Event/Program/Project Information 

Event/Program/Project History: 
International Trade Education Programs, Inc. (ITEP) dba EXP, was established in 1999 by maritime 
industry leaders and founded by a former Port of Los Angeles Harbor Commissioner. Their goal was to 
bridge the gap between the port industry's need for a skilled workforce and the local high school's 
struggle to graduate students. EXP recognized early on that the industry was changing in response to 
technology and external forces, and schools need assistance in adapting programs to respond to new 
industry realities.  
 
In 2018, EXP undertook a thorough review of its organizational strategy and stakeholder perceptions, 
developing five-year strategic plan including a new brand identity that would capture the depth and 
breadth of EXP program services throughout our service area. EXP - The opportunity engine launched 
on September 2018.  
 
EXP has grown exponentially since its inception starting with a handful of students in one academy, 
International Trade Academy, at Phineas Banning High School in Wilmington. In 2013, EXP programs 
grew and were available to 1,500 students. By 2019, programs were available to more than 6,000 
students in Southern California. Today, EXP programs are made available to approximately 8,200 
students at 13 schools across five school districts. For more than two decades, EXP has improved the 
lives and career outcomes of 10’s of thousands of students and prepared them for success in their next 
journey beyond high school. 
 
With a successful 24-year history, EXP is recognized as a premier career-focused youth workforce 
development partner in Southern California, with a team of 22 full-time staff members and more than 400 
volunteer industry professionals. 
 

Describe the Event/Program/Project Purpose & Goals:  
EXP’s mission is to prepare students for a better life. Our programs help young people gain experience, 
unlock doors and build the confidence they need to succeed in school, career and life. The EXP vision is 
every student having equal access to education, experiences and career opportunities helping them 
reach their full potential.  
 
The goal of EXP is to bring industry and schools together to build tomorrow’s workforce and provide 
career opportunities to students from underserved communities throughout Southern California. 
Working both virtually and on-campus at partner schools, our programs help schools deliver an 
innovative, career-based curriculum that makes classroom learning relevant and exciting. Our programs 
gradually expose students to greater opportunities and more challenging experiences that prepare them 
for college, career and life through enhancing career pathways, small learning communities, Linked 
Learning initiatives and other career-based educational programs. 
 
It is well documented that, “There are labor shortages at every part of the supply chain that are having 
an impact on companies of all stripes. It’s also affecting economic growth locally, regionally and 
nationally.” (Companies need more workers to help resolve supply chain problems - cnbc.com). In one 
survey it was reported that more than half of all logistics managers do not expect the supply chain to 
return to normal until 2024 or after. Further, respondents said they were, “Worried about the mental 
health of their workforce. Results cited these as problems: employee burnout, shortage of employees 
with the right skills, and hiring to address the skills gap.” www.cnbc.com/2022/12/23/supply-chain  

 

215/486



Port of Los Angeles 

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

 

 

EXP is the opportunity engine. We work to close the skills gap and increase social capital. The long-
standing, partnership between POLA and EXP has exposed and trained thousands of students in areas 
related to international trade, transportation, logistics, and the overall goods movement. Many have 
pursued maritime related pathways post-high school and/or moved into Port-related careers as a result 
of their exposure and participation in EXP programs. Each year volunteer professionals representing 
approximately 40 Port tenants and goods movement industry companies partner with EXP to ensure 
Port-related careers are highlighted across all of our programs and activities. 
 
EXP’s core activities are designed to engage students in multiple ways throughout their high school 
experience including: 1) off-campus career discovery and exploration day events, where students learn 
about careers in an Port-related, maritime, logistics and transportation industries and have the 
opportunity to interact with a variety of industry professionals; 2) industry mentoring opportunities 
including a spring Young Fellows Program series; 3) a year-round guest speaker series; and 4) a 12-
month Internship Program, featuring a series of career-readiness workshops, mock interviews, employer 
interviews, and a high quality paid work-based learning placement (internship) in a supportive 
professional environment.  
 
The EXP team works in collaboration with industry, education, administrative, student, and community 
partners to consider barriers and challenges, effectively plan activities, and deliver services that are 
responsive to student and community needs. Our team is committed to maximizing our EXP-supported 
students’ workforce development experiences and their exposure to college and career opportunities. 
Services are provided on a July 1 – June 30 fiscal year.  
 
Specific career discovery and exploration events, workforce development programs and services offered 
by EXP include the following:  
Internship Program: www.expfuture.org/internship  
A high-impact, year-long journey for 11th grade students brings together employers, educators, and 
parents to prepare high school students for tomorrow’s workplace through career-readiness workshops 
and paid, hands-on internship experiences with industry partners. 
 
GPS Your Future® Career Discovery Event: www.expfuture.org/gpsyourfuture  
The annual GPS career discovery event often serves as a first-time opportunity for 9th and 10th grade 
high school youth to explore the career marketplace, discover a multitude of career pathways that may 
peak their career interests, and network with accomplished professionals.  
 
Women in STEM (WiS) Career Day: https://www.expfuture.org/women-in-stem 
The WiS event exposes our female students to STEM-related career opportunities, engage them in 
breakout sessions featuring successful women professionals from STEM fields across trade, maritime 
and logistics industries. Students have a chance to explore hands-on STEM related career 
demonstrations. 
 
Career EXPedition – Cal Maritime 
The intensive weeklong fieldtrip held over the summer on the CSU Maritime Academy campus in 
Vallejo, CA, convenes approximately 30 students from across the Harbor Region. Students experience 
hands-on maritime career education and marine safety programming  
 
Young Adult and Alumni Program: www.expfuture.org/fuelyourfuture  
We also support young adults and EXP alumni during their college and career pursuits, providing 
employment resources, professional development, and networking opportunities. All to further ensure 
their personal development, professional growth, and career success.  
 

216/486



Port of Los Angeles 

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

 

 

Young Fellows Program (YFP): www.expfuture.org/youngfellows  
Now in its 3rd year, YFP engages and empowers young boys of color during a series of meaningful and 
impactful mentorship sessions. The goals are for students to emerge with a heightened sense of self-
worth and confidence, a game plan for post-high school success, and a new group of mentors who can 
help guide and support them. 
 
EXP is designated and approved partner of Los Angeles Unified School District (Partners for Student 
Success Program [PFSS]), Compton Unified School District, Centinela Valley Unified High School 
District, Orange County Department of Education, Barstow Unified School District, Long Beach Unified 
School District. We also retain a partnership agreement with Intellectual Virtues Academy, a Long 
Beach-based charter school. 
 
Below includes our list of EXP-supported high schools: 

-Carson: 22328 Main St, Carson 
-Gardena: 1301 W 182nd St, Gardena 
-Intellectual Virtues Academy (IVA), 1637 Long Beach Blvd, Long Beach  
-Lawndale: 14901 S Inglewood Ave, Lawndale  
-Leuzinger: 4118 Rosecrans Ave, Lawndale  
-Long Beach Polytechnic (Poly): 1600 Atlantic Avenue, Long Beach 
-Manuel Dominguez: 15301 S San Jose Ave, Compton  
-Narbonne: 24300 S Western Ave, Harbor City 
-Phineas Banning: 1527 Lamke Ave, Wilmington 
-Rancho Dominquez Prep: 4110 Santa Fe Ave, Long Beach 
-San Pedro: 1001 W 15th St, San Pedro 
-Barstow: 430 S 1st Ave, Barstow 

            -Central: 405 N 2nd St, Barstow  
 
EXP historically serves a majority of its students from low-income families within under-represented 
communities throughout the Greater Los Angeles Area with a majority living in Qualified Opportunity 
Zones (QOZs). The following reflects the current ethnic breakdown of our student population: Latinx-
70%, African American-15%, Asian and/or Pacific Islander-7%, Caucasian-5% and Native American-1% 
and Other-2%. Across all high schools EXP serves, an estimated 95% of the 8,200+ high school 
students we serve, ages 13-18, are youth of color; approximately 72% of our students are eligible for 
free/reduced priced lunches; and 10% are English Language Learners. (California Department of 
Education, August 2022). 
 
The following graphic delineates our EXP student-centric program model, including volunteer industry 
partner and community engagement opportunities, workforce development and career-readiness 
workshops and activities, and our pillars for implementing our signature programs to students throughout 
their high school journey. 

217/486



Port of Los Angeles 

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

 

 

 
Funding will continue to support program scaling and delivery of our career exploration and workforce 
development programs related to Port-related careers, as well as other high-wage, high-growth 
industries. The EXP program objectives are as follows:  
 
Objective 1: At least 8,200 high school students will be offered positive educational experiences that 
explore interests in Port-related careers, and/or other high-wage and high-growth careers. 
Activities: Students will participate in classroom presentations, regional and/or local college and/or 
career fairs/events, and other like activities or workshops. 
 
Objective 2: At least 200 EXP-supported high school students will be offered career-readiness training 
workshops related to Port-related careers and/or other high-wage and high-growth industries, 
supporting their desired college and/or career pathways. 
Activities: Students will participate in career-readiness workshops, job shadows, workplace tours and/or 
receive internship experience. 
 
Objective 3: At least 100 high school students will engage and network with professionals in Port-

related careers, and/or other high-wage and high-growth industry sectors. 
Activities: Students will participate in mentorship engagement sessions facilitated by various volunteer 
industry sector professionals, college and/or career goal setting exercises, and financial literacy and DEI 
awareness workshops.  
 
Objective 4: At least 75 EXP alumni and/or young adults (ages 18-24) will be offered Port and other 
career-related resources, professional development, referral information, support and/or networking 
opportunities. 
Activities: Interested alumni and young adults will participate in EXP’s Fuel Your Future (a one-week 
boot-camp style leadership and life skills development program), receive other career-related resources, 
referrals and support, and participate in networking opportunities, and receive guidance and/or access to 
our on-line entry-level career job-board. 
 

218/486



Port of Los Angeles 

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

 

 

EXP provides our future workforce with the necessary tools and resources to fuel economic growth and 
prosperity here in the Greater Harbor Area, throughout Southern California, and around the globe. All of 
our program components and activities are transformative in their design and are mission driven to meet 
the needs of our students and industry partners.  
 
It is important to note, that EXP has a planned executive change for FY 2023/24. After 12 years at the 
helm, Amy Grat will depart from her CEO role to explore other new and exciting challenges. Her years of 
thoughtful leadership and unwavering commitment to the EXP mission and its students has been 
inspirational and she will be leaving EXP in a very strong position for continued growth upon her 
departure.  
 
The EXP Management Team and Transition Committee of the Board have thoughtful and sound plans in 
place to ensure our annual results and long-term outcomes remain central to our program and mission 
delivery. The transition committee has engaged the search firm Envision Consulting to fill the CEO 
position, with Amy remaining in her position until a new leader is announced. 
 

– NEXUS STATEMENT – REQUIRED FOR ELIGIBILITY – In which ways does the   
event/program/project meet the Tidelands Trust Nexus requirement? 
As the founding entity for International Trade Education Programs, Inc. dba EXP, the Port of Los 
Angeles is always central to our mission and programs.  We seek to build the workforce for the Port’s 
tenants and to provide outreach and career education to the communities it serves, beginning with 
Wilmington, San Pedro and Harbor City, but also with the expectation of statewide public benefit to 
honor the Tidelands Trust. Working in partnership with the Port and local businesses and organizations, 
EXP helps students learn firsthand about maritime history, navigation, commerce and safety.  
 
In fact, an EXP student had this to say about her internship experience with POLA, “My favorite EXP 
experience was my internship at the Port of Los Angeles while I was a student in the International Trade 
Academy (ITA) at Phineas Banning High School. People always told me to push myself and gave me 
words of encouragement.” After high school, Magali went on to graduate college from Cal Maritime. “The 
help of EXP is the reason I am here today, the person I am today, and employed at Centerline Logistics.” 
Each year EXP helps students explore maritime careers and history through our large scale career days, 
guest speakers, job shadows, field trips, which may include the LA Waterfront, and internships.   
 
We work in collaboration with many Port tenants and partners, including the nonprofits like the USS 
Iowa, AltaSea, Cabrillo Marine Aquarium, the Banning Museum, the Marine Exchange of Southern 
California and North American Marine Environment Protection Association (NAMEPA) to raise 
awareness of the Port’s historic and ongoing importance and impact on our region, state, nation and the 
globe. Topics EXP students learn from our volunteers range from the entrepreneurial genius of General 
Phineas Banning to the importance of de-carbonization to avert global warming, all shared within the 
context of future Port- and maritime-related career opportunities. 
 
Students navigate Harbor waters and learn about the environment through trips with LAMI TopSail, as 
well as harbor boat tours. They learn about maritime safety through our partnerships with the U.S. Coast 
Guard and Cal Maritime. In cooperation with Cal Maritime, EXP coordinates an annual Career 
EXPedition, where after a week-long experience our students receive industry recognized certification in 
maritime safety through the CSU Maritime Academy training program. 
 
Through our strong, longstanding partnerships with Port tenants and leaders in the goods movement 
industry, EXP has the ability to expose students to maritime and global trade & logistics careers. Our 
Harbor Area industry partners include ACTA, PHL, Fenix Marine Services, APM Terminals, Avalon 
Freight Services, BNSF Railway, Catalina Express, Centerline Logistics, DCLI, Evergreen, Fast Lane 

219/486



Port of Los Angeles 

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

 

 

Transportation, Franco Trucking, Los Angeles World Airports, Marine Exchange, Metro Ports, PMSA, 
Ports America, Prologis, SA Recycling, SSA, TraPac, TTSI, Union Pacific, Watson Land Company, West 
Basin Container Terminal, Yusen Logistics, and Yusen Terminals. 
 
Partnering with POLA for the last 24 years has resulted in a generation of EXP alums spread across the 
Harbor Area and the State of California throughout a multitude of Port-related careers. Whether they go 
directly into port-related careers or not, all EXP alumni build a greater understanding of, and appreciation 
for, the critical value of the Port of Los Angeles as an economic driver and community partner. 
The Port’s partnership with EXP has also resulted in an engaged and enlightened rising leadership 
corps. EXP alums are working as educators to build future community success; alums are employed in 
high-wage and high-growth jobs at all local refineries. The Port of Los Angeles continues to support and 
inspire all EXP students to grow in their knowledge and leadership ultimately positively impacting their 
own communities. 
 
  Describe how the Event/Program/Project supports the Community Investment Grant Program   
goals:  
POLA support will allow EXP to continue to fuel student success through our important and innovative 
workforce development and career-education activities will be a key component to further scale EXP 
organizationally and programmatically, introducing more youth in the Harbor and greater Los Angeles 
Region to career opportunities in the Port and maritime and logistics industries, and beyond.  
 
Students in our programs are being transformed at their core. It is our intention to thoroughly and 
positively impact their confidence and belief in their potential. Through the relationships developed with 
EXP Program Managers, industry and community mentors, and our hundreds of volunteers, we 
empower our youth to see a future for themselves that is full of hope and success, which is self-designed 
through the awareness and experiences EXP makes accessible to them.  
 
EXP’s learning opportunities and experiences will open pathways to success for students from 
vulnerable communities. Further, EXP guides and supports students to help them flourish in their college 
and/or career experiences and whom will ultimately transition to contributing members of the workforce; 
thereby stimulating the regional economy. 
 
Throughout the program, and upon completion of the grant, EXP will be in a strong position to leverage 
support and matching funds from maritime industry and expand critical industry partnerships lending 
itself to more exposure and funding support translating to a growing footprint throughout Southern 
California. EXP looks forward to continuing our work, developing the talent and creating our next 
generation workforce by way of partnerships with funders like POLA. 
 
Aligned in purpose with POLA initiatives, EXP works to ensure that our next generation workforce is able 
to achieve self- and family-supporting careers, contribute to their thriving communities, and enjoy an 
improved overall quality of life. 
 

Explain how your Event/Program/Project could be affected by Covid or other health 
considerations and how you will accommodate any health protocols that may be in place at the 
time of your Event/Program/Project: 

The pandemic created enormous logistical challenges for our schools and students, as well impacted 
morale overall over the course of the past 2+ years. However, EXP was able to adapt and innovate as 
needed, despite a continually changing regulatory environment.  
 
Today, our experienced and trained staff are nimble and would be able to adjust quickly should we 
encounter a COVID re-surge, or other such health crisis, going forward. In fact, the technology 

220/486



Port of Los Angeles 

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

 

 

investments we made in 2020 continue to support our ability to deliver virtual and/or hybrid programs; 
our EXP staff are now experts in multiple on-line platforms making it possible to maintain programming 
should the threat of COVID or other health considerations arise.  
 
In an effort to counter staff burnout and exhaustion, which continue for employees on some level, EXP 
maintains a hybrid work environment, flexible schedules, and 2 company-sponsored “refueling days” 
available to staff throughout the year. 

 
  How do you plan to recognize the Port of Los Angeles for its grant?  
EXP will recognize the Port of Los Angeles as a Lead Partner. Recognition throughout the grant period 
includes: 
 

- Premium visibility on all EXP student program and partner-facing events, including but not limited 
to GPS Your Future® and Women in STEM Career Discovery Days, our Internship Program 
events, Young Fellows Program, Level Up workshops for young adults, and Fuel Your Future 
summer leadership program for young adults. This includes recognition on event signage, online 
and print promotional materials and verbal podium recognition. 

 
- Premium visibility on EXP general promotional materials including: 

- Logo recognition in our Annual Impact Report  
- EXPfuture.org website visibility –linked logo visibility on 1) the homepage rotating banner and 

2) on our Major Funders webpage. 
- Linked logo recognition in all EXP e-blasts including the EXP Insider e-newsletter and The 

Spark Alumni e-newsletter. The Insider has an average frequency of once a month and 
reach more than 7,000 EXP subscribers, including corporate partners, individual supporters, 
community and education partners. The Spark reaches more than 1,500 alumni every other 
month. 

 
- Diamond Sponsor recognition at the annual Oceans of Opportunity Awards and Scholarship 

Celebration, POLA support recognition includes event signage, online and print promotional 
materials, and verbal podium recognition. 

 
- Exclusive sponsorship of Career EXPedition – Cal Maritime. This includes recognition on 

program signage, online and print promotional materials, and verbal podium recognition. 
 
- Partnership recognition on all EXP social media platforms, e.g. Facebook, LinkedIn, Instagram, 

and Twitter pages as well as our YouTube channel. 
 

Evaluating Success – What are the metrics and methodology that you will use to evaluate the 
success of the event? (e.g. number of attendees at the event, number of students attending 
classes) 

EXP assesses 10th graders to measure an understanding of the connection between education and 
future success as well as the impact of their program experiences. This yearly survey establishes a 
baseline of attitudes and self-perception of one's own level of preparedness. Simultaneously, EXP 
administers a survey to 12th graders to determine college and career-readiness, assess career focus, 
and college enrollment plans. This survey measures growth in confidence, skill attainment, and self-
reporting of college to career readiness.  
 
Additionally, we assess the Internship Program from the employer and student perspectives. The 
number and types of industry engagement opportunities and industry partners are also tracked. EXP 
continuously tracks college and career trajectories of young alumni professionals who were part of EXP's  

221/486



Port of Los Angeles 

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

 

 

high school program.  
 
We also track the number of students who participate in each career exploration activity and business 
skills program. The number and types of industry engagement opportunities and industry partners are 
also tracked. 
 
EXP analyzes process, impact and outcome data collected from students, alumni, partners and 
volunteers annually to measure our program effectiveness, identify service delivery methods are 
efficient, and that are students’ and constituents’ needs and expectations are met, to name a few.  
 
Following program implementation, evaluation data also: 
-provides EXP feedback on what program component(s) are successful and what part(s) need 
improvement 
-helps EXP set realistic goals and objectives 
-helps EXP to track how much progress we have made toward goals and share feedback to 
staff/partners to create a collective best-practice approach 
-ensures EXP program effectiveness 
-allows us to leverage EXP program (successes) to scale programming to more students, build capacity, 
and cultivate new and existing partner relationships 
 
Our aim is to deliver quality programs and services to enrich our students’, alumni, and partners’ 
experiences and ensure a better quality of life for them today and into their future. This only happens 
because of the diligence in collecting and analyzing our data, which serves to support and ensure that 
our program aim is on target and meeting the needs of our students and industry partners. 
 
Further to our accomplishments, last year’s evaluation results showed that 94% of our EXP-supported 
students graduated high school compared to 86% of students within LAUSD. Also, we recently 
conducted an alumni survey to find out where they are in their college or career journey. When asked 
how EXP programs helped in pursuit of their college and/or career we received the following feedback; 
82% learned new skills, 76% gained confidence, 59% expanded their network and 40% chose a career 
path. We have exposed thousands of EXP-supported high school students to college opportunities and 
careers in STEM and/or other high-wage and high-growth industry sectors. 
 

Impact results from participation in EXP programs and activities for students and industry partners may 
also include: 
-Improved student engagement by contextualizing curriculum with industry engagement 
-Demonstrated knowledge of workforce development skills improving student college &/or career 
success  
-Greater student awareness of, and access to, high-wage and high-growth job and college opportunities 
-Providing our various industry sector partners greater workforce diversity  
-Providing industry with a skilled, local talent-pool to sustain local industries in high-wage and high-
growth sectors 
-Increased alignment of workforce to community needs 
-Students’ exposure to workforce development training will help to close local workforce talent gap 
-A raised standard of living for local communities 
 

222/486



 

 

 Applicant Signature 

I certify that the information contained in this Port of Los Angeles Application for Community 
Investment Grant Program is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Printed Name:  Amy L. Grat, CEO 

Signature: 

 
Date: May 5, 2023 

 

 
Electronic copy of the full application, company logo and photo 

due by 4:00 p.m., Monday, May 8, 2023 to: 

 
 

 

Community@portla.org 

Subject Line: FY 23-24 Community Investment Grants 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

223/486



 

 

 224/486



 

 

 225/486



 

 

POLA Budget - $450,000  
 

2023-24 Port of Los Angeles  
Community Investment Grants Program 

 
EXP Budget Request 

 

  

Total Organization Operating Budget (projected-approval set for June Board meeting) $2,920,500 

Total Funding Request $450,000 

    

Program Expenses* $390,000 

Internship Program – full year program for 150-200 high school juniors  $75,000 

GPS Your Future® Career Discovery Event – fall 2023 – serving 600+ high school students   $55,000 

Women in STEM Career Day Event – spring 2024 – serving 500+ female high school students  $50,000 

Young Adult & Alumni Programs  $30,000 

Guest speaker series, work place tours and other school-based career-exploration activities  $50,000 

Cal Maritime “Career EXPedition” Trip  $40,000 

Employer Recruitment and Industry Volunteer Engagement  $30,000 

Program supplies, printing, travel/meetings $35,000 

Program assessments and impact evaluations $25,000 

  

Operations Expenses $60,000 

24th Annual Oceans of Opportunity awards & scholarship event – spring 2024 (sponsorship) $30,000 

Facilities, insurance, utilities, IT services, etc. $20,000 

Media and marketing communications materials and services 
  

$10,000 

Total Expenses $450,000 

*Program expenses above do not represent EXP’s total program budget.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

             

 

 

226/486



 

 

EXP Projected FY 2023-2024 Budget 

*to be approved at June 2023 Board Meeting 

 

 
Description 

 
Amount 

Support and Revenue  

Gov't Grants & Contracts 940,500 

Private Grants and Foundations 577,500 

Corporate Donations 632,500 

Individual Donations 302,500 

Other Income 1,100 

Total Support 2,454,100 

Oceans of Opportunity 412,500 

Total Restricted Contributions 64,900 

Total Support and Revenue $2,931,500 

  

Expense  

Payroll Expense 2,116,074 

Employee Benefits 57,512 

Academic Scholarships Restricted 18,700 

Contract Services 105,050 

Facilities and Equipment 85,932 

 
Program Expenses (Restricted) 

 
13,750 

Supplies, Printing & Telephone 54,340 

Marketing, Insurance & Subscriptions 106,681 

Fundraising Scholarship Dinner 104,500 

Fundraising Other Events 1,100 

Travel and Meetings 19,631 

Supporting Services Expenses 228,800 

Total Expense $2,912,070 

  

Preliminary Surplus/ (Deficit) 
BU23 

$19,430 

Other Income/ (Expense)  

Unrealized Gains and Losses 5,500 
  

Budgeted Surplus/ (Deficit) $24,930 

 

227/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

228/486



LOS ANGELES HARBOR DEPARTMENT 
GRANT AGREEMENT NO. 

1. Parties. This Grant Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES, a municipal corporation ("City"), acting by and through its Board of Harbor 
Commissioners ("Board"), and International Trade Education Programs, Inc. (dba EXP), a non-profit 
corporation, 2417 E. Carson Street, Suite 200, Carson, CA 90810 ("Grantee"). This Agreement sets forth 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to use the grant award monies as set forth herein. 

2. Grant Scope of Work. Grantee has submitted a Port of Los Angeles Community Investment 
Grant ("Grant") Application, which has been approved for funding by City. Grantee hereby agrees to 
diligently conduct, perform and carry out the programs and services as set forth in Exhibit A. Grantee shall 
also prominently display a plaque, banner, signage or publication announcement declaring that Grant 
support was provided by the Port of Los Angeles and include the Department's Port logo (in accordance 
with Harbor Department use guidelines). Grantee shall provide to City any Grant event member/attendee 
information as practicable. The Grant program and services in Exhibit A and the additional activities set 
forth in this paragraph 2 shall comprise the "Grant Scope of Work." 

All events will be subject to a post-execution audit and a site visit. 

3. Term. This Agreement shall be effective from the date it is executed on behalf of both parties 
and shall continue in effect for a period of two years from its effective date. This Grant is made with the 
understanding that City has no obligation to provide additional grants or support to Grantee. 

4. Termination Due to Non-Appropriation of Funds. This Agreement is subject to the provisions of 
the Los Angeles City Charter which, among other things, precludes the City from making any expenditure 
of funds or incurring any liability, including contractual commitments, in excess of the amount appropriated 
thereof. 

The City, in awarding this Agreement, is expected to appropriate sufficient funds to meet the 
estimated expenditure of funds through June 30 of the current fiscal year and to make further appropriations 
in each succeeding fiscal year during the life of the Agreement. However, the Board is under no legal 
obligation to do so. 

The City, its boards, officers, and employees are not bound by the terms of this Agreement or 
obligated to make payment thereunder in any fiscal year in which the Board does not appropriate funds 
therefore. The Grantee is not entitled to any compensation in any fiscal year in which funds have not been 
appropriated for the Agreement by the Board. 

Although the Grantee is not obligated to perform any work under the Agreement in any fiscal year 
in which no appropriation for the Agreement has been made, the Grantee agrees to resume performance 
of the work required by the Agreement on the same terms and conditions for a period of sixty (60) days 
after the end of the fiscal year if an appropriation therefore is approved by the Board within that 60-day 
period. The Grantee is responsible for maintaining all insurance and bonds during this 60-day period until 
the appropriation is made; however, such extension of time is not compensable. 

If in any subsequent fiscal year funds are not appropriated by the Board for the work required by 
the Agreement, the Agreement shall be terminated. However, such termination shall not relieve the parties 
of liability for any obligation previously incurred. 

5. Grant Award and Payment. 

(a) Subject to the limitations set forth below, pursuant to Section 5.4 7 of Chapter 4, Article 1 of the 
City's Administrative Code which authorizes advance funding for services performed through grants, City 
agrees to pay and Recipient agrees to accept for performance of the Grant Scope of Work, a Grant in the 

Transmittal 2
229/486



total amount not to exceed six hundred and ninety-two thousand, three hundred dollars ($692,300). 
Grantee shall use the Grant funds solely for the purpose of the Grant Scope of Work. 

(b) Grantee's receipt of payment is subject to its prior submittal and the Director of Community 
Relations' written approval of deliverables set forth in the Grant Scope of Work, if further detailed 
deliverables are required by the Director of Community Relations beyond that set forth in the Grant Scope 
of. 

(c) Upon approval of the deliverables by the Director of Community Relations, Grantee shall submit 
an itemized statement setting forth the amount due for the applicable phase or task of the Grant Scope of 
Work. Each such statement shall be signed by the Grantee and shall include the following certification: 

"I certify under penalty of perjury that the above bill is just and correct according to 
the terms of Agreement No. and that payment has not been received. 

Grantee's Signature 

(d) Grantee must include on the face of each itemized invoice submitted for payment its Business 
Tax Registration Certificate number, as required at Paragraph 12 of this Agreement. No statement will be 
processed for payment by City without this number shown thereon. All statements shall be approved by 
the Executive Director or his/her designee prior to payment. All statements due and payable and found to 
be in order shall be paid as soon as, in the ordinary course of City business, the same may be approved, 
audited and paid. 

Grantee shall submit appropriate supporting documents with each invoice. Such documents may 
include without limitation, receipts, copies of promotional materials, or reports confirming tasks and activities 
performed. The City may require, and Grantee shall provide, all documents reasonably required to 
determine whether amounts on the invoice are allowable expenses under this Agreement. 

Grantee shall submit to City a mandatory final report with the final invoice, outlining the delivered 
services and a copy of all materials mentioning the Port of Los Angeles/Harbor Department at the 
conclusion of the Grant project. 

All statements are subject to audit. Grantee is not required to submit support for direct costs items 
of $25 or less. 

(e) For payment and processing, all statements should be mailed to the following address: 

Accounts Payable Section 
Harbor Department, City of Los Angeles 
PO Box 191 
San Pedro, CA 90733-0191 

6. Recordkeeping and Audit Rights. 

(a) Grantee shall keep and maintain full, complete and accurate books of accounts and records of 
the services performed, expenditures made and payments received under this Grant separately in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied, which books and records 
shall be readily accessible to and open for inspection and copying at the premises by City, its auditors or 
other authorized representatives. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, failure to do so 
shall constitute a conclusive waiver of any right to compensation for such services as are otherwise 
compensable hereunder. Such books and records shall be maintained by Grantee for a period of three (3) 
years after completion of services to be performed under this Agreement or until all disputes, appeals, 
litigation or claims arising from this Agreement have been resolved. 

2 

230/486



(b) During the term of this Agreement, City may audit, review and copy any and all writings (as that 
term is defined in Section 250 of the California Evidence Code) of Grantee arising from or related to this 
Agreement or performance of the Grant Scope of Work, whether such writings are (a) in final form or not, 
(b) prepared by Grantee, or any individual or entity acting for or on behalf of Grantee, and (c) without regard 
to whether such writings have previously been provided to City. Grantee shall provide City at Grantee's 
sole cost and expense a copy of all such writings within fourteen (14) calendar days of a written request by 
City. City's right shall also include inspection at reasonable times of the Grantee's office or facilities which 
are engaged in the performance of the Grant Scope of Work. Grantee shall, at no cost to City, furnish 
reasonable facilities and assistance for such review and audit. Grantee's failure to comply with this Article 
VI shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and shall entitle City to withhold any payment due 
under this Agreement until such breach is cured. 

7. Indemnification. 

(a) Indemnification. Except for the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the City, or any of 
its Boards, Officers, Agents, Employees, Assigns and Successors in Interest, Grantee undertakes and 
agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City and any of its Boards, Officers, Agents, Employees, 
Assigns, and Successors in Interest from and against all suits and causes of action, claims, losses, 
demands and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorney's fees (both in house and outside counsel) 
and cost of litigation (including all actual litigation costs incurred by the City, including but not limited to, 
costs of experts and grantees), damages or liability of any nature whatsoever, for death or injury to any 
person, including Grantee's employees and agents, or damage or destruction of any property of either party 
hereto or of third parties, arising in any manner by reason of the negligent acts, errors, omissions or willful 
misconduct incident to the performance of this Agreement by Grantee of any tier. Rights and remedies 
available to the City under this provision are cumulative of those provided for elsewhere in this Agreement 
and those allowed under the laws of the United States, the State of California, and the City. 

8. Affirmative Action. Grantee agrees not to discriminate in its employment practices against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of employee's or applicant's race, religion, ancestry, 
national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, marital status, domestic partner status or medical 
condition. All subcontracts awarded under or pursuant to this Agreement shall contain this provision. 

The provisions of Section 10.8.4 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code are incorporated herein 
and made a part hereof. 

9. Independent Grantee. Grantee, in the performance of the work required by this Agreement, is 
an independent grantee and not an agent or employee of City. Grantee shall not represent itself as an 
agent or employee of the City and shall have no power to bind the City in contract or otherwise. 

10. Conflict of Interest. It is hereby understood and agreed that the parties to this Agreement have 
read and are aware of the provisions of Section 1090 et seq. and Section 87100 et seq. of the California 
Government Code relating to conflict of interest of public officers and employees, as well as the Los Angeles 
Municipal Code (LAMC) Municipal Ethics and Conflict of Interest provisions of Section 49.5.1 et seq. and 
the Conflict of Interest Codes of the City and Department. All parties hereto agree that they are unaware 
of any financial or economic interest of any public officer or employee of City relating to this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, it is further understood and agreed that if such 
financial interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, City may immediately terminate this 
Agreement by giving written notice thereof. 

11. Governing Law/ Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California, without reference to the conflicts of law, rules and principles of such 
state. The parties agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection with this Agreement shall be 
tried and litigated exclusively in the state or federal courts located in the County of Los Angeles, State of 
California, in the judicial district required by court rules. 

3 

231/486



12. Business Tax Registration Certificate. The Grantee represents that it has obtained and 
presently holds the Business Tax Registration Certificate(s) required by the City's Business Tax Ordinance 
(Article 1, Chapter 2, Sections 21.09 et seq. of the Los Angeles Municipal Code). The Grantee shall 
maintain, obtain as necessary, all such Certificates required of it under said Ordinance and shall not allow 
any such Certificate to be revoked or suspended. 

13. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN). Grantee declares that its authorized Taxpayer 
Identification Number (TIN) is . No payments will be made under this Agreement without 
a valid TIN. 

14. Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders/Notices of Assignments. The Grantee is obligated to 
fully comply with all applicable state and federal employment reporting requirements for the Grantee's 
employees. The Grantee shall certify that the principal owner(s) are in compliance with any Wage and 
Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment applicable to them personally. The Grantee shall 
fully comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignments in 
accordance with Cal. Family Code§§ 5230 et seq. The Grantee shall maintain such compliance throughout 
the term of the Agreement. 

15. Equal Benefits Policy. The Board of Harbor Commissioners of the City of Los Angeles adopted 
Resolution No. 6328 on January 12, 2005 agreeing to adopt the provisions of Los Angeles City Ordinance 
172,908 as amended, relating to Equal Benefits, Section 10.8.2.1 et seq. of the Los Angeles Administrative 
Code, as a policy of the Harbor Department. Grantee shall comply with the policy wherever applicable. 
Violation of the policy shall entitle the City to terminate any Agreement with Grantee and pursue any and 
all other legal remedies that may be available. 

16. State Tidelands Grants. This Agreement is entered into in furtherance of and as a benefit to 
the State Tidelands Grant and the trust created thereby. Therefore, this Agreement is at all times subject 
to the limitations, conditions, restrictions and reservations contained in and prescribed by the Act of the 
Legislature of the State of California entitled "An Act Granting to the City of Los Angeles the Tidelands and 
Submerged Lands of the State Within the Boundaries of Said City," approved June 3, 1929, (Stats. 1929, 
Ch. 651 ), as amended, and provisions of Article VI of the Charter of the City of Los Angeles relating to such 
lands. Grantee agrees that any interpretation of this Agreement and the terms contained herein must be 
consistent with such limitations, conditions, restrictions and reservations. 

17. No Assignment. This Agreement and the Grant awarded hereunder is not assignable by 
Grantee to any other person or entity. Any attempt to assign the performance of this Agreement or Grant 
funds shall be null and void and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 

18. Remedies. In the event that Grantee fails to perform the Grant Scope of Work and/or City 
determines in its sole discretion that Grantee has received Grant funds without performance of the Grant 
Scope of Work or has otherwise breached this Agreement, City may refuse to make Grant payments to 
Grantee and/or require Grantee to return or repay to City, any Grant funds received that are unearned by 
Grantee's failure to perform all or any portion of the Grant Scope of Work. These remedies shall be in 
addition to any other remedies available under applicable law. 

4 

232/486



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date to the left 
of their signatures. 

Dated: _ 

Dated: November 9, 2023 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALlTY 
tJo\16,\l\oe.( lb - , 20~3 

HYDEE FELDSTEIN SOTO, City Attorney 
Steven Y. Otera, General Counsel 

~ By _ 
Helen Sok, Deputy/Assistant 

THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
HARBOR DEPARTMENT 

By _ 

EUGENE D. SEROKA 
Executive Director 

Attest: _ 
AMBER M. KLESGES 
Board Secretary 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE EDUCATION 
PROGRAMS, INC., dba EXP, 
a non-profit corporation 

By /~a/4 W66c/4., 
Type Name: Telebah Woods 

Ty~==air 
By~ Type 
Name: Mary ran 
Type Title: Chief Executive Officer 

Account# 52031 W.O.# 
Ctr/Div# 0220 Job Fae.# 
Proj/Prog' # _00_0 _ 

Budoet FY: Amount: 
1023-2.t S346.150 
2014-25 S3.t6,150 

TOTAL 5692..300 
For Acct/Budget Div. Use Only: - 
!Verified by: 

7~---· tlrgbrfao-.o=, ,...~ 

!Verified Funds Available:-'-'-~--·· __ .,.,,,_""'_""'_'"_"""'_ 

Date Approved: _1_1_/_9_/2_3 _ 

Rev. 11/07/23 

5 

233/486



EXHIBIT A - GRANT SCOPE OF WORK 

The Grant Program activities and deliverables set forth below, together with the required actions in 
Section 2 of this Grant Agreement, comprise the Grant Scope of Work. 

Grantee shall perform the following for "Preparing the Next Generation Workforce" during the period of 
July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 and July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025: 

1. Produce and facilitate programs to prepare high school students for careers in Port 
related industry sectors, including international trade, transportation and logistics, 
advanced manufacturing, engineering, environmental science, as well as 
entrepreneurship and finance. 

2. Maintain relationships and programs at nine high schools in Wilmington, San Pedro, 
Harbor City, Carson, Gardena, and other Greater Los Angeles communities, serving 
more than 6,300 students providing education and job-skills development, and engaging 
POLA and maritime industry volunteers in career exploration activities. 

3. Provide an annual report to the Port's Director of Community Relations on the activities 
and successes of the program. 

Grantee shall recognize the support of the Port of Los Angeles by: 

1. Premium visibility on all EXP student program and partner-facing events, including but 
not limited to GPS Your Future® and Women in STEM Career Discovery Days, our 
Internship Program events, Young Fellows Program, Level Up workshops for young 
adults, and Fuel Your Future summer leadership program for young adults. This includes 
recognition on event signage, online and print promotional materials and verbal podium 
recognition. 

2. Premium visibility on EXP general promotional materials including: 
a. Logo recognition in our Annual Impact Report 
b. EXPfuture.org website visibility -linked logo visibility on 

i. the homepage rotating banner 
ii. on our Major Funders webpage. 

c. Linked logo recognition in all EXP e-blasts including the EXP Insider e-newsletter 
and The Spark Alumni e-newsletter. The Insider has an average frequency of 
once a month and reaches more than 7,000 EXP subscribers, including 
corporate partners, individual supporters, community and education partners. 
The Spark reaches more than 1,500 alumni every other month. 

3. Diamond Sponsor recognition at the annual Oceans of Opportunity Awards and 
Scholarship Celebration, POLA support recognition includes table at the event, event 
signage, online and print promotional materials, and verbal podium recognition. 

4. Exclusive sponsorship of Career EXPedition - Cal Maritime. This includes recognition on 
program signage, online and print promotional materials, and verbal podium recognition. 

5. Partnership recognition on all EXP social media platform 

6 

234/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 3

235/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 1 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 

Transmittal 3
236/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 2 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

237/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 3 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Port of Los Angeles  

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

Please include additional pages, if necessary, for any of the responses 

Applicant Information 

Organization Name  
(include electronic file with logo) 

Los Angeles Maritime Institute 

Tax Exempt Non-Profit Entity 
§501(c)(3) Status 

ATTACHED – Please see Appendix 1: 501(c)(3) IRS Designation 

City of L.A. Business Tax 
Registration Certificate 
(BTRC) Number 

0000594943-0001-4  ATTACHED - Appendix 2: City of Los Angeles 
Business Tax Registration Certificate 

Event/Program/Project 
Name 

TopSail Youth Program 

Date(s) July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 & July 1, 2024 through June 30, 
2025 

Location(s) 
Departures and Arrivals will be from: our dock (Berth 78) or from the 
Long Dock, both of which are in West Harbor, or from the Downtown 
Harbor Cut, or from the Wilmington Waterfront Dock at Banning’s 
Landing in Wilmington.  The programs will be executed throughout the 
Port of Los Angeles and near coastal waters. 

Brief Description (more 
detailed information to be 
included on next page) 

LAMI provides transformational character and workforce development 
and Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math (STEM) experiential 
education through its TopSail Youth Program.  We serve youth from 
our predominantly under-resourced communities. Program academic 
offerings follow the Next Generation Science Standards and other 
California Board of Education school expectations. 

Estimated Attendance Expect to serve 4,620 students and 462 teachers/chaperones on 154 
sails. 

Free or Ticketed Event?  
Anticipated ticket price? 

LAMI TopSail Youth Program comes at no cost to POLA-sponsored 
School and Community groups, with maybe the exception of the cost 
of incidentals such as provisions. LAMI will work to raise funds to 
cover all shortfalls between full cost of program execution and this 
sponsorship. 

Budget ATTACH Please see Appendix 3: Proposed FY 2023/2024 LAMI Budget 

Contact Name Bruce Heyman, Executive Director 

Contact Address Berth 73, Suite 2 

San Pedro, CA 90731 

Contact Phone o: (310) 833-6055      c: (949) 289-8400 

Contact E-Mail Director@LAMITopSail.org 

238/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 4 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Amount of Funding Applicant 
currently receives from the 
Harbor Department (for any and 

all programs/projects) 

2022/23: $260,000 

Funding Request for Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024 (July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024) 

 
List the exact amount of funding being requested: $__$400,000________ 
 
Note: funding will be awarded on an annual basis based on the budget allocated by the Los Angeles Board of 
Harbor Commissioners.  Fund award in prior years does not represent what will be awarded in Fiscal Year 2023-
2024. The right is reserved to fund up to the amount requested. 

Port of Los Angeles  

Community Investment Grant Program 

APPLICATION - Fiscal Year 2023-24 

Event/Program/Project Information 
Event/Program/Project History: 
The TopSail Youth Program was conceived in the late 1980’s when Jim Gladson, a local LAUSD science 
teacher and sailor, witnessed the positive effect that the experience of sailing at sea had upon even his 
most challenged alternative school students. In 1992, Captain Gladson and a circle of passionate 
associates formalized the experiential education TopSail Youth Program and founded the Los Angeles 
Maritime Institute, LAMI, a 501(c)(3) nonprofit to deliver the keystone program to youth from under-
resourced and marginalized communities in Los Angeles region. An abstract written by Captain Gladson 
at the founding of LAMI titled "More Than Just a Boat Ride" (available at lamitopsail.org) summarizes, 
"The sailing school vessel provides an educational venue, rich in potential for the development of 
knowledge, skills, and attitudes that are both necessary for the education of today's youth, and difficult 
to teach in the classroom. The sailing school experience enriches, validates, and challenges the 
conventional school curricula. Science, mathematics, physics, biology, geography, history, literature, 
and even poetry suddenly come to life in this real world classroom."  
 
The TopSail Youth Program utilizes sail training to provide youth with the real-life challenges that  
develop the knowledge, skills and attitudes needed to stay in school and become healthy, self-reliant, 
productive adults. 
 
Over the last 30 years, LAMI and the TopSail Youth Program have grown and evolved to better 
address the needs of youth in our communities, and the Port of Los Angeles has been an active 
partner in this transformation. In a region with hundreds of thousands of children without access to 
immersive educational opportunities and vulnerable to drugs, crime, and a future of societal 
dependency, the need was there for LAMI’s impact to grow. Started as a program to serve several 
hundred children aboard its 70’ schooner and first tall ship the Swift of Ipswich, would later grow by 
adding more vessels. LAMI, in partnership with the Port of Los Angeles, built the twin brigantines, Irving 
Johnson and Exy Johnson, on the San Pedro waterfront in the area that is now the Downtown Harbor 
Cut. This process brought hundreds of volunteers and workers to assist with the construction and 
attracted thousands of spectators. The two educational sailing vessels, each with a capacity to hold 45 
young participants and educators, were launched in 2002 and are the Official Tall Ships and Maritime 
Ambassadors of the City of Los Angeles. This construction and ongoing maintenance would not have 
been possible without POLA’s participation. 
 
To realize LAMI’s full capacity capability, restoration of the Swift of Ipswich was critically needed. The 
vessel has been out of commission since 2006. Fortunately, with a rigorous fundraising campaign and 
the Port granting LAMI a revocable permit for additional yard space along with Building G located within 
what is now West Harbor, the Swift of Ipswich restoration is nearly complete. Once she is returned to 

239/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 5 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

service and obtains her United States Coast Guard Certificate of Inspection, we will begin operating 
programs hopefully out of the Wilmington Waterfront’s Banning’s Landing in Wilmington. We have been 
working closely with Port Engineering to insure that the redesigned Wilmington Waterfront will 
accommodate all of LAMI’s the vessels. 
 
On average, LAMI has grown to serving approximately 7,000 students annually in a non COVID-19 Year. 
During the pandemic and the necessary shut down of in-person activities for area youth we quickly 
pivoted to providing vital educational material both asynchronously and synchronously with students 
scheduled virtual classes.  Prior to the pandemic, LAMI realized five-years of healthy growth in the 
number of students served, delivering more than 18% year over year sequential growth. While the 
pandemic eliminated LAMI’s ability to meet its service goal in FY20/21, LAMI’s agile effort to mitigate 
the cavernous learning loss of young people through online educational offerings allowed us projected 
to deliver more than 8,000 student hours of online instruction and digital resources to 3,500 students in 
the 20-21 school year.  We are working to re-establish our five-year strategic plan of doubling the number 
of students we serve and still achieve delivering 15,000 student sailing days annually by 2026. Bringing 
the additional capacity of the Swift of Ipswich on line in Wilmington will be key to achieving this goal. 
Please see POLA and LAMI historical funding relationship in Appendix 4: Historical Funding and a 
summary of POLA funded TopSail Youth Program sails and contractual obligation in Appendix 5: 
Program Sails Sponsored by Port of Los Angeles to see our commitment to always exceed our 
commitment to the Port of Los Angeles. 

 
Describe the Event/Program/Project Purpose & Goals: 
LAMI’s foundational TopSail Youth Program is an experiential award-winning education and adventure 
experience aboard our twin brigantines, the Exy Johnson and Irving Johnson, traditionally rigged 110-
foot wooden replicates of the merchant ships from the Age of Exploration and the Age of Sail. The 
intended objectives of the TopSail Youth Program are to further STEM learning, advance ocean literacy, 
elevate environmental awareness, nurture social-emotional maturity, and develop skills and pathways 
of future opportunities for middle and high school-aged youth who may otherwise not have access to 
such transformative education.  
 
LAMI works with Port-approved Title 1 schools and community youth groups to provide the Program to 
middle and high school students from under-resourced communities in the Los Angeles region. 
Typically, the students come from one of the 15 City Council Districts.  The Program’s curriculum and 
activities are adaptable and customizable to meet the educational priorities of the group, and can consist 
of day sails, overnight voyages, or both. LAMI’s goal through its partnership with the Port of Los Angeles 
is to provide 154 sailing days to Port-approved schools, estimated to deliver a life changing educational 
experience to approximately 4,620 students.  
 
During the sails, the professional (paid and volunteer) crew guide students through various activities 
required to operate a complex, traditionally-rigged sailing vessel. This includes: turns (tricks) at the helm, 
navigation, maneuvering (tacks and wears), laying aloft to furl and unfurl the sails, keeping the vessel 
ship-shape, and cooking. Teachers can also choose to include activities that expose students to physics, 
marine biology, watershed ecology, plastics in the ocean and food supply designed to reinforce 
classroom learning in full support of the Next Generation Science Standards. Practical application of 
many Science, Technology, Engineering and Math (STEM) concepts on the ships creates an emotional 
connection with the subject matter and deepens students’ understanding.  
 
The TopSail Youth Program is designed to challenge the students mentally, physically and emotionally 
in a safe environment removed from their normal home, school, and community environment. The 
program fosters teamwork as a needed element to make a complex ship operate. It is designed to allow 
students to self-discover that they can imagine and reach beyond their perceived boundaries, giving 
them the confidence to avoid gangs, remain in school, and stay out of the penal system. All of the critical-
thinking skills needed to operate a large sailing vessel are identical to the skills needed to problem-solve 
and succeed in any profession or life in general. 

240/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 6 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NEXUS STATEMENT – REQUIRED FOR ELIGIBILITY – In which ways does the 
event/program/project meet the Tidelands Trust Nexus requirement? 
 
All of our programs are entirely consistent with the Los Angeles Tidelands Grant and the State of 
California’s Tidelands Trust Doctrine. 
 
LAMI programs, by necessity, “Navigate the Waters” of the Tidelands Trust. Our vessels are berthed 
on the LAMI docks at Berth 78, in the Downtown Harbor Cut, Long Dock at West Harbor, on the 
Ocean Research Barge (ORB) at AltaSea at the Port of Los Angeles or at the docks at Banning’s 
Landing Community Center on the Wilmington Waterfront; all of these locations are fully contained 
within the Tidelands Trust waters. Almost all of our programs depart and return to one of the above 
locations and 100% of the programs executed in partnership with the Port of Los Angeles operate 
within the Tidelands Trust waters.  
 
The TopSail Youth Program travels through the waters of the Port of Los Angeles and San Pedro Bay. 
Many of the TopSail Youth Program Marine Science activities focus on educating the student 
participants on “Marine Environmental Ecological Preservation” and use the waters of the Port 
(Tidelands Trust Waters and Lands) as the study system. 
 
Sailing and boating are considered “Water-Related Recreation” per the Tidelands Trust and 
Tidelands Trust Doctrine and are a necessary element of all of our programs including the TopSail 
Youth Program.  
 
While not specific to the request of this grant, the Los Angeles Maritime Institute also provides 
“Visitor-serving waterfront activities” and “Water-Related Recreation” for the general public via public 
and special event sails throughout the year. To the extent our educational programming schedule 
permits, we make our vessels available for important POLA and City of Los Angeles sponsored or 
supported events like the Holiday Harbor Boat Parade, the tree lighting, Harbor Tours, Juneteenth 
Celebrations and City of LA Holiday thank you Sails. LAMI will also be hosting its fifth Festival of Sail 
during Los Angeles Fleet Week, provides monthly public community sails, and monthly bilingual 
Marathon Explora la Costa/Explore the Coast education sails. LAMI’s Sea Scout youth crew Ship 1992 
are another example of “Water-Related Recreation” conducted at LAMI within the Tidelands Trust. 
Youth participants boat on the water once a month and complete training in boater safety. 
 

Describe how the Event/Program/Project supports the Community Investment Grant Program goals: 
 

 Promote the LA Waterfront in San Pedro and Wilmington, as active visitor destinations for the 
benefit of the State of California 

 
1. LAMI will continue to play a supporting role for the POLA’s sponsored or initiated events that have a 
nexus with the waterfront, youth education, jobs on the Waterfront.  Examples include the Harbor Holiday 
Parade, Juneteenth, Tree Lighting Ceremony, Ribbon Cutting, Shovel Ceremonies, LA Fleet Week, 
Harbor Tours, Thank You events to Port/City Employees, e.t.c. 
2. LAMI’s presence on the San Pedro waterfront promotes the LA Waterfront. LAMI’s twin brigantines 
are the Official Tall Ships and Maritime Ambassadors of the City of Los Angeles with specific intent to 
promote the LA Waterfront. Our operation is on the LA Waterfront and highly visible and attractive as a 
visitor serving amenity and destination. We plan to be a permanent part of the West Harbor development 
with our community serving mission in addition to being a tourist attraction. We have committed to 

241/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 7 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

berthing our third vessel, Swift of Ipswich, and to running programs out of Wilmington on Banning’s 
Landing on the Wilmington Waterfront once the development work there is completed. 
3. Throughout the year, we host various public events that promote the LA Waterfront. Examples include: 
Family Sunset Sails, Easter Egg Hunt at Sea, Valentine’s Day Dinner Sails, 4th of July Cannon Battle & 
Fireworks sails, Youth Summer Camps, Harbor History Tours, Fleet Week (Festival of Sail in Tall Ship 
Village), Haunted Harbor Halloween, Veteran’s Day, and the Holiday Parade in addition to our main 
TopSail Youth Program. 
4. LAMI’s tall ships dress up the LA Waterfront and the constant arrival and activity of over 7,000 students 
and educators per year helps to create a positive critical mass that supports an active waterfront. 
5. LAMI hosts two major Scout events annually in November that draws visiting Scout troops and ships. 
Over Veteran’s Day weekend, The Girl Scouts of Greater Los Angeles host the Tall Ship Adventure 
Weekend, sailing and overnighting on LAMI’s tall ships, with Girl Scout troops from all over Southern 
California. LAMI’s Sea Scout Ship 1992 co-ed youth crew, the only Sea Scout Ship at the LA Waterfront, 
attracts other Sea Scout Ships from across the western United States and Hawaii for the Southwestern 
Rendezvous. Hundreds of Scouts come to show off their skills and participate in this Thanksgiving 
weekend event. 
 
 
•Promote the Port of Los Angeles and the maritime commerce and Port-related jobs it generates 
 
1. Sailing aboard our tall ships provides direct exposure to our nation’s busiest port and a one-of-a-kind 
perspective and introduction to the plethora of job opportunities available at the Port of Los Angeles. 
Our students sail by massive container and bulk vessels with far away vessel names. The sounds and 
sights of trucks, operating cranes, vessels and navigational marks making sound signals along with train 
horns make it clear that this is like no other place in the City of Los Angeles. It is hard to imagine a more 
visceral way for our youth to come to grips with the enormity of the Port of Los Angeles, its connections 
with international trade at its very core, and the vastness of employment possibilities in the Port. 
2. In league with the Marine Exchange of Southern California the students find out about the vessels 
they see and pass in the harbor. Students are prompted in Program activities to reflect on the Port and 
vessel activity to broaden their awareness of the components that make up international maritime 
commerce. Where did they come from? What are they likely carrying? Where are they going? Are they 
full? Empty? What are the markings on the side of the vessel and what do they mean? A presentation 
for LAMI participants by the Executive Director of the Marine Exchange, Captain Louttit, is provided to 
students to learn more about the flow of commerce through the Port. 
3. During our typical program the students directly observe: the loading and unloading of container ships, 
the operations of tugboats assisting the arrival and departure of cargo vessels, Warehouse 1 and others, 
recreational vessels, the operations of the Port Pilots, the USCG base and the various vessels and 
aircraft involved, as well as, via the marine VHF radio, the activities of the Marine Exchange, and 
depending on their current activities the actions of the Port Police and the Port Fire Department. 
4. Most of our students have never been to the Port and even fewer have been on the water and able 
to view the Nation’s busiest Port where 40% of our goods are moved. This affords them a perspective 
that there is a much greater world and many more personal possibilities for them than what they see 
day in and day out in their communities. 
 
•Address impacts of the Port of Los Angeles and maritime operations on surrounding communities, 
including health, aesthetic and environmental impacts 
 
1. The Port of LA has made significant strides reducing negative environmental impacts within the 
Port. The land immediately adjacent to our docks, where the students embark, depart and sometimes 
perform some of their STEM experiments is a perfect example. This area used to be a fuel dock that 
has been remediated by the Port. It is now a vibrant area teeming with marine life that the students are 
able to observe. LAMI plays an important role in allowing students to personally view and experience 
the greatly improved environment in the Port of Los Angeles by getting them out into the Port and onto 
the Port’s waters. 

242/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 8 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

2. LAMI’s TopSail Youth Program provides participants a paradigm shift in the way they perceive the 
natural environment of the Port. To many of our students, viewing the Port from the water is an eye-
opening perspective from which they better understand the entire ecosystem and connections 
between human activities and the natural environment. 
3. Some of the negative impacts to the Port environment are the direct results of upland activities. 
Several of the Program’s detailed class curricula raise participants’ awareness to and deepen their 
understanding of the upstream pollution impacts to the marine environment. Participants become more 
impassioned and effective stewards for how individuals can do their part to lessen the negative 
impacts to the natural environment of the Port. 
 
•Promote and implement sustainable practices for preservation and conservation of natural resources 
in the PORT environment including renewable energy, water, air, wildlife, biological resources at the 
Port 
 
1. As our area of operation is throughout the Tidelands Trust or Port Complex we are uniquely able to 
expose the students to the impacts to the environment and hence the surrounding communities. Our 
programs already include science-at-sea components that have the students navigating to specific 
points where they collect water samples at various depths. The samples are then measured for various 
physical properties such as turbidity, temperature, PH, salinity and dissolved oxygen. 
2. In collaboration with AltaSea and other partners like NAMEPA, Algalita, and 5Gyres, we have 
developed a curriculum focused on sustainable sea life in the Harbor and the Pacific near coastal area 
to deliver to students. The students learn the importance of healthy habitat areas and the efforts of the 
Port to insure a healthy marine ecosystem. 
3. All LAMI vessels engines, both main propulsion and generators have been replaced with state of the 
art Tier III low emissions diesels.  While our vessels are equipped with the required auxiliary power, we 
turn these off as soon as possible to promote a clean and healthy habitat afforded by “green” sailing. 
These are the same types of sailing vessels that allow us to connect Angelinos to the nautical heritage 
that created the Port of Los Angeles long ago. 
4. During Program sails, students are educated on the sources and effects of upland pollution on the 
water quality vital to the marine ecosystem within the harbor. 
5. Much of the Program’s curriculum specifically targets environmental education. The Program 
partners with LAUSD’s Office of Outdoor Education’s Beyond the Bell Program, whose students sail at 
least 38 times per year. These jointly-designed sails are titled “Science at Sea,” where students are able 
to experience STEM learning aboard our vessels using an underwater robotic vehicle students build to 
obtain water samples from various levels and measure the temperature and PH. This program includes 
classroom work before and after the sail, laboratory sample processing at Point Fermin, and a five-hour 
sail aboard the tall ships on most Saturdays during the school year. 
6. Vessels are attached to shore power while dockside, eliminating the need for running the diesel 
generators. We also practice recycling both in the office and on the vessels and advocate for reducing 
disposable plastic use, including requiring reusable personal water bottles. 
 
• Provide Education, training and /or workforce development in the areas of: Shipping, fisheries, 
international trade and maritime industry Marine-related sciences and technology 
Port and maritime history Port and Marine-related safety and emergency management 
 
1. Our volunteers, standing crew, Captain and Mate share during the TopSail Youth Program sails with 
participants the paths to their jobs, the diversity of job types in maritime fields, and the 
requirements and credentials needed. Often, we are invited to schools to do a presentation prior to 
students participating in our program. Teachers often ask us to discuss maritime careers during these 
presentations. LAMI offers a 10-week asynchronous course that focuses on the diversity of career 
opportunities in the maritime industry and marine science fields. 
2. Employees of LAMI typically volunteer and participate in Port, other non-profits, Neighborhood 
Councils, area Chambers, school-based, and community-based events. Our team gives talks, leads 
workshops, performs mock interviews, helps prepare summer interns, leads after-school training in skills 

243/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 9 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

such as administration management and using the MS Office suite, along with various soft skills valuable 
for entry-level positions. We typically host two summer interns per year. 
3. For students that are destined for Port-based careers that require USCG Marine Credentials (e.g., 1st 

Mate, Captain, Engineer, AB, Life Boatman, STCW….) all sea time aboard the Irving Johnson and Exy 
Johnson after their 14th birthday count towards their required sea time. LAMI keeps accurate records 
going back to 1992. 
4. Students that will be sailing with Los Angeles Maritime Institute multiple times during the school year 
and 100% of the Youth Crew and Sea Scout Ship 1992 receive a personal bound Los Angeles 
Maritime Institute Log Book (please see Since the beginning of the pandemic we quickly adapted to the 
world where Students were Zooming, or similar, into their class rooms.   We developed both asynchronous 
(pre-recorded videos) lessons and synchronous (our instructors zoomed into the students zoom classroom).  
This table attempts to quantify the amount of impact that we had on the student population. 

 
Appendix 6: Los Angeles Maritime Institute Student Log Book for a scanned copy of the logbook). There are 

three levels of advancement available to each student and all of the skills taught are applicable to careers 
in the Maritime Industry. Completions of advancement in these logbooks are listed on student resumes, 
college applications, and job applications.  It is expected that these students that have completed 
advancement in their log books will be desirable employees for the Port of Los Angeles and their tenants.  
 
 

Explain how your Event/Program/Project could be affected by Covid or other health considerations and 
how you will accommodate any health protocols that may be in place at the time of your 
Event/Program/Project: 
 
LAMI’s top priority is the safety of participants, staff, and volunteers.  
 
With the onset of COVID-19, LAMI appointed a full-time Safety Officer and has enacted additional health 
and safety policies for all programs moving forward (Appendix 7 and 8). While we have returned to full 
open status and full capacity as has many of our partners we continue to maintain the Safety Officer role 
and continue to utilize the tools developed during the height of the Pandemic.   
 
The LAMI Safety Officer monitors on a weekly basis all COVID-19 public health reporting and 
announcements. All LAMI staff, volunteers, crew, and TopSail Youth Program participants have 
committed and will continue to commit to following these guidelines. Our policies and programs are 
responsive to the current guidelines established by the City, County, State, Federal, and World Health 
Organization and are able to change if restrictions are eased or strengthened. LAMI will adhere to any 
further restrictions imposed by LAUSD or individual schools on student participation in off-campus 
activities. In the event more stringent restrictions are imposed LAMI is well prepared from the work done 
since March 13, 2020 to deliver a hybrid or entirely online TopSail Youth Program to enrolled schools 
and community youth groups. 
 
 

How do you plan to recognize the Port of Los Angeles for its grant? 
 
1. LAMI routinely reaches out to schools within the City’s jurisdictions making the schools aware of 
POLA’s sponsorship. This exposes thousands of educators and hundreds of schools to POLA’s 
community investment grant sponsorship. Though our past years of also teaching online, hundreds of 
new LAUSD and other school district teachers have been introduced to LAMI’s TopSail Youth Program 
and are anxious to participate in in-person sails. Several times during the year we also hold Educator 
Sails for teachers and principals to share with them the value of our Program and our partnership with 
POLA. Most schools and teachers book TopSail Youth Program sails at the end of these event. 
2. LAMI provides our vessels to POLA to help promote the LA Waterfront as part of our partnership. We 
believe that the participation of our vessels add to the value of POLA-run events. We’ve participated in 

244/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 10 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

holiday events in the Downtown Harbor Cut, the annual LA Harbor Holiday Afloat parade, The Holiday 
by the Sea, Haunted Harbor Halloween, Navy Days, Fleet Week, and Chinese New Year.  We’ve even 
allowed POLA to project movies on our sails for fun LA Waterfront events. 
3. Wherever practical and consistent with POLA policy our marketing and communications materials 
both digital and in print includes acknowledgement of our partnership with POLA. You can see examples 
of this material in Appendix 9. 
4. During our fund raising events we always invite POLA leadership and acknowledge POLA’s 
community sponsorship and support.  During our recent 30th year of celebration we were honored by 
having several Port Executives and Commissioners speak at our events. 
5. Several times during the year we present to the Harbor Commission during public comments the 
results and positive community impact of our collaboration.  We also support Port Hearing such as SEIR, 
DEIRs and other matters that come before the Commissioners. 
6. LAMI has Port of LA vinyl banners on our buildings including those on our docks and our Building G 
facility.  These are prominently viewed by all participants during the public events that we host at our 
facilities.   We also have the banners on display on the vessels during appropriate public events like the 
Harbor Parade and the tree lighting and other port sponsored events. 
7. LAMI was featured for LAMI’s 25th anniversary as the subject of Port of Los Angeles publications 
highlighting the partnership and the importance of the LA Waterfront (Appendix 10). 
8. LAMI was were the subject of a POLA produced 3-minute video “LA Waterfront Digital: Los 
Angeles Maritime Institute” highlighting the importance of POLA-LAMI partnership to the community and 
the LA Waterfront (please navigate to: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=VHgNOTqiotA) 
9. From March 27, 2022 through March 26, 2023 LAMI’s celebrated our monumental 30th anniversary.  
We were so honored to have Port Executives and Commissioners available to join us at various events 
throughout the year and offered us a multitude of opportunities to 
celebrate and highlight the long-standing partnership between POLA and LAMI.  
 
 

Evaluating Success – What are the metrics and methodology that you will use to evaluate the success 
of the event? (e.g. number of attendees at the event, number of students attending classes) 
 
LAMI proposes providing 154 sailing days of the TopSail Youth Program to Port-approved schools and 
school groups.  Typically, classes average 25-40 students per sail for a total estimated maximum of 
4,620 student sailing days and an estimated 462 teachers and chaperones (assuming 30 students per 
sail and 3 teachers/chaperones per sail). LAMI tracks and reports to our Board of Directors monthly 
details of our TopSail Youth Program POLA-sponsored sails. Our annual report to the Port of Los 
Angeles will include performance against all of these measurable metrics. In our report we will review 
the schools that we collaborated with, curriculum development, new collaborations established, 
evaluation results, and operational performance.  
 
In addition to these quantitative results, we also collect qualitative evidence to show that the programs 
are effective.  Time in the class room is critical to the school administration and teachers.  Only when 
the program provides significant benefits towards the achievement of their students do they allow them 
out of the classroom.   The longstanding partnerships LAMI has with schools, educators, and youth 
groups attest to the positive impact of our award winning experiential TopSail Youth Program. We are 
proud to receive such a solid book of repeat bookings and longstanding commitments from our 
educational partners, reflecting the value they assign to the Program and confidence they have in our 
organization.  
 
Educational professionals are under significant pressure to increase their students’ performance and 
are eliminating time consuming activities that do not yield the results they need to meet state standards. 
Furthermore, while LAMI, in partnership with POLA, covers the costs of the sails for the vast majority of 
the participants, the educators cannot justify the expense for bus transportation and substitute teachers 
to cover their time away from school if they did not find the TopSail educational experience significantly 
valuable. 

245/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 11 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 
At LAMI we see positive results and program successes every time a young participant decides to 
brave climbing aloft, gives a sail-handling command louder than they’ve ever yelled, steps in to show a 
peer how to properly belay a line, successfully plots the ship’s coarse, or shows emotions over the 
plastic in a bird’s gut. There are breakthroughs in a young person’s development on every sail, and 
those that are witnessed by crew or expressed in a survey don’t even begin to account for them all. 
Often the positive impact is longitudinal, with some of our alumni students even pursuing paths in 
maritime, environmental, or science-related fields. USC in partnership with Kranz Middle School 
performed a controlled study (Please see Appendix 12). 60 students that were identified as on a “drop 
out path” were broken up into three cohorts of 20. One group was the control group and did not 
participate in LAMI’s TopSail Program. The other two cohorts did sail with LAMI throughout the school 
year. One year later the researchers found that 100% of the students who participated with LAMI 
continued on with their education. 
 
In 2017, LAMI received the prestigious Partners in Educational Excellence from the Association of 
California State Administrators. These Los Angeles Unified School District administrators recognized 
the benefit their students receive from our character-transformational and STEM-education programs. 
 
In 2007 the University of Edinburgh did a thorough study of the community benefits of LAMI’s TopSail 
Youth Program. A summary of this study can be found in Appendix 13: University of Edinburgh. If the reader 

would like to read the full study, please contact LAMI and we will make a copy available. 
 

 

Applicant Signature 

I certify that the information contained in this Port of Los Angeles Application for Community 
Investment Grant Program is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Printed Name: 
 

Bruce Heyman 

Signature: 
 

 
Date: 
 

May 8, 2023 

 

Electronic copy of the full application, company logo and photo  

due by 4:00 p.m., Monday, May 8, 2023 to: 

 

 

Community@portla.org   

Subject Line: FY 23-24 Community Investment Grants 

  

246/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 12 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix Index 
Contents 
Appendix 1: 501(c)(3) IRS Designation ....................................................................................................................... 13 

Appendix 2: City of Los Angeles Business Tax Registration Certificate ...................................................................... 17 

Appendix 3: Proposed FY 2023/2024 LAMI Budget .................................................................................................... 18 

Appendix 4: Historical Funding ................................................................................................................................... 19 

Appendix 5: Program Sails Sponsored by Port of Los Angeles ................................................................................... 20 

Appendix 6: Los Angeles Maritime Institute Student Log Book ................................................................................. 23 

Appendix 7: COVID-19 Safe Practices ......................................................................................................................... 28 

Appendix 8: COVID-19 Check-In Questionnaire ......................................................................................................... 34 

Appendix 9: Examples of Collateral including acknowledgement of POLA Partnership ............................................ 35 

Appendix 10: On The LA Waterfront (A Community Publication of the Port of LA) .................................................. 39 

Appendix 11: Maritime Youth Leadership Ambassadors – Juneteenth ..................................................................... 42 

Appendix 12: Kranz Middle School USC Controlled Study .......................................................................................... 45 

Appendix 13: University of Edinburgh ........................................................................................................................ 47 

 

  

247/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 13 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 1: 501(c)(3) IRS Designation 

 

248/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 14 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

249/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 15 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

  

250/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 16 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

  

251/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 17 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 2: City of Los Angeles Business Tax Registration Certificate 

  

252/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 18 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 3: Proposed FY 2023/2024 LAMI Budget 

 

253/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 19 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 4: Historical Funding 

 

  

254/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 20 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 5: Program Sails Sponsored by Port of Los Angeles 

 

255/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 21 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

  

256/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 22 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Since the beginning of the pandemic we quickly adapted to the world where Students were Zooming, or similar, 

into their class rooms.   We developed both asynchronous (pre-recorded videos) lessons and synchronous (our 

instructors zoomed into the students zoom classroom).  This table attempts to quantify the amount of impact that 

we had on the student population. 

  

257/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 23 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 6: Los Angeles Maritime Institute Student Log Book 
  

258/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 24 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

  

259/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 25 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

  

260/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 26 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

261/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 27 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

  

262/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 28 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 7: COVID-19 Safe Practices 

 

263/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 29 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

  

264/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 30 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

  

265/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 31 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

266/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 32 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

  

267/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 33 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

268/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 34 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 8: COVID-19 Check-In Questionnaire 
  

269/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 35 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 9: Examples of Collateral including acknowledgement of POLA 

Partnership 
+++++++  

LAMI Website Acknowledging POLA as a 
major sponsor. 

LAMI Public Sail Calendar - Online & in Print 

Figure 1Book Our Brigantines 
Brochure 

270/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 36 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

  

3
0

th
 A

n
n

iv
er

sa
ry

 y
ea

r 
o

f 
ce

le
b

ra
ti

o
n

 k
ic

k 
o

ff
, B

u
ild

in
g 

G
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n
 in

 t
h

e 
n

am
e 

o
f 

Ji
m

 G
la

d
so

n
 &

 S
an

 P
ed

ro
 C

h
am

b
e

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
er

ce
 R

ib
b

o
n

 C
u

tt
in

g.
  S

p
ee

ch
es

 w
er

e 
d

e
liv

er
ed

 b
y 

P
O

LA
 H

ar
b

o
r 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

er
 L

u
ci

a 
M

o
re

n
o

-L
in

ar
es

, S
ta

te
 

Se
n

at
o

r 
St

ev
en

 B
ra

d
fo

rd
, T

im
 M

cO
sk

er
, L

A
U

SD
 S

ch
o

o
l b

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
 T

an
ya

 O
rt

iz
 F

ra
n

kl
in

, S
an

 P
ed

ro
 C

h
am

b
er

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

er
ce

 B
o

ar
d

 C
h

ai
r,

 J
o

h
n

 B
ag

ak
is

. 

 

271/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 37 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

  

State Senator, Harbor Commissioner, City Council Candidate, Chamber CEO & President, Chamber Board, Chamber Board Members, BID 
Board Chair & Executive Director and LAMI Executive Director 

272/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 38 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

  

State Senator Steven Bradford, LAUSD School Board Member Tanya Ortiz Franklyn and Executive Director Bruce Heyman @ LAMI 30th Year 
Anniversary Kick Off. 

Group of Students Sailing on Exy Johnson in front of the Iconic Warehouse One. 

273/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 39 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

Appendix 10: On The LA Waterfront (A Community Publication of the Port 

of LA) 

 

274/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 40 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

  

275/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 41 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

  

276/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 42 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 11: Maritime Youth Leadership Ambassadors – Juneteenth 

  

277/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 43 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

  

278/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 44 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

279/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 45 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 12: Kranz Middle School USC Controlled Study 

280/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 46 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 

281/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 47 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

Appendix 13: University of Edinburgh 
The complete report is 58 pages long and in the interest of brevity only the Title Pages and the first content page 

is included.  LAMI’s TopSail Youth Education program was included in this study.  If an evaluator would like the 

complete report, we would be happy to make it available.  Thanks Bruce Heyman 

 

282/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 48 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

283/486



Los Angeles Maritime Institute 49 POLA 2023-24 Community Investment Grant 
 

 284/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 4

285/486



LOS ANGELES HARBOR DEPARTMENT 
GRANT AGREEMENT NO. _ 

1. Parties. This Grant Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the 
CITY OF LOS ANGELES, a municipal corporation ("City"), acting by and through its Board of Harbor 
Commissioners ("Board"), and Los Angeles Maritime Institute (LAMI), a non-profit corporation, Berth 73, 
Suite 2, San Pedro, CA 90731 ("Grantee"). This Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and to use the grant award monies as set forth herein. 

2. Grant Scope of Work. Grantee has submitted a Port of Los Angeles Community Investment 
Grant ("Grant") Application, which has been approved for funding by City. Grantee hereby agrees to 
diligently conduct, perform and carry out the programs and services as set forth in Exhibit A. Grantee shall 
also prominently display a plaque, banner, signage or publication announcement declaring that Grant 
support was provided by the Port of Los Angeles and include the Department's Port logo (in accordance 
with Harbor Department use guidelines). Grantee shall provide to City any Grant event member/attendee 
information as practicable. The Grant program and services in Exhibit A and the additional activities set 
forth in this paragraph 2 shall comprise the "Grant Scope of Work." 

All events will be subject to a post-execution audit and a site visit. 

3. Term. This Agreement shall be effective from the date it is executed on behalf of both parties 
and shall continue in effect for a period of two years from its effective date. This Grant is made with the 
understanding that City has no obligation to provide additional grants or support to Grantee. 

4. Termination Due to Non-Appropriation of Funds. This Agreement is subject to the provisions of 
the Los Angeles City Charter which, among other things, precludes the City from making any expenditure 
of funds or incurring any liability, including contractual commitments, in excess of the amount appropriated 
thereof. 

The City, in awarding this Agreement, is expected to appropriate sufficient funds to meet the 
estimated expenditure of funds through June 30 of the current fiscal year and to make further appropriations 
in each succeeding fiscal year during the life of the Agreement. However, the Board is under no legal 
obligation to do so. 

The City, its boards, officers, and employees are not bound by the terms of this Agreement or 
obligated to make payment thereunder in any fiscal year in which the Board does not appropriate funds 
therefore. The Grantee is not entitled to any compensation in any fiscal year in which funds have not been 
appropriated for the Agreement by the Board. 

Although the Grantee is not obligated to perform any work under the Agreement in any fiscal year 
in which no appropriation for the Agreement has been made, the Grantee agrees to resume performance 
of the work required by the Agreement on the same terms and conditions for a period of sixty (60) days 
after the end of the fiscal year if an appropriation therefore is approved by the Board within that 60-day 
period. The Grantee is responsible for maintaining all insurance and bonds during this 60-day period until 
the appropriation is made; however, such extension of time is not compensable. 

If in any subsequent fiscal year funds are not appropriated by the Board for the work required by 
the Agreement, the Agreement shall be terminated. However, such termination shall not relieve the parties 
of liability for any obligation previously incurred. 

5. Grant Award and Payment. 

(a) Subject to the limitations set forth below, pursuant to Section 5.47 of Chapter 4, Article 1 of the 
City's Administrative Code which authorizes advance funding for services performed through grants, City 
agrees to pay and Recipient agrees to accept for performance of the Grant Scope of Work, a Grant in the 

Transmittal 4

286/486



total amount not to exceed five hundred and eighty thousand dollars ($580,000). Grantee shall use the 
Grant funds solely for the purpose of the Grant Scope of Work. 

(b) Grantee's receipt of payment is subject to its prior submittal and the Director of Community 
Relations' written approval of deliverables set forth in the Grant Scope of Work, if further detailed 
deliverables are required by the Director of Community Relations beyond that set forth in the Grant Scope 
of. 

(c) Upon approval of the deliverables by the Director of Community Relations, Grantee shall submit 
an itemized statement setting forth the amount due for the applicable phase or task of the Grant Scope of 
Work. Each such statement shall be signed by the Grantee and shall include the following certification: 

"I certify under penalty of perjury that the above bill is just and correct according to 
the terms of Agreement No. and that payment has not been received. 

Grantee's Signature 

(d) Grantee must include on the face of each itemized invoice submitted for payment its Business 
Tax Registration Certificate number, as required at Paragraph 12 of this Agreement. No statement will be 
processed for payment by City without this number shown thereon. All statements shall be approved by 
the Executive Director or his/her designee prior to payment. All statements due and payable and found to 
be in order shall be paid as soon as, in the ordinary course of City business, the same may be approved, 
audited and paid. 

Grantee shall submit appropriate supporting documents with each invoice. Such documents may 
include without limitation, receipts, copies of promotional materials, or reports confirming tasks and activities 
performed. The City may require, and Grantee shall provide, all documents reasonably required to 
determine whether amounts on the invoice are allowable expenses under this Agreement. 

Grantee shall submit to City a mandatory final report with the final invoice, outlining the delivered 
services and a copy of all materials mentioning the Port of Los Angeles/Harbor Department at the 
conclusion of the Grant project. 

All statements are subject to audit. Grantee is not required to submit support for direct costs items 
of $25 or less. 

(e) For payment and processing, all statements should be mailed to the following address: 

Accounts Payable Section 
Harbor Department, City of Los Angeles 
PO Box 191 
San Pedro, CA 90733-0191 

6. Recordkeeping and Audit Rights. 

(a) Grantee shall keep and maintain full, complete and accurate books of accounts and records of 
the services performed, expenditures made and payments received under this Grant separately in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied, which books and records 
shall be readily accessible to and open for inspection and copying at the premises by City, its auditors or 
other authorized representatives. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, failure to do so 
shall constitute a conclusive waiver of any right to compensation for such services as are otherwise 
compensable hereunder. Such books and records shall be maintained by Grantee for a period of three (3) 
years after completion of services to be performed under this Agreement or until all disputes, appeals, 
litigation or claims arising from this Agreement have been resolved. 

2 

287/486



(b) During the term of this Agreement, City may audit, review and copy any and all writings (as that 
term is defined in Section 250 of the California Evidence Code) of Grantee arising from or related to this 
Agreement or performance of the Grant Scope of Work, whether such writings are (a) in final form or not, 
(b) prepared by Grantee, or any individual or entity acting for or on behalf of Grantee, and (c) without regard 
to whether such writings have previously been provided to City. Grantee shall provide City at Grantee's 
sole cost and expense a copy of all such writings within fourteen (14) calendar days of a written request by 
City. City's right shall also include inspection at reasonable times of the Grantee's office or facilities which 
are engaged in the performance of the Grant Scope of Work. Grantee shall, at no cost to City, furnish 
reasonable facilities and assistance for such review and audit. Grantee's failure to comply with this Article 
VI shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and shall entitle City to withhold any payment due 
under this Agreement until such breach is cured. 

7. Indemnification and Insurance. 

(a) Indemnification. Except for the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the City, or any of 
its Boards, Officers, Agents, Employees, Assigns and Successors in Interest, Grantee undertakes and 
agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City and any of its Boards, Officers, Agents, Employees, 
Assigns, and Successors in Interest from and against all suits and causes of action, claims, losses, 
demands and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorney's fees (both in house and outside counsel) 
and cost of litigation (including all actual litigation costs incurred by the City, including but not limited to, 
costs of experts and grantees), damages or liability of any nature whatsoever, for death or injury to any 
person, including Grantee's employees and agents, or damage or destruction of any property of either party 
hereto or of third parties, arising in any manner by reason of the negligent acts, errors, omissions or willful 
misconduct incident to the performance of this Agreement by Grantee of any tier. Rights and remedies 
available to the City under this provision are cumulative of those provided for elsewhere in this Agreement 
and those allowed under the laws of the United States, the State of California, and the City. 

(b) Insurance. 

(1) Acceptable Evidence and Approval of Insurance. Electronic submission is the 
required method of submitting Grantee's insurance documents. Grantee's insurance broker or agent shall 
register with the City's online insurance compliance system KwikComply at https://kwikcomply.org/ and 
submit the appropriate proof of insurance on Grantee's behalf. 

(2) Policy Copies. Upon request by City, Grantee shall furnish a copy of the binder of 
insurance and/or full certified policy for any insurance policy required herin. This requirement shall survive 
the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

(3) Limits of Coverage. If Grantee maintains higher limits than the minimum required by 
this Agreement, City requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by 
Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to City. 

(4) Primary Coverage. The coverages submitted must be primary with respect to any 
insurance or self-insurance of the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department. The City of Los Angeles Harbor 
Department's program shall be excess of this insurance and non-contributing. 

(5) Modification of Coverage. Executive Director, at his or her discretion, based upon 
recommendation of independent insurance consultants to City, may increase or decrease amounts an types 
of insurance coverage required hereunder at any time during the term hereof by giving ninety (90) days' 
written notice to Consultant. 

(6) Renewal of Policies. At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any policy, 
Consultant shall direct their insurance broker or agent to submit to the City's online insurance compliance 
system KwikComply at http://kwikcomply.org a renewal certificate showing that the policy has been 
renewed or extended or, if new insurance has been obtained, evidence of insurance as specified below. If 
Consultant neglects or fails to secure or maintain the insurance required below, Executive Director may, at 
his or her own option but without any obligation, obtain such insurance to protect the City's interests. The 
cost of such insurance will be deducted from the next payment due Consultant. 

3 

288/486



(7) Notice of Cancellation. For each insurance policy described below, the Grantee shall 
give to the Board of Harbor Commissioners a 10-days prior notice or reduction in coverage for nonpayment 
of premium, and a 30-days piror notice of cancellation or reduction in coverage for any other reason, by 
written notice via registered mail and addressed to the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department, Attn: Risk 
Manager and the City Attorney's Office, 425 S. Palos Verdes Street, San Pedro, CA 90731. 

(8) General Liability Insurance. Grantee shall procure and maintain in effect throughout the 
term of this Agreement, without requiring additional compensation from the City, commercial general liability 
insurance covering personal and advertising injury, bodily injury, and property damage providing 
contractual liability, independent grantees, products and completed operations, and premises/operations 
coverage written by an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of California rated VII, 
A- or better in Best's Insurance Guide (or an alternate guide acceptable to City if Best's is not available) 
within Grantee's normal limits of liability but not less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) combined single 
limit for injury or claim. Where Consultant provides pyrotechnics, Pyrotechnics Liability shall be provided as 
above. Said limits shall provide first dollar coverage except that Executive Director may permit a self 
insured retention or self-insurance in those cases where, in his or her judgment, such retention or self 
insurance is justified by the net worth of Grantee. The retention or self-insurance provided shall provide 
that any other insurance maintained by the Harbor Department shall be excess of Grantee's insurance and 
shall not contribute to it. In all cases, regardless of any deductible or retention, said insurance shall contain 
a defense of suits provision and a severability of interest clause. Additionally, each policy shall include an 
additional insured endorsement (CG 2010 or equivalent) naming the City of Los Angeles Harbor 
Department, its officers, agents and employees as Primary additional insureds. 

(9) Automobile Liability Insurance. Grantee shall procure and maintain at its expense and 
keep in force at all times during the term of this Agreement, automobile liability insurance written by an 
insurance company authorized to do business in the State of California rated VII, A- or better in Best's 
Insurance Guide (or an alternate guide acceptable to City if Best's is not available) within Grantee's normal 
limits of liability but not less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) covering damages, injuries or death 
resulting from each accident or claim arising out of any one claim or accident. Said insurance shall protect 
against claims arising from actions or operations of the insured, or by its employees. Coverage shall contain 
a defense of suits provision and a severability of interest clause. Additionally, each policy shall include an 
additional insured endorsement (CG 2010 or equivalent) naming the City of Los Angeles Harbor 
Department, its officers, agents and employees as Primary additional insureds. 

(10) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability. Grantee shall certify that it is aware 
of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor code which requires every employer to be insured 
against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions 
of that Code, and that Grantee shall comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the tasks under this Agreement. Coverage for claims under U.S. Longshore and Harbor Workers' 
Compensation Act, if required under applicable law, shall be included. Grantee shall submit Workers' 
Compensation policies whether underwritten by the state insurance fund or private carrier, which provide 
that the public or private carrier waives its right of subrogation against the City in any circumstance in which 
it is alleged that actions or omissions of the City contributed to the accident. Such Worker's Compensation 
and occupational disease requirements shall include coverage for all employees of Grantee, or other vendor 
retained by Grantee. 

(11) Ocean Marine Liability Insurance. Grantee shall procure and maintain insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with 
Grantee's operations. The cost of the insurance shall be borne by Grantee. The coverage shall be written 
by an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of California rated VII, A- or better in Best's 
Insurance Guide (or an alternate guide acceptable to City if Best's Rating is not available). Coverage shall 
include, but not be limited to: 

(i) Hull and machinery coverage up to the value of the vessel(s); 

(ii) Protection and Indemnity coverage with combined single limits of Five 
Million Dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, illness, death, loss of 

4 

289/486



or damage to the property of another, and Jones Act risks or equivalent thereto 
internationally. 

(iii) Ship repairer's legal liability to cover loss, damage or expenses to any 
property temporarily in the Grantee's care, custody or control. 

Coverage shall contain defense of suits provision and a severability of interest clause. Each policy shall 
also contain an additional insured endorsement (CG 2010 or equivalent) naming the City of Los Angeles 
Harbor Department, its officers, agents and employees as Primary additional insureds. 

(12) Accident Reports. Grantee shall report in writing to Executive Director within fifteen 
(15) calendar days after it, its officers or managing agents have knowledge of any accident or occurrence 
involving death of or injury to any person or persons, or damage in excess of Five Hundred Dollars 
($500.00) to property, occurring upon the premises, or elsewhere within the Port of Los Angeles if Grantee's 
officers, agents or employees are involved in such an accident or occurrence. Such report shall contain to 
the extent available (1) the name and address of the persons involved, (2) a general statement as to the 
nature and extent of injury or damage, (3) the date and hour of occurrence, (4) the names and addresses 
of known witnesses, and (5) such other information as may be known to Grantee, its officers or managing 
agents. 

8. Affirmative Action. Grantee agrees not to discriminate in its employment practices against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of employee's or applicant's race, religion, ancestry, 
national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, marital status, domestic partner status or medical 
condition. All subcontracts awarded under or pursuant to this Agreement shall contain this provision. 

The provisions of Section 10.8.4 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code are incorporated herein 
and made a part hereof. 

9. Independent Grantee. Grantee, in the performance of the work required by this Agreement, is 
an independent grantee and not an agent or employee of City. Grantee shall not represent itself as an 
agent or employee of the City and shall have no power to bind the City in contract or otherwise. 

10. Conflict of Interest. It is hereby understood and agreed that the parties to this Agreement have 
read and are aware of the provisions of Section 1090 et seq. and Section 87100 et seq. of the California 
Government Code relating to conflict of interest of public officers and employees, as well as the Los Angeles 
Municipal Code (LAMC) Municipal Ethics and Conflict of Interest provisions of Section 49.5.1 et seq. and 
the Conflict of Interest Codes of the City and Department. All parties hereto agree that they are unaware 
of any financial or economic interest of any public officer or employee of City relating to this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, it is further understood and agreed that if such 
financial interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, City may immediately terminate this 
Agreement by giving written notice thereof. 

11. Governing Law/ Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California, without reference to the conflicts of law, rules and principles of such 
state. The parties agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection with this Agreement shall be 
tried and litigated exclusively in the state or federal courts located in the County of Los Angeles, State of 
California, in the judicial district required by court rules. 

12. Business Tax Registration Certificate. The Grantee represents that it has obtained and 
presently holds the Business Tax Registration Certificate(s) required by the City's Business Tax Ordinance 
(Article 1, Chapter 2, Sections 21.09 et seq. of the Los Angeles Municipal Code). The Grantee shall 
maintain, obtain as necessary, all such Certificates required of it under said Ordinance and shall not allow 
any such Certificate to be revoked or suspended. 

5 

290/486



13. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN). Grantee declares that its authorized Taxpayer 
Identification Number (TIN) is . No payments will be made under this Agreement without 
a valid TIN. 

14. Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders/Notices of Assignments. The Grantee is obligated to 
fully comply with all applicable state and federal employment reporting requirements for the Grantee's 
employees. The Grantee shall certify that the principal owner(s) are in compliance with any Wage and 
Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment applicable to them personally. The Grantee shall 
fully comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignments in 
accordance with Cal. Family Code§§ 5230 et seq. The Grantee shall maintain such compliance throughout 
the term of the Agreement. 

15. Equal Benefits Policy. The Board of Harbor Commissioners of the City of Los Angeles adopted 
Resolution No. 6328 on January 12, 2005 agreeing to adopt the provisions of Los Angeles City Ordinance 
172,908 as amended, relating to Equal Benefits, Section 10.8.2.1 et seq. of the Los Angeles Administrative 
Code, as a policy of the Harbor Department. Grantee shall comply with the policy wherever applicable. 
Violation of the policy shall entitle the City to terminate any Agreement with Grantee and pursue any and 
all other legal remedies that may be available. 

16. State Tidelands Grants. This Agreement is entered into in furtherance of and as a benefit to 
the State Tidelands Grant and the trust created thereby. Therefore, this Agreement is at all times subject 
to the limitations, conditions, restrictions and reservations contained in and prescribed by the Act of the 
Legislature of the State of California entitled "An Act Granting to the City of Los Angeles the Tidelands and 
Submerged Lands of the State Within the Boundaries of Said City," approved June 3, 1929, (Stats. 1929, 
Ch. 651 ), as amended, and provisions of Article VI of the Charter of the City of Los Angeles relating to such 
lands. Grantee agrees that any interpretation of this Agreement and the terms contained herein must be 
consistent with such limitations, conditions, restrictions and reservations. 

17. No Assignment. This Agreement and the Grant awarded hereunder is not assignable by 
Grantee to any other person or entity. Any attempt to assign the performance of this Agreement or Grant 
funds shall be null and void and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 

18. Remedies. In the event that Grantee fails to perform the Grant Scope of Work and/or City 
determines in its sole discretion that Grantee has received Grant funds without performance of the Grant 
Scope of Work or has otherwise breached this Agreement, City may refuse to make Grant payments to 
Grantee and/or require Grantee to return or repay to City, any Grant funds received that are unearned by 
Grantee's failure to perform all or any portion of the Grant Scope of Work. These remedies shall be in 
addition to any other remedies available under applicable law. 

6 

291/486



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date to the left 
of their signatures. · 

Dated: _ 

Dated: 

APPROV~~D AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
µou-e~ U::, '2~ 

HYDEE Fl:LDSTEIN SOTO, City Attorney 
Steven Y. Otera, General Counsel ' 

By 
Helen Sok, Deputy/Assistant 

THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
HARBOR DEPARTMENT 

By _ 

EUGENE D. SEROKA 
Executive Director 

Attest: _ 
AMBER M. KLESGES 
Board Secretary 

Rev. 11/08/2'3 

CCOLrnl # 52031 W.O. # 
tr/Oiv # 0220 Job Fae.# 

PrqlProg# 000 

Bud etfY Amoun · 
2023·2<1 5290,000 
2024•25 5290,000 

TOTAL S5BO,OOO 
Fa-Acdi'B e Olv.UseOnt, 

/ ti' iJlllllli --Dy-~ edfiedby /I' c.:=.1u1t_._ 

~ l.fldsAvalable -~ £,.r•:;:;, 
DateApproved _1_1/_9_/2_3 _ 

7 

292/486



EXHIBIT A - GRANT SCOPE OF WORK 

The Grant Program activities and deliverables set forth below, together with the required actions in 
Section 2 of this Grant Agreement, comprise the Grant Scope of Work. 

Grantee shall perform the following for "TopSail Youth Program" during the period of July 1, 2023 to June 
30, 2024 and July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025: 

1. Conduct a TopSail Youth Program targeting at-risk youth in underserved communities 
providing both character building and STEM (science, technology, engineering, math) 
educational augmentation. This program is carried out through hands-on sailing 
experiences for the youth. 

2. Provide for a minimum of 100 LAMI TopSail Youth Programs. 
3. Maximize the number of students who participate in each sailing day as to leverage the 

Port's grant to the fullest extent. 
4. Outreach to a wide number of schools and youth organizations so as to reach a wide 

number of new participant youth. 
5. Provide bi-annual reports on outreach efforts, names of organizations, number of sail 

days and students served, and new programs/collaborations. 
6. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, all elements of this program must take place in 

accordance with federal, state, City and/or local guidelines. 
7. Any variance from the agreed upon schools shall be approved in advance by the Port's 

Director of Community Relations. 

Grantee shall recognize the support of the Port of Los Angeles by: 

1. Including the Port of Los Angeles logo on the LAMI website, blog and other pertinent 
marketing materials. 

2. Highlighting the contributions of the Port in at least one LAMI newsletter per year of the 
grant agreement. 

3. Hanging an acknowledgement banner at the dock area near the entrance to the berthing 
location of the Tall Ships. 

4. Work with the Port's Director of Community Relations to find new ways of incorporating 
LAMI participation along the LA Waterfront. 

8 

293/486



Separator Page

9. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - AWARD AND 

APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT. 

CONTRACTOR: SKANSKA USA CIVIL WEST 

CALIFORNIA DISTRICT INC. STATE ROUTE 47(SR-

47)/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE AND FRONT 

STREET/HARBOR BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE 

RECONFIGURATION. SPECIFICATION NO. 2816

294/486



DATE:

FROM:

 NOVEMBER 15, 20 23 

 CONSTRUCTION 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. ____________________  - 
AWARD AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
CONTRACTOR: SKANSKA USA CIVIL WEST CALIFORNIA 
DISTRICT INC. 
STATE ROUTE 47(SR-47)/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE AND  
FRONT STREET/HARBOR BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE 
RECONFIGURATION 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816 

SUMMARY: 

Staff requests approval of an award of a contract (Contract) to Skanska USA Civil West 
California District Inc. (Skanska) to construct the State Route 47 (SR-47)/Vincent Thomas 
Bridge (VTB) and Front Street/Harbor Boulevard Interchange Reconfiguration project (Project). 
The Project will modify the existing on and off ramps of the SR-47/VTB and Front Street/Harbor 
Boulevard interchange to improve safety, access, and efficient operation in and around the Port 
of Los Angeles complex.  The lowest responsive and responsible bidder is Skanska, located at 
1995 Agua Mansa Road, Riverside California.  The Contract amount of $90,988,550, plus a 10% 
contingency, is $100,087,405, and the Contract duration is 990 calendar days.  Certain expenses 
up to $65,783,000, incurred under the proposed Contract are eligible for reimbursement under 
the following grants: the California Senate Bill 1 Trade Corridor Enhancement Program; the United 
States Department of Transportation Maritime Administration; and the Los Angeles County 
Metropolitan Transit Authority.  Payment of expenses incurred under the proposed Contract will 
be the financial responsibility of the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department (Harbor Department). 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Harbor Commissioners (Board): 

1. Find that the Director of Environmental Management has determined that the
proposed action has been previously evaluated pursuant to the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(i) of the Los
Angeles City CEQA Guidelines;

295/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023               PAGE 2 OF 8 
 
SUBJECT: AWARD AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 CONTRACTOR: SKANSKA 

STATE ROUTE 47(SR-47)/VTB AND FRONT STREET/HARBOR 
BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816 

 
2. Find that, in accordance with the Los Angeles City Charter Section 1022, work under 

the subject Contract can be performed more feasibly by an independent contractor 
rather than by City employees; 
 

3. Award and approve Specification No. 2816 for Item Nos. 1 through 55 of the Bid 
Proposal Line Items to Skanska for a total amount of $100,087,405 including a 10% 
contingency, and a total term of 990 calendar days; 

  
4. Authorize the Executive Director to execute and the Board Secretary to attest to this 

Contract for and on behalf of the Board; 
 
5. Delegate and authorize the Executive Director to adjust the final bid quantities and 

accept the construction Contract upon its completion in accordance with City 
Charter Section 655 (g); and 

 
6. Adopt Resolution No.  . 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Project Background and Description – The Project is located within the boundaries of 
Knoll Drive to the north, Swinford Street to the south, Front Street to the east and the I-
110/SR-47 Freeway interchange to the west as shown in the site map (Transmittal 1).  
The Project will modify the existing on and off ramps of the SR-47/VTB and Front 
Street/Harbor Boulevard interchange to improve safety, access, and efficient operation in 
and around the Port of Los Angeles complex. 
 
Currently, southbound SR-47 traffic, and southbound Interstate 110 (I-110) traffic 
destined for the West Basin and San Pedro Waterfront areas exit at Harbor Boulevard. 
Significant non-standard weaving conditions exist as traffic travels through the Harbor 
Boulevard off-ramp. Non-standard merging also exists on the northbound SR-47 on-ramp 
from Harbor Boulevard as traffic approaches the VTB.  Vehicles routinely back up onto 
both off-ramps during peak periods as a result of the two freeways (I-110 & SR-47) 
terminating at the same point. With the projected future growth and the development of 
the Waterfront, the Harbor Department anticipates that traffic congestion will increase and 
greatly reduce the operational efficiency of the interchange.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

296/486



 
DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023               PAGE 3 OF 8 
 

SUBJECT: AWARD AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 CONTRACTOR: SKANSKA 

STATE ROUTE 47(SR-47)/VTB AND FRONT STREET/HARBOR 
BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816 

 
To mitigate this operational deficiency, the Project will relocate the existing southbound 
SR-47 off-ramp north of the VTB at Front Street and Knoll Drive. Relocating the off-ramp 
to the north will separate traffic travelling from both freeways into two different exits 
(Harbor Boulevard/Swinford Street and Front Street/Knoll Drive), allowing for efficient 
movement of vehicles through the interchange that are destined for the cruise terminal, 
Waterfront Development, and other recreational facilities.  The Project will reduce delays, 
potential for crashes/non-recurrent congestion and emissions. 
 
The improvements include replacement of existing southbound (SB) off-ramp from the 
VTB with a new off-ramp, realignment of the existing northbound (NB) on-ramp onto the 
SR-47 and I-110 connector, modification of the SB off-ramp onto Harbor Boulevard, and 
modification of the NB on-ramp onto VTB toward Terminal Island.  Work also includes 
removal of abandoned railroad, settlement mitigation along new NB SR-47 on and off 
ramps (including temporary and permanent site drainage, specialty retaining walls and 
utility relocations), realignment of Knoll Drive to facilitate the new on and off ramp 
construction, widening the west side of Front Street (includes paving, fencing, sidewalk, 
landscape and irrigation, drainage, street lighting, traffic signal modifications, and bike 
lanes where feasible). 
 
The Project has received the following grant funding: $13,383,000 from the California 
Senate Bill 1 Trade Corridor Enhancement Program; $9,880,000 from the United States 
Department of Transportation Maritime Administration; and $37,395,000 from the Los 
Angeles County Metropolitan Transit Authority (LACMTA), with an additional $5,125,000 
to be executed via Amendment No. 3. These funds can be utilized for certain Contract 
expenses totaling up to $65,783,000.  
 
Previous Board Actions (Grant Funding) – The Harbor Department executed the following 
agreements with the state and federal agencies to receive funding for the Construction 
Phase of the Project. 
 
On April 15, 2021, the Board approved the Trade Corridor Enhancement Program (TCEP) 
Baseline Agreement between the Harbor Department and the California Transportation 
Commission to receive $13,383,000 in Senate Bill 1 TCEP funds and authorized the 
Environmental Management Division to file the Notice of Determination for the Project. 
 
 
 
 
 

297/486



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023               PAGE 4 OF 8 
 
SUBJECT: AWARD AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 CONTRACTOR: SKANSKA 

STATE ROUTE 47(SR-47)/VTB AND FRONT STREET/HARBOR 
BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION 

  SPECIFICATION NO. 2816 
 
 
On June 23, 2022, the Board approved Amendment No. 2 to the Grant Funding 
Agreement No. 920000000MR312.32 (Harbor Agreement No. 22-9870), between the 
Harbor Department and the LACTMA, to receive $37,395,000 in Measure R funds for 
construction of the project.  
 
On March 30, 2023, the Board approved the Port Infrastructure Development Program 
(PIDP) Grant Funding Agreement between the Harbor Department and the United States 
Department of Transportation Maritime Administration to receive $9,880,000 in PIDP 
funds for construction of the Project. 
 
Previous Board Actions (Cooperative Agreements) – Since the improvements to the 
interchange fall within the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) jurisdiction, 
the Harbor Department and Caltrans executed the Cooperative Agreements and 
Amendments listed below to define the roles and responsibilities of each agency during 
each stage of the project life cycle.   
 
On November 17, 2015, the Board approved Cooperative Agreement 07-5049 between 
the Harbor Department and California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) in the 
amount of $150,000, to develop the Project Study Report for the Project. 
 
On June 15, 2017, the Board approved Cooperative Agreement No. 07-5120 between 
the Harbor Department and Caltrans to develop the Project Approval and Environmental 
Document (PA&ED) for the Project. 
 
On November 1, 2018, the Board approved Cooperative Agreement No. 07-5164 
between the Harbor Department and Caltrans to develop Plans, Specifications, and 
Estimates (PS&E) for the Project. 
 
On May 16, 2019, the Board approved Amendment No.1 to Cooperative Agreement No. 
07-5164 between the Harbor Department and Caltrans to correct the name of the 
Environmental Document from a Categorical Exemption to a Negative 
Declaration/Finding of No Significant Impact. 

298/486



 
DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023               PAGE 5 OF 8 
 

SUBJECT: AWARD AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 CONTRACTOR: SKANSKA 

STATE ROUTE 47(SR-47)/VTB AND FRONT STREET/HARBOR 
BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816 
 

 
On July 14, 2022, the Board approved Caltrans Cooperative Agreement No. 07-5257 
(Harbor Agreement No. 22-9872) between the Harbor Department and Caltrans which 
defines the roles and responsibilities of each agency during construction of the Project. 
 

On August 10, 2023, the Board approved Amendment No. 1 to Caltrans Cooperative 
Agreement No. 07-5257 (Harbor Agreement No. 22-9872-A) between the Harbor 
Department and Caltrans to replace the Funding Agreement Summary No. 1 with Funding 
Summary No. 2 to reflect the latest grant amounts and overall project construction cost 
total. 
 
Construction Award Process – City of Los Angeles Charter Section 371 (a) – Competitive 
Bidding sets forth the procedure staff follow to award the Contract. For construction 
contracts such as this one, the Harbor Department publishes the Notice Inviting Bids in 
daily newspapers and trade publications circulated in the City of Los Angeles, as well as 
on the Port of Los Angeles website and in Regional Alliance Marketplace for Procurement 
(RAMP). The Harbor Department also conducts a pre-bid conference to answer 
questions related to the construction contract. 
 
Bidders submit bids through the Port’s Construction Division Business Opportunity 
Network (CDBON) System. The opportunity to submit bids closes once a predetermined 
time is reached. After bid closing, bid documents, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
(DBE) participation, and other required documents are reviewed for compliance with 
Harbor Department requirements. Once all information is verified, and if the lowest bidder 
is deemed responsive, a recommendation for award of the construction contract is made. 
If the apparent low bidder is found non-responsive, the next lowest bidder is reviewed. 
 
In conformance with the City Charter section for competitive bidding, as stated above, on 
July 13, 2023, the Notice of Inviting Bids for Specification No. 2816 was advertised on the 
Harbor Department website, in RAMP, and in the Los Angeles Times, Chinese Daily 
News, LA Watts Times, Dodge Construction “Green Sheet” and the Metropolitan News 
Company to reach out to as many potential bidders as possible. A pre-bid meeting was 
held on August 2, 2023. 
 
Bid Results – As authorized by the Executive Director on June 8, 2023, the Chief Harbor 
Engineer received 5 bids for the Contract on October 24, 2023. Skanska was declared 
the apparent lowest bidder with a bid of $90,988,550.  Staff completed the evaluation of 
the bids and determined Skanska to be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 
 

299/486



 
 

 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023               PAGE 6 OF 8 
 

SUBJECT: AWARD AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 CONTRACTOR: SKANSKA 

STATE ROUTE 47(SR-47)/VTB AND FRONT STREET/HARBOR 
BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816 
 

 
The analysis of bid results with the companies and their respective bid amounts are 
included in Transmittal 2.  Skanska submitted the documents required in Section 
00012.09 within the time specified in the Specification.  Construction staff has verified 
Skanska’s state license.  Skanska has certified compliance with Section 10.8.4 - 
Affirmative Action Program Provisions of Ordinance No. 143429.   
 
Projects that receive federal funding are subject to federal Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise (DBE) requirements. Therefore, the Small Business Enterprise and Very Small 
Business Enterprise program was replaced with the DBE program. As defined in the 
Specification, a DBE is a small business, pursuant to Section 3 of the Small Business Act 
and relevant regulations, which is majority owned and operated by one or more socially 
and economically disadvantaged individuals. Those individuals who are women, Black 
Americans, Hispanic Americans, Native Americans, Asian-Pacific Americans, or 
Subcontinent Asian Americans, and any other minorities or individuals found to be 
disadvantaged by the Small Business Administration pursuant to Section 8(a) of the Small 
Business Act are categorized as socially and economically disadvantaged individuals. 
The DBE program is administered by Caltrans on behalf of the federal government and 
the Department will be responsible to verify compliance with the federal regulations and 
documentation requirements of Caltrans’ DBE program.  The DBE participation goal for 
the project is 23%.  Skanska’s proposed participation level is 23.20% (Transmittal 3).  
 
The Contract is subject to the terms of Project Labor Agreement No. 17-3526, as 
approved by the Board on September 7, 2017, and the Los Angeles City Council on 
December 5, 2017.  Local hire is not allowed as a provision of the federal funding for this 
project; therefore, a Letter of Understanding, signed by both the Harbor Department and 
the Los Angeles/Orange Counties Building and Construction Trades Council, waives the 
local hire requirement for this Project and has been included in Appendix “A” of the 
Specification.  This Contract is also consistent with the State of California Prevailing Wage 
provisions and minimum wage requirements per the Davis-Bacon Act provisions for 
Federal-aid construction projects. 
 
The contingency amount of 10% is necessary to address unforeseen requirements and 
conditions that may be encountered that are beyond the work included in the contract bid 
items. Unforeseen conditions include, but are not limited to, differing site conditions and 
unforeseen scope changes. 

300/486



 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023               PAGE 7 OF 8 
 

SUBJECT: AWARD AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 CONTRACTOR: SKANSKA 

STATE ROUTE 47(SR-47)/VTB AND FRONT STREET/HARBOR 
BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816 
 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 
 
The proposed action is the approval of an award of the Contract to Skanska to construct 
the State Route 47/VTB & Front Street/Harbor Boulevard Interchange Reconfiguration 
project (Project).  The SR-47 Project was assessed in a Final Negative Declaration 
prepared by Caltrans for the State Route 47/VTB and Front Street/Harbor Boulevard 
Interchange Reconfiguration Project (SCH #2018101003), which was considered by the 
Board on April 15, 2021.  As such, the Director of Environmental Management has 
determined that the proposed action has been previously evaluated pursuant to the 
requirements of CEQA in accordance with Article II Section 2(i) of the Los Angeles City 
CEQA Guidelines. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Approval of the proposed Contract will authorize expenditures of up to $100,087,405 for 
the construction of the Project.  Funds in the amount of $10,000,000 are budgeted for 
the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-2024 in Account No. 54510 (Capital Construction Services), 
Center No. 1172, and Program No. 000.  Funds are anticipated to be expended as 
follows: 
 
FY 2023-2024 $  10,000,000 
FY 2024-2025 $  41,000,000 
FY 2025-2026 $  41,000,000 
FY 2026-2027 $    8,087,405 
TOTAL $100,087,405 
 
Future fiscal year funding will be requested as part of the annual budget process, subject 
to Board approval.  While the Harbor Department will be responsible for funding the 
proposed Contract amount of $100,087,405, the Harbor Department has also been 
awarded $65,783,000 in grant funds to offset Project costs.  Net of grant receipts, staff 
anticipates the Harbor Department will be ultimately responsible for $34,304,405 in 
Project costs. 
 
Although Skanska is not obligated to perform any work under the Contract in any fiscal 
year in which no appropriation for the Contract has been made, Skanska agrees to resume 
performance of the work required by the Contract on the same terms and conditions for 
a period of 60 days after the end of the fiscal year if an appropriation therefore is approved 
 

301/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 15, 2023               PAGE 8 OF 8 
 
SUBJECT: AWARD AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 CONTRACTOR: SKANSKA 

STATE ROUTE 47(SR-47)/VTB AND FRONT STREET/HARBOR 
BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816 

 
 

within that 60-day period. Skanska is responsible for maintaining all insurance and bonds 
during this 60-day period. The time for performance shall be extended during this period 
until the appropriation is made; however, such an extension of time is not compensable. 
 
If in any subsequent fiscal year funds are not appropriated for work required by the 
Contract, the Contract shall be terminated.  However, such termination shall not relieve 
the parties of liability for any obligation previously incurred. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY: 
 
The Office of the City Attorney reviewed and approved Specification No. 2816 as to form 
and legality on March 24, 2023. 
 
TRANSMITTALS: 
 
1. Site Map 
2. Analysis of Bids 
3. Contractor and Subcontractor List   FIS Approval: ____________ 

 
         CA Approval:  ___________ 

 
 
 
 
SHAUN SHAHRESTANI DINA ARYAN-ZAHLAN, P.E. 
Chief Harbor Engineer Deputy Executive Director 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 

 
EUGENE D. SEROKA 
Executive Director 

 
Author: L. Walsh 
S2816B01 - File No. 11.18 

Shaun Shahrestani 
2023.11.15 08:34:10 
-08'00'

For

302/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

303/486



SCALE

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DESIGNED:
ENGR/ARCH

AS SHOWN

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL

CHIEF OF DESIGN

ASSISTANT HARBOR
CHIEF ENGINEER

APPROVED

CHIEF HARBOR ENGINEER

VICINITY MAP

SPEC NO. 2816CONSTRUCTION DIVISION P.O. BOX 151 
SAN PEDRO, CA 90733-0151

PORT OF LOS ANGELES

Project Location

State Route 47/Vincent Thomas Bridge and Front 
Street/Harbor Boulevard Interchange Reconfiguration

TRANSMITTAL 1

Project 
Location

304/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

305/486



1

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816  ENGINEERING ESTIMATE: $84,462,405.00
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./ ADVERTISED DATE: JULY 13, 2023
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION BID OPENING DATE: OCOTBER 24, 2023
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

GRAND TOTAL ITEM 1-55
Bid Description
Unit of Measure

Approximate Quantiy
Unit Price Extended Price

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE 84,462,405.00$  19,500,000.00$         19,500,000.00$         

1. SKANSKA 90,988,550.00$  17,000,000.00$         17,000,000.00$         

2. GRIFFITH COMPANY 93,683,438.00$  31,800,000.00$         31,800,000.00$         

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO. 97,038,929.00$  26,789,828.00$         26,789,828.00$         

4. OHL USA, INC. 98,851,710.00$  12,600,000.00$         12,600,000.00$         

5. GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO. 103,243,150.00$  20,823,575.44$         20,823,575.44$         

1) AVERAGE BID $94,711,363.67 21,418,900.57$         21,418,900.57$         
2) STANDARD DEVIATION 5,990,388.59$ 6,297,491.14$           6,297,491.14$           
3) ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER (6,526,145.00)$  2,500,000.00$           2,500,000.00$           

Main Bid

ITEM 1
Lump Sum Construction (Drawing No. 1-

Lump Sum
1

1

TRANSMITTAL 2

306/486



2

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

860,000.00$              860,000.00$              1,200.00$                  72,000.00$                

600,000.00$              600,000.00$              3,000.00$                  180,000.00$              

525,000.00$              525,000.00$              300.00$                     18,000.00$                

500,000.00$              500,000.00$              227.00$                     13,620.00$                

2,000,000.00$           2,000,000.00$           550.00$                     33,000.00$                

1,100,000.00$           1,100,000.00$           100.00$                     6,000.00$                  

930,833.33$              930,833.33$              896.17$                     53,770.00$                
522,258.05$              522,258.05$              1,006.26$                  60,375.53$                
260,000.00$              260,000.00$              (1,800.00)$                 (108,000.00)$             

Main Bid Main Bid

60

3
ITEM 3

Qualified Precipitation Event Sampling and 
Sampled Ra

2
ITEM 2

Lump Sum Construction (B-Permit No. BR 
Lump Sum

1

307/486



3

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1. SKANSKA

2. GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4. OHL USA, INC.

5. GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1) AVERAGE BID
2) STANDARD DEVIATION
3) ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

150,000.00$              150,000.00$              410,000.00$            410,000.00$            

300,000.00$              300,000.00$              225,000.00$            225,000.00$            

200,000.00$              200,000.00$              70,000.00$              70,000.00$              

221,000.00$              221,000.00$              2,300,000.00$         2,300,000.00$         

144,000.00$              144,000.00$              900,000.00$            900,000.00$            

200,000.00$              200,000.00$              1,500,000.00$         1,500,000.00$         

202,500.00$              202,500.00$              900,833.33$            900,833.33$            
51,703.48$  51,703.48$  785,771.47$            785,771.47$            

(150,000.00)$             (150,000.00)$             185,000.00$            185,000.00$            

Main Bid Main Bid

1

5
ITEM 5

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 
Lump Sum

1

4
ITEM 4

Photographic Documentation:  For furnishing 
Lump Sum

308/486



4

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1. SKANSKA

2. GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4. OHL USA, INC.

5. GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1) AVERAGE BID
2) STANDARD DEVIATION
3) ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

225.00$  8,437,500.00$           50.00$  100,000.00$              

190.00$  7,125,000.00$           4.50$  9,000.00$  

157.00$  5,887,500.00$           23.00$  46,000.00$  

114.00$  4,275,000.00$           120.00$  240,000.00$              

208.00$  7,800,000.00$           24.00$  48,000.00$  

160.00$  6,000,000.00$           75.00$  150,000.00$              

175.67$  6,587,500.00$           49.42$  98,833.33$  
36.70$  1,376,249.43$           38.73$  77,451.96$  
35.00$  1,312,500.00$           45.50$  91,000.00$  

Main Bid Main Bid

37500 2000

6 7
ITEM 6 ITEM 7

Excavate, Stockpile, and Dispose of Aerially Contractor-Furnished Import Fill Soil:  For 
Tons Cubic Yard

309/486



5

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

35.00$                     1,995,000.00$         48.00$                       4,080,000.00$           

15.00$                     855,000.00$            55.00$                       4,675,000.00$           

18.00$                     1,026,000.00$         11.00$                       935,000.00$              

30.00$                     1,710,000.00$         7.70$                         654,500.00$              

17.00$                     969,000.00$            57.00$                       4,845,000.00$           

36.00$                     2,052,000.00$         90.00$                       7,650,000.00$           

25.17$                     1,434,500.00$         44.78$                       3,806,583.33$           
8.74$                       498,455.87$            28.36$                       2,410,417.85$           

20.00$                     1,140,000.00$         (7.00)$                        (595,000.00)$             

Main Bid Main Bid

57000 85000

9

Cubic Yard

ITEM 8

Cubic Yard

8

Surcharge Material (Drawing No. 1-3481):  
ITEM 9

Department-Furnished Import Fill Soil from 

310/486



6

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1. SKANSKA

2. GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4. OHL USA, INC.

5. GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1) AVERAGE BID
2) STANDARD DEVIATION
3) ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

1.75$  1,249,500.00$           800,000.00$            800,000.00$            

2.20$  1,570,800.00$           2,750,000.00$         2,750,000.00$         

1.33$  949,620.00$              2,750,000.00$         2,750,000.00$         

1.50$  1,071,000.00$           1,718,000.00$         1,718,000.00$         

2.90$  2,070,600.00$           2,400,000.00$         2,400,000.00$         

1.37$  978,180.00$              3,000,000.00$         3,000,000.00$         

1.84$  1,314,950.00$           2,236,333.33$         2,236,333.33$         
0.56$  397,312.11$              760,416.92$            760,416.92$            

(0.45)$  (321,300.00)$             (1,950,000.00)$        (1,950,000.00)$        

Main Bid Main Bid

714000

11
ITEM 11

LADWP Water Line Relocation (Drawing 
Lump Sum

1

10
ITEM 10

Wick Drains (Drawing No. 1-3481):  For 
Linear Fee

311/486



7

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1. SKANSKA

2. GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4. OHL USA, INC.

5. GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1) AVERAGE BID
2) STANDARD DEVIATION
3) ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

250,000.00$              250,000.00$              20,000.00$  20,000.00$  

85,000.00$  85,000.00$  445,000.00$              445,000.00$              

372,000.00$              372,000.00$              1,750,000.00$           1,750,000.00$           

217,000.00$              217,000.00$              261,000.00$              261,000.00$              

180,000.00$              180,000.00$              50,000.00$  50,000.00$  

700,000.00$              700,000.00$              1,700,000.00$           1,700,000.00$           

300,666.67$              300,666.67$              704,333.33$              704,333.33$              
197,987.93$              197,987.93$              735,417.49$              735,417.49$              
165,000.00$              165,000.00$              (425,000.00)$             (425,000.00)$             

Main Bid Main Bid

Lump Sum Lump Sum
1 1

Sanitary Sewerage System (B-Permit No. BR Dewatering:  For furnishing transportation, 

12 13
ITEM 12 ITEM 13

312/486



8

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1. SKANSKA

2. GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4. OHL USA, INC.

5. GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1) AVERAGE BID
2) STANDARD DEVIATION
3) ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

875,000.00$            875,000.00$            5,100,000.00$           5,100,000.00$           

1,100,000.00$         1,100,000.00$         3,700,000.00$           3,700,000.00$           

1,265,000.00$         1,265,000.00$         1,450,000.00$           1,450,000.00$           

1,360,000.00$         1,360,000.00$         8,546,000.00$           8,546,000.00$           

4,300,000.00$         4,300,000.00$         660,000.00$              660,000.00$              

2,200,000.00$         2,200,000.00$         6,800,000.00$           6,800,000.00$           

1,850,000.00$         1,850,000.00$         4,376,000.00$           4,376,000.00$           
1,170,502.03$         1,170,502.03$         2,787,351.19$           2,787,351.19$           
(225,000.00)$           (225,000.00)$           1,400,000.00$           1,400,000.00$           

Main Bid Main Bid

Lump Sum Lump Sum
1 1

Storm Drainage System (B-Permit No. BR Storm Drainage System (Drawing No. 1-

14 15
ITEM 14 ITEM 15

313/486



9

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1. SKANSKA

2. GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4. OHL USA, INC.

5. GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1) AVERAGE BID
2) STANDARD DEVIATION
3) ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

1,300,000.00$           1,300,000.00$           135.00$  47,250.00$              

1,650,000.00$           1,650,000.00$           530.00$  185,500.00$            

475,000.00$              475,000.00$              200.00$  70,000.00$              

1,996,000.00$           1,996,000.00$           97.00$  33,950.00$              

1,610,000.00$           1,610,000.00$           87.00$  30,450.00$              

1,400,000.00$           1,400,000.00$           240.00$  84,000.00$              

1,405,166.67$           1,405,166.67$           214.83$  75,191.67$              
470,333.36$              470,333.36$              150.99$  52,845.53$              

(350,000.00)$             (350,000.00)$             (395.00)$  (138,250.00)$           

Main Bid Main Bid

Lump Sum Cubic Yard
1 350

Electrical System (Drawing No. 1-3481, B- Crushed Miscellaneous Base (B-Permit 

16 17
ITEM 16 ITEM 17

314/486



10

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

135.00$                     607,500.00$              209.00$                     438,900.00$              

165.00$                     742,500.00$              190.00$                     399,000.00$              

91.00$                       409,500.00$              150.00$                     315,000.00$              

75.00$                       337,500.00$              141.00$                     296,100.00$              

105.00$                     472,500.00$              208.00$                     436,800.00$              

100.00$                     450,000.00$              180.00$                     378,000.00$              

111.83$                     503,250.00$              179.67$                     377,300.00$              
29.84$                       134,258.38$              26.28$                       55,198.01$                

(30.00)$                      (135,000.00)$             19.00$                       39,900.00$                

Main Bid Main Bid

Cubic Yard Tons
4500 2100

Crushed Miscellaneous Base (Drawing No. 1- Asphalt Concrete Paving (B-Permit No. BR 

18 19
ITEM 18 ITEM 19

315/486



11

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

209.00$                   2,299,000.00$         290,000.00$              290,000.00$              

180.00$                   1,980,000.00$         45,000.00$                45,000.00$                

117.00$                   1,287,000.00$         625,000.00$              625,000.00$              

141.00$                   1,551,000.00$         750,000.00$              750,000.00$              

208.00$                   2,288,000.00$         3,800,000.00$           3,800,000.00$           

162.00$                   1,782,000.00$         800,000.00$              800,000.00$              

169.50$                   1,864,500.00$         1,051,666.67$           1,051,666.67$           
33.61$                     369,702.02$            1,257,194.85$           1,257,194.85$           
29.00$                     319,000.00$            245,000.00$              245,000.00$              

Main Bid Main Bid

Lump SumTons
111000

Asphalt Concrete Paving (Drawing No. 1- Worksite Traffic Control (B-Permit No. BR 

2120
ITEM 21ITEM 20

316/486



12

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1. SKANSKA

2. GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4. OHL USA, INC.

5. GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1) AVERAGE BID
2) STANDARD DEVIATION
3) ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

1,960,000.00$           1,960,000.00$           550,000.00$            550,000.00$            

800,000.00$              800,000.00$              1,300,000.00$         1,300,000.00$         

2,650,000.00$           2,650,000.00$           1,100,000.00$         1,100,000.00$         

500,000.00$              500,000.00$              1,610,000.00$         1,610,000.00$         

470,000.00$              470,000.00$              1,440,000.00$         1,440,000.00$         

2,000,000.00$           2,000,000.00$           1,100,000.00$         1,100,000.00$         

1,396,666.67$           1,396,666.67$           1,183,333.33$         1,183,333.33$         
843,695.57$              843,695.57$              335,790.94$            335,790.94$            

1,160,000.00$           1,160,000.00$           (750,000.00)$           (750,000.00)$           

Main Bid Main Bid

Lump Sum Lump Sum
1 1

Worksite Traffic Control (B-Permit No. BR Traffic Signal and Street Lighting (B-Permit 

22 23
ITEM 22 ITEM 23

317/486



13

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

3,550,000.00$           3,550,000.00$           9,000.00$                  9,000.00$                  

4,950,000.00$           4,950,000.00$           165,000.00$              165,000.00$              

83,000.00$                83,000.00$                300,000.00$              300,000.00$              

9,126,000.00$           9,126,000.00$           17,000.00$                17,000.00$                

118,000.00$              118,000.00$              118,000.00$              118,000.00$              

4,100,000.00$           4,100,000.00$           375,000.00$              375,000.00$              

3,654,500.00$           3,654,500.00$           164,000.00$              164,000.00$              
3,084,570.95$           3,084,570.95$           135,872.49$              135,872.49$              

(1,400,000.00)$          (1,400,000.00)$          (156,000.00)$             (156,000.00)$             

Main Bid Main Bid

1 1
Lump Sum Lump Sum

Traffic Signal and Street Lighting (B-Permit Signage (B-Permit No. BR 600523 STA 0+00 
ITEM 24 ITEM 25

24 25

318/486



14

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

6,000.00$                6,000.00$                21,000.00$                21,000.00$                

110,000.00$            110,000.00$            18,800.00$                18,800.00$                

3,300,000.00$         3,300,000.00$         150,000.00$              150,000.00$              

53,000.00$              53,000.00$              284,000.00$              284,000.00$              

5,580,000.00$         5,580,000.00$         118,000.00$              118,000.00$              

375,000.00$            375,000.00$            280,000.00$              280,000.00$              

1,570,666.67$         1,570,666.67$         145,300.00$              145,300.00$              
2,136,196.28$         2,136,196.28$         107,704.77$              107,704.77$              
(104,000.00)$           (104,000.00)$           2,200.00$                  2,200.00$                  

Main Bid Main Bid

1 1
Lump SumLump Sum

Signage (B-Permit No. BR 600523 STA Striping (B-Permit No. BR 600523 STA 0+00 
ITEM 26 ITEM 27

2726

319/486



15

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

82,000.00$                82,000.00$                440,000.00$            440,000.00$            

145,650.00$              145,650.00$              2,675,000.00$         2,675,000.00$         

450,000.00$              450,000.00$              1,750,000.00$         1,750,000.00$         

430,000.00$              430,000.00$              875,000.00$            875,000.00$            

235,000.00$              235,000.00$              2,282,000.00$         2,282,000.00$         

425,000.00$              425,000.00$              2,100,000.00$         2,100,000.00$         

294,608.33$              294,608.33$              1,687,000.00$         1,687,000.00$         
147,435.58$              147,435.58$              787,301.30$            787,301.30$            
(63,650.00)$               (63,650.00)$               (2,235,000.00)$        (2,235,000.00)$        

Main Bid Main Bid

11
Lump Sum Lump Sum

Striping (B-Permit No. BR 600523 STA 10+45 Ramp Metering and Traffic Monitoring 
ITEM 29ITEM 28

28 29

320/486



16

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

135.00$                     540,000.00$              105.00$                     1,417,500.00$           

200.00$                     800,000.00$              175.00$                     2,362,500.00$           

187.00$                     748,000.00$              124.00$                     1,674,000.00$           

161.62$                     646,480.00$              141.41$                     1,909,035.00$           

208.00$                     832,000.00$              208.00$                     2,808,000.00$           

180.00$                     720,000.00$              149.00$                     2,011,500.00$           

178.60$                     714,413.33$              150.40$                     2,030,422.50$           
24.44$                       97,763.26$                33.58$                       453,267.07$              

(65.00)$                      (260,000.00)$             (70.00)$                      (945,000.00)$             

Main Bid Main Bid

4000 13500

Hot Mix Asphalt (Including Type A, C, E, and 
Tons Tons

Rubberized Hot Mix Asphalt (Gap Graded) 
ITEM 30 ITEM 31

30 31

321/486



17

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

188.00$                   1,278,400.00$         118.00$                     1,522,200.00$           

360.00$                   2,448,000.00$         92.00$                       1,186,800.00$           

361.00$                   2,454,800.00$         31.00$                       399,900.00$              

292.00$                   1,985,600.00$         70.00$                       903,000.00$              

450.00$                   3,060,000.00$         73.00$                       941,700.00$              

360.00$                   2,448,000.00$         50.00$                       645,000.00$              

335.17$                   2,279,133.33$         72.33$                       933,100.00$              
80.22$                     545,477.23$            27.94$                       360,482.62$              

(172.00)$                  (1,169,600.00)$        26.00$                       335,400.00$              

Main BidMain Bid

6800 12900

Lean Concrete Base (Project No. Aggregate Base (Project No. 07150003041): 
ITEM 32 ITEM 33

Cubic Yard Cubic Yard

32 33

322/486



18

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

240.00$                     1,934,880.00$           440,000.00$            440,000.00$            

100.00$                     806,200.00$              660,000.00$            660,000.00$            

174.00$                     1,402,788.00$           550,000.00$            550,000.00$            

80.00$                       644,960.00$              1,342,000.00$         1,342,000.00$         

230.00$                     1,854,260.00$           628,000.00$            628,000.00$            

52.00$                       419,224.00$              450,000.00$            450,000.00$            

146.00$                     1,177,052.00$           678,333.33$            678,333.33$            
73.01$                       588,618.02$              307,877.50$            307,877.50$            

140.00$                     1,128,680.00$           (220,000.00)$           (220,000.00)$           

Main Bid Main Bid

8062 1

30-Inch Cast-in-Drilled Hole (CIDH) (Project 16-Inch, 18-Inch, 54-Inch, and 60-Inch 
Linear Fee Lump Sum

ITEM 34 ITEM 35
34 35

323/486



19

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

250.00$                     1,912,500.00$           425.00$                   314,075.00$            

430.00$                     3,289,500.00$           500.00$                   369,500.00$            

260.00$                     1,989,000.00$           720.00$                   532,080.00$            

312.00$                     2,386,800.00$           404.00$                   298,556.00$            

520.00$                     3,978,000.00$           600.00$                   443,400.00$            

278.50$                     2,130,525.00$           360.00$                   266,040.00$            

341.75$                     2,614,387.50$           501.50$                   370,608.50$            
99.62$                       762,112.25$              124.38$                   91,919.39$              

(180.00)$                    (1,377,000.00)$          (75.00)$                    (55,425.00)$             

Main Bid
37

Main Bid

7650

Steel Piles (Project No. 07150003041):  For 
ITEM 36

36

Linear Fee

ITEM 37
Concrete Backfill (Soldier Pile) (Project No. 

Cubic Yard
739

324/486



20

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

1,135,000.00$           1,135,000.00$           4,500,000.00$           4,500,000.00$           

1,560,000.00$           1,560,000.00$           8,470,000.00$           8,470,000.00$           

1,235,000.00$           1,235,000.00$           8,200,000.00$           8,200,000.00$           

500,000.00$              500,000.00$              8,000,000.00$           8,000,000.00$           

1,480,000.00$           1,480,000.00$           11,000,000.00$         11,000,000.00$         

1,138,000.00$           1,138,000.00$           10,800,000.00$         10,800,000.00$         

1,174,666.67$           1,174,666.67$           8,495,000.00$           8,495,000.00$           
342,404.08$              342,404.08$              2,155,641.82$           2,155,641.82$           

(425,000.00)$             (425,000.00)$             (3,970,000.00)$          (3,970,000.00)$          

Main Bid Main Bid
38 39

ITEM 38
Overhead Sign Structures (Project No. 

Lump Sum
1

ITEM 39
Retaining Walls (Project No. 07150003041):  

Lump Sum
1

325/486



21

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

1,350,000.00$           1,350,000.00$           4,700.00$                1,363,000.00$         

700,000.00$              700,000.00$              4,500.00$                1,305,000.00$         

1,200,000.00$           1,200,000.00$           7,600.00$                2,204,000.00$         

937,000.00$              937,000.00$              3,400.00$                986,000.00$            

1,080,000.00$           1,080,000.00$           9,100.00$                2,639,000.00$         

2,180,000.00$           2,180,000.00$           3,015.00$                874,350.00$            

1,241,166.67$           1,241,166.67$           5,385.83$                1,561,891.67$         
466,601.33$              466,601.33$              2,218.00$                643,218.66$            
650,000.00$              650,000.00$              200.00$                   58,000.00$              

Main Bid Main Bid
40 41

ITEM 40 ITEM 41
Concrete Barriers (Project No. Ground Anchors (Project No. 

Lump Sum Each
1 290

326/486



22

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

340,000.00$              340,000.00$              1,280.00$                  115,200.00$              

1,625,000.00$           1,625,000.00$           3,220.00$                  289,800.00$              

575,000.00$              575,000.00$              225.00$                     20,250.00$                

891,000.00$              891,000.00$              2,500.00$                  225,000.00$              

1,300,000.00$           1,300,000.00$           3,800.00$                  342,000.00$              

271,755.56$              271,755.56$              1,000.00$                  90,000.00$                

833,792.59$              833,792.59$              2,004.17$                  180,375.00$              
495,533.64$              495,533.64$              1,268.02$                  114,122.23$              

(1,285,000.00)$          (1,285,000.00)$          (1,940.00)$                 (174,600.00)$             

Main Bid Main Bid
42 43

ITEM 42 ITEM 43
Chain Link Fences and Gates (Drawing No. 1- Plant Establishment, Landscape 

Lump Sum Shifts
1 90

327/486



23

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

2,750,000.00$         2,750,000.00$         1,450,000.00$           1,450,000.00$           

2,600,000.00$         2,600,000.00$         700,000.00$              700,000.00$              

1,450,000.00$         1,450,000.00$         1,100,000.00$           1,100,000.00$           

1,397,000.00$         1,397,000.00$         100,000.00$              100,000.00$              

1,900,000.00$         1,900,000.00$         372,000.00$              372,000.00$              

1,400,000.00$         1,400,000.00$         800,000.00$              800,000.00$              

1,916,166.67$         1,916,166.67$         753,666.67$              753,666.67$              
565,160.87$            565,160.87$            443,997.62$              443,997.62$              
150,000.00$            150,000.00$            750,000.00$              750,000.00$              

Main Bid Main Bid
44 45

ITEM 44 ITEM 45
Landscaping and Irrigation System:  For Front Street West Improvements:  For 

Lump Sum Lump Sum
1 1

328/486



24

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

50.00$                       750,000.00$              750,000.00$            750,000.00$            

12.00$                       180,000.00$              750,000.00$            750,000.00$            

6.00$                         90,000.00$                750,000.00$            750,000.00$            

20.00$                       300,000.00$              750,000.00$            750,000.00$            

23.00$                       345,000.00$              750,000.00$            750,000.00$            

16.00$                       240,000.00$              750,000.00$            750,000.00$            

21.17$                       317,500.00$              750,000.00$            750,000.00$            
14.00$                       210,074.39$              -$                         -$                         
38.00$                       570,000.00$              -$                         -$                         

Main Bid Contingency-Allowance Item
46 47

ITEM 46 ITEM 47
Stabilization Fill Excavation and Subgrade Stabilization: For furnishing 

Cubic Yard Lump Sum
15000 1

329/486



25

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              
-$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           
-$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           

Contingency-Allowance Item Contingency-Allowance Item
48 49

ITEM 48 ITEM 49
Unforeseen Utility and Substructure Unforeseen Contaminated and Hazardous 

Lump Sum Lump Sum
1 1

330/486



26

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

200,000.00$            200,000.00$            750,000.00$              750,000.00$              

200,000.00$            200,000.00$            750,000.00$              750,000.00$              

200,000.00$            200,000.00$            750,000.00$              750,000.00$              

200,000.00$            200,000.00$            750,000.00$              750,000.00$              

200,000.00$            200,000.00$            750,000.00$              750,000.00$              

200,000.00$            200,000.00$            750,000.00$              750,000.00$              

200,000.00$            200,000.00$            750,000.00$              750,000.00$              
-$                         -$                         -$                           -$                           
-$                         -$                         -$                           -$                           

Contingency-Allowance Item Contingency-Allowance Item
50 51

ITEM 50 ITEM 51
Internet-Based Project Management:  Premium Time for Schedule 

Lump Sum Lump Sum
1 1

331/486



27

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

 
 

 

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1.  SKANSKA

2.  GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4.  OHL USA, INC.

5.  GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1)  AVERAGE BID
2)  STANDARD DEVIATION
3)  ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

950,000.00$              950,000.00$              150,000.00$            150,000.00$            

950,000.00$              950,000.00$              150,000.00$            150,000.00$            

950,000.00$              950,000.00$              150,000.00$            150,000.00$            

950,000.00$              950,000.00$              150,000.00$            150,000.00$            

950,000.00$              950,000.00$              150,000.00$            150,000.00$            

950,000.00$              950,000.00$              150,000.00$            150,000.00$            

950,000.00$              950,000.00$              150,000.00$            150,000.00$            
-$                           -$                           -$                         -$                         
-$                           -$                           -$                         -$                         

Contingency-Allowance Item Contingency-Allowance Item
52 53

ITEM 52
Perform Work Associated with Regulatory 

Lump Sum
1

ITEM 53
Partnering Facility:  Bidder shall include in 

Lump Sum
1

332/486



28

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
STATE ROUTE 47/VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE FRONT ST./
HARBOR BLVD. INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION
PROJ. CONST. MGR.:  AMIR ZAVICHI

ENGINEERING ESTIMATE

1. SKANSKA

2. GRIFFITH COMPANY

3,  WALSH CONSTRUCTION CO.

4. OHL USA, INC.

5. GRANITE CONSTRUCTION CO.

1) AVERAGE BID
2) STANDARD DEVIATION
3) ENG. EST. - LOW BIDDER

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

500,000.00$              500,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

500,000.00$              500,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

500,000.00$              500,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

500,000.00$              500,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

500,000.00$              500,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

500,000.00$              500,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              

500,000.00$              500,000.00$              850,000.00$              850,000.00$              
-$  -$  -$  -$  
-$  -$  -$  -$  

Shaun Shahrestani
Chief Harbor Engineer

55
Contingency-Allowance Item Contingency-Allowance Item

54
ITEM 54

Construction Zone Enhanced Enforcement 
Lump Sum

1

ITEM 55
Design Modifications as Directed by 

Lump Sum
1

Shaun Shahrestani 
2023.11.08 15:55:50 -08'00'

333/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 3

334/486



Contractor, Subcontractor, and Supplier List
Project Title:
Specification No.: 2816 Bid Grand Total: $90,988,550.00

Prime Contractor's
Name & Address Type of Work  DBE

(Yes / No) 
Dollar Amount DBE Amount      

($)
DBE 
(%)

Skanska USA Civil West California 
District Inc. General  No $49,689,369.69 $0.00 0.00%

Subcontractor's 
Name & Address Type of Work  DBE

(Yes / No) Dollar Amount1 DBE Amount
($) 

DBE 1,2

(%)

CGO Construction Company, Inc. 
3100 E Cedar St #14

Ontario, CA91761

Tree removal clear 
& grub  Yes $549,300.00 $549,300.00 0.65%

Fehoko Concrete, Inc
10817 Condon Avenue
Inglewood, CA 90304

Minor Concrete: 
Curb, Curb &  

Gutter, driveways, 
sidewalk

 Yes $1,027,105.00 $1,027,105.00 1.21%

Diversified Landscape Co.      
21730 Bundy Canyon Road      

Wildomar, CA 92595

Irrigation, rock 
blanket and related 

work only
 Yes $2,591,100.00 $1,421,000.00 1.67%

Ace Fence Company
727 Glendora Avenue
La Puente, CA 91744

Fence, guardrail, 
and related work  Yes $1,477,485.00 $1,477,485.00 1.74%

Grit & Gravel Inc.
1360 S Figueroa St., Unit D #409

Los Angeles, CA 90015

Haul & Dispose of Z-
2 ADL Non-RCRA 

Waste Soil and 
related trucking

 Yes $6,715,313.00 $6,715,313.00 7.89%

Hardy & Harper, Inc.
32 Rancho Cir.

Lake Forest, CA 92610

Asphalt Paving and 
related work only  No $4,956,615.00 $0.00 0.00%

SR-47/Vincent Thomas Bridge & Front Street/Harbor Boulevard Interchange Reconfiguration

335/486



Contractor, Subcontractor, and Supplier List
Project Title:
Specification No.: 2816 Bid Grand Total: $90,988,550.00

SR-47/Vincent Thomas Bridge & Front Street/Harbor Boulevard Interchange Reconfiguration

Subcontractor's 
Name & Address Type of Work  DBE

(Yes / No) Dollar Amount1 DBE Amount
($) 

DBE 1,2

(%)

Farrell Design-Build, Inc.      
Irvine.CA

Install wick drains 
and relaled won  No $921,100.00 $0.00 0.00%

Drill Tech Drilling and Shoring, Inc 
355 N. Sheridan St., Suite 117 

Corona, CA 92878

CIDH, ground 
anchor, concrete 

backfill
 No $5,000,456.00 $0.00 0.00%

Lopez Structure, Inc.
10005 Muirlands Blvd., Suite M    

Irvine.CA 92618

Partial storm drain 
structures and 

related work only
 No $599,270.00 $0.00 0.00%

Pacific Steel Group
4805 Murphy Canyon Road       

San Diego.CA 92123

Partial furnish and 
install rebar only  No $621,676.00 $0.00 0.00%

Legacy Reinforcing Steel, LLC
2374 Trellis St.

Chula Vista, CA 91915

Install Rebar Labor 
Only (2nd Tier to 

Pacific Steel Group)
 Yes $239,884.12 $239,884.12 0.28%

Coral Construction Company, 
10780 SW Clutter Road  
Sherwood, OR 97140

Sign structures  No $1,588,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Comet Electric, Inc.
21625 Prairie Street 

Chatsworth,CA 91311

Disconnect & 
reconnect electrical 
components only, 

electrical and 
related work 

 No $9,988,464.00 $0.00 0.00%

Traffic Loops Crack Filling, Inc 
1244 Kevstone Way

Vista, CA 92081

Install Traffic Loops 
(2nd Tier to Comet 

Electric) -100%
 Yes $168,775.00 $168,775.00 0.20%

Cooper Engineering, Inc.         
114 Business Center Drive   

Corona, CA 92880

Furnish Labor & 
equipment to place 

concrete barrier.
 Yes $382,178.19 $382,178.19 0.45%

 Subcontractor 
Total Amount 

Subcontractor 
Total (%)

Subcontractor 
DBE Total Amount1

Subcontractor 
Total DBE %1,2

$36,418,062.19 40.02% $11,981,040.31 14.07%

336/486



Contractor, Subcontractor, and Supplier List
Project Title:
Specification No.: 2816 Bid Grand Total: $90,988,550.00

SR-47/Vincent Thomas Bridge & Front Street/Harbor Boulevard Interchange Reconfiguration

Supplier's 
Name & Address Type of Work  DBE

(Yes / No) 

Supplier Dollar 
Amount

(Supplier DBE 
Amount, if different)1 

DBE Amount
($) 

DBE 1,2

(%)

RDL Equipment, Inc.
31524 Park Blvd
Nuevo, CA 92567

Rental Water Truck  Yes $1,131,750.00 $1,131,750.00 1.33%

Maverick Sweeping, LLC
3644 Broken Feather Dr.        

Norco, CA 92860

Rental Street 
Sweeper  Yes $591,617.00 $591,617.00 0.69%

Triumph Geo-Syntehtics, Inc
1325 N. Blue Gum St.       
Anaheim, CA 92806

Furnish RCP Pipe, 
Geotextile & 

Geogrid 
Construction 

Materials

 Yes $653,652.92 $392,191.75 0.46%

Rupert Construction Supply
12405 Gold Flake Ct.           

Rancho Cordova, CA 95741

Furnish steel soldier 
pile material (60% 
supplier credit, 2nd 

tier to Drill Tech 
Drilling and 

Shoring) 
Furnish formliner 
materials (60% 
Supplier Credit)

 Yes $3,323,772.83 $1,994,263.70 2.34%

Maneri Traffic Control, Inc.
4949 2nd Street

Fallbrook, CA 92028

Buy Portable 
Changeable 

Message Boards, 
Arrow Boards 

($196,675 x 60% 
DBE Credit)

 Yes $196,675.00 $118,005.00 0.14%

GDS Industries, Inc.
1244 Keystone Way

Vista, CA 92081

Furnish Electrical 
Material incl. Pipe, 
Wire Boxes & Gear 
(2nd Tier to Comet 

Electric) - 60%

 Yes $695,950.00 $417,570.00 0.49%

TEK Services, LLC
5680 Van Gogh Way

Yorba Linda, CA 92887

Furnish & Supply 
Electrical Signal & 
Lighting Material & 

Equipment (2nd 
Tier to Comet 

Electric) 

 Yes $366,166.65 $366,166.65 0.43%

KRZ Enterprises, Inc dba
Total Site Supply Co.

 505 Rincon St, Ste #150       
Corona, CA 92879

Furnish & deliver 
erosion control 

Materials
 Yes $20,000.87 $12,000.52 0.01%

337/486



Contractor, Subcontractor, and Supplier List
Project Title:
Specification No.: 2816 Bid Grand Total: $90,988,550.00

SR-47/Vincent Thomas Bridge & Front Street/Harbor Boulevard Interchange Reconfiguration

Supplier's 
Name & Address Type of Work  DBE

(Yes / No) 

Supplier Dollar 
Amount

(Supplier DBE 
Amount, if different)1

DBE Amount
($) 

DBE 1,2

(%)

CL Surveying & Mapping         
400 E Rincon St., Suite 202

Corona, CA 92879

Construction 
surveying  Yes $474,437.00 $474,437.00 0.56%

The Quality Firm
1075 Nevada St.

Signal Hill, CA 90755

Quality Control 
testing and
inspection

 Yes $650,440.00 $650,440.00 0.76%

Accetta Construction Equipment 
Services

780 West Channel St, Ste 200  
San Pedro, CA 90731

load & haul 
department import 
& on-site trucking

 Yes $1,624,215.00 $1,624,215.00 1.91%

 Supplier 
Total Amount 

Supplier 
Total (%)

Supplier
DBE Total Amount1

Supplier 
Total DBE %1,2

$9,728,677.27 10.69% $7,772,656.62 9.13%

Subcontractor/ 
Supplier 

Total Amount 

Subcontractor/ 
Supplier 
Total (%)

Subcontractor/ 
Supplier

DBE Total Amount1
Total DBE %1,2

$46,146,739.46 50.72% $19,753,696.93 23.20%
DBE Total Goal % 23.00%

 Bid Grand Total 
$90,988,550.00
$93,683,438.00
$97,038,929.00
$98,851,710.00
$103,243,150.00

Walsh Construction Company
OHLA USA
Granite Construction Compnay

Prime Contractors
Skanska

Note 1: Per Specification Section 00030.11A, subcontractors and manufacturers receive 100% DBE participation credit of the dollar amount that 
was quoted to the Prime Contractor. Dealers receive 60% DBE participation credit of the dollar amount that was quoted to the Prime Contractor. 

Note 2:  Per Specification Section 00030.11C, Subcontractor Total DBE % is calculated based on the contract cost excluding contingency 
allowance items.

Grifith Compnay

338/486



Separator Page

10. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL OF A 

COST SHARE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

LOS ANGELES HARBOR DEPARTMENT AND THE PORT 

OF LONG BEACH TO FUND A TECHNOLOGY 

ADVANCEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT WITH PACIFIC 

HARBOR LINE, INC.

339/486



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 20, 2023 
 
FROM: ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. _____________ - APPROVAL OF A COST SHARE 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES HARBOR 
DEPARTMENT AND THE PORT OF LONG BEACH TO FUND A 
TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT WITH PACIFIC 
HARBOR LINE, INC.  

 
SUMMARY: 
 
Staff requests approval of the proposed Cost Share Agreement between the City of Los 
Angeles Harbor Department (Harbor Department) and the Port of Long Beach (POLB) to 
fund a Clean Air Action Plan (CAAP) Technology Advancement Program (TAP) project 
with Pacific Harbor Line, Inc. (PHL) to design and demonstrate battery-electric locomotive 
(BEL) charging infrastructure for the “EMDX 50” zero-emission (ZE) switcher locomotive 
Project (Project). The total cost of the Project is $4,751,904. TAP funding in the amount 
of $845,390 will be split equally between the Harbor Department and POLB.  The PHL  
project team will pay the remaining amount. As lead agency, POLB has already entered 
into an agreement with PHL to implement the Project. If the proposed Agreement is 
approved, then the Harbor Department would be financially responsible for $422,695, or 
50% of the TAP cost share of the Project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Harbor Commissioners (Board): 
 
1. Find that the Director of Environmental Management has determined that the 

proposed action is administratively and categorically exempt from the requirements 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(f) and 
Article III Class 6 of the Los Angeles City CEQA Guidelines; 
 

2. Approve the Cost Share Agreement between the City of Los Angeles Harbor 
Department and the Port of Long Beach for the reimbursement of $422,695; 

 
3. Authorize the Executive Director to execute and Board Secretary to attest to said 

agreement for and on behalf of the Board of Harbor Commissioners; and 
 

4. Adopt Resolution No. _______________. 
 

340/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 20, 2023 PAGE 2 OF 4 
 
SUBJECT: TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT WITH PACIFIC 

HARBOR LINE  
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background/Context – On November 20, 2006, during a joint meeting between the Los 
Angeles and Long Beach Boards of Harbor Commissioners, the 2006 San Pedro Bay 
Ports CAAP was adopted. A significant initiative of the CAAP is the TAP, which is the 
catalyst for identifying, evaluating, and demonstrating new and emerging emissions 
reduction technologies applicable to the port industry that could be utilized in future 
updates to the CAAP as new control measures, alternatives to existing measures, or as 
additional mitigation options for new projects. A CAAP TAP Advisory Committee 
comprised of the United States Environmental Protection Agency, California Air 
Resources Board, the California Energy Commission, and the South Coast Air Quality 
Management District, along with the Harbor Department and POLB, meets regularly to 
review and recommend projects for funding. 
 
Project Description – PHL and project partners Progress Rail, a subsidiary of Caterpillar, 
Inc., and Dynalectric have collaborated to design and demonstrate a ZE switcher BEL 
and its associated charging infrastructure at PHL railyard located in the Port of Los 
Angeles. The ZE BEL will be powered by onboard batteries, will utilize six alternating 
current traction motors producing 2.4 megawatt-hours, and will plug into the enhanced 
grid charging infrastructure at PHL’s facility. The TAP funding provided by the Harbor 
Department and POLB will pay for the completion and demonstration of the charging 
infrastructure. The designed system is intended to deliver a full charge within four hours, 
which could provide enough energy for the BEL to effectively substitute for a standard 
diesel-electric switcher.  
 
Key project milestones include charging system infrastructure design and manufacture; 
delivery, assembly, and system integration; testing, development and permitting; 
charging infrastructure testing and commissioning; in use demonstration; and issuing a 
final report. The project will evaluate the performance of the BEL and charging system, 
as well as collect data on battery performance.  
 
Cost Share – In June 2007, the Harbor Department and POLB executed the CAAP Master 
Cost Share Agreement No. 2546 (Transmittal 1) to establish a cost sharing arrangement 
for TAP projects.  In accordance with the provisions of this Master Cost Share Agreement, 
the Project Cost Share Agreement between the Harbor Department and POLB is being 
submitted for approval (Transmittal 2). 
 
The total cost of the Project will be $4,751,904. The total amount of the TAP award is 
$845,390, shared equally by the Harbor Department and POLB, or $422,695 for each 
Port. PHL and their project team will pay the remaining costs. POLB has already entered 
into an agreement directly with PHL and assumes all Project and contract management 
responsibilities. As milestones are completed, POLB will pay PHL directly and submit 
invoices to the Harbor Department for reimbursement of one-half the amount paid by 

341/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 20, 2023 PAGE 3 OF 4 
 
SUBJECT: TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT WITH PACIFIC 

HARBOR LINE  
 
 
POLB. The POLB contract with PHL expires on December 31, 2024 and the cost share 
has no term. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 
 
The proposed action is approval of a Cost Share Agreement between the Harbor 
Department and POLB to fund a CAAP TAP project with PHL to design and demonstrate 
battery-electric locomotive charging infrastructure for the Project, which is an 
administrative activity and basic data collection, research, experimental management, 
and resource evaluation activities which do not result in a serious major disturbance to 
an environmental resource. Therefore, the proposed action is administratively and 
categorically exempt from the requirements of CEQA in accordance with Article II Section 
2(f) and Article III Class 6 of the Los Angeles City CEQA Guidelines. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The proposed action is to approve a Cost Share Agreement with POLB for funding the 
PHL BEL Zero Emission Switcher Locomotive Project.  POLB is the lead agency and is 
responsible for implementing the Project.  The total cost of the project is $4,751,904 and 
TAP funding in the amount of $845,390 will be split equally between the Harbor 
Department and POLB. The Harbor Department will reimburse POLB $422,695 (50%) of 
the total TAP funding.   It is anticipated that funds will be expended as follows: 
 

FY 2023/24 $  246,000 
FY 2024/25   $  176,695      

TOTAL    $  422,695 
 
Funds in the current fiscal year are available in Account 59965 (Customer Environmental 
Subsidies & Incentives), Center 0330 (Environmental), Program 000 (Base Budget). 
Future Fiscal Year funds  will be requested to be budgeted as part of the annual budget 
adoption process.  
 
The Harbor Department’s financial obligations for future fiscal years are contingent upon 
Board appropriation of funds.  If any subsequent fiscal year funds are not appropriated 
by the Board for the work required by the cost share agreement, the agreement would be 
terminated. However, such termination shall not relieve the parties of liability for any 
obligations previously incurred. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY: 
 
The Office of the City Attorney has reviewed and approved the proposed agreement as 
to form and legality.  

342/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 20, 2023 PAGE 4 OF 4 
 
SUBJECT: TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT WITH PACIFIC 

HARBOR LINE  
 
 
TRANSMITTALS: 
 
1. Master Cost Share Agreement with the Port of Long Beach 
2. PHL ZE Switcher Locomotive Project Cost Share Agreement with the Port of Long 

Beach 
 
 

FIS Approval: _____ 
 

CA Approval: _____ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LISA WUNDER        MICHAEL DiBERNARDO 
Acting Director of Environmental Management       Deputy Executive Director 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
EUGENE D. SEROKA 
Executive Director 
 
 
AUTHOR: B. Ford 
 
 
FILE: Y:\_ADMIN\_BOARD REPORTS\_AIR QUALITY\TAP\POLB - PHL\Environmental_TAP Cost Share PHL _Board Report - FINAL.docx 
UPDATED: 11/20/2023  9:29pm - MRX 

For

343/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

344/486



CLEAN AIR ACTION PLAN 

HARBOR DEPARTMENT 
'-. AGREEMENT 2 5 4 8 : 

CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

MASTER COST SHARING AGREEMENT 

- - - 

Ths agreement (the "Master Agreement") is entered into thls \ C (  day of 
, 2007, by the City of Long Beach, a municipal corporation, acting through its 

Harbor Commissioners ("Long Beach") and by the City of Los Angeles, a municipal * 
corporation, acting through its Board of Harbor Commissioners ('20s Angeles") (collectively, the 
"Ports"). 

Section 1. Recitals 

A. On November 20,2006, Long Beach and Los Angeles adopted the San Pedro Bay 
Ports Clean Air Action Plan ("CAAP"). 

B. The CAAP contains a number of joint strategies and initiatives to reduce emissions 
from port-related sources. 

C. Concurrently with this Mater Agreement, Long Beach and Los Angeles are entering 
into a memorandum of understanding regarding C A M  joint defense and legal cost sharing. 

D. With this Master Agreement, Long Beach and Los Angeles wish to establish a master 
cost sharing arrangement for all joint non-legal CAAP expenditures. 

E. Attached to this Master Agreement as an e h b i t  is a form for supplemental 
agreements for sharing specific costs pursuant to the terms and conditions of ths Master Agreement. 

Section 2. Term 

This Master Agreement shall commence on the date last signed by either the Executive 
Director of the Port of Los Angeles or the Executive director of the Port of Long Beach, It shall 
terminate upon completion of the last agreement entered into to accomplish work described in 
Section 1 of this Master Agreement or upon termination by either party as provided in this Master 
Agreement. 

Section 3. Preparation of Scope of Work and Award of Contract 

A. The Coordinating Committee shall consist of the Executive Directors of the Ports, 
the Director of Environmental Management of Los Angeles and the Managing Director of 
Environmental Affairs and Planning of Long Beach, or their respective designees. The Coordinating 
Committee shall establish a mutually satisfactory scope of work, budget, and terms of compensation, 
with each selected consultant or contractor for each separable element of work to be undertaken. 

~ ; \ ~ p p s ~ 3 z \ w ~ ~ o ~ p ~ o m o t 0 3 3 7 4 . m  
MASTER COST SHARING AGREEMENT 

TRANSMITTAL 1345/486

grantl
Typewritten Text

grantl
Typewritten Text



B. The third-party contracts shall be in the format of the contracting Port's procurement 
requirements. The non-contracting Port shall not be obligated to commit to share any costs under 
this Master Agreement unless the non-contracting Port is satisfied with the scope of work and the 
consultant organization or contractor selected for the study and has so indicated in writing and the 
Ports have executed an agreement to share costs in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "A." 

Section 4. Responsibility for Administration of Third-Party Contracts 

A. Contract administration shall be the responsibility of the contracting Port. However, 
the contracting and non-contracting Ports agree to meet in good faith through the Coordinating 
Committee to discuss progress and to resolve any disputes which may arise as to the quality or 
quantity of the work or questions regarding other contract terms. 

B. If members of the Coordinating Committee cannot resolve a given dispute, then the 
dispute shall be resolved by the Executive Directors of the two Ports. If the Executive Directors 
cannot reach agreement, then either Port may withdraw fiom participation in the sharing of costs 
under that contract upon ten days notice and shall be liable only for its share of costs accrued through 
the effective date of such withdrawal. 

C. Each third-party contract shall contain a provision whch allows for termination upon 
ten days notice and for payment to the consultant or contractor for work performed before 
termination. The third-party contract shall require that the consultant or contractor deliver to the 
contracting Port, all data gathered and all reports prepared prior to termination of the contract. All 
such data shall-be shared through the Coordinating Committee. 

D. All correspondence fiom the consultant or contractor to the contracting Port shall also 
be copied to the non-contracting Port. Any instructions fiom the contracting Port to the consultant or 
contractor shall also be copied to the non-contracting Port. / 

Section 5. Reimbursement of Monies Between Ports 

It shall be the responsibility of the contracting Port to pay all monies due the consultant or . 
contractor under the terms of the third-party contract. Subject to the provisions of Section 6 below, 
the non-contracting Port agrees to reimburse the contracting Port its share of the contracting costs 
actually paid to the consultant or contractor within 45 days of the receipt of a billing statement or 
invoice from the contracting Port. 

Section 6. Limitations on Reimbursement 

A. The contracting Port shall not be entitled to reimbursement for the cost of any extra 
work requested by the consultant or contractor unless the Ports have executed an amendment to the 
agreement in the form attached as Exhibit "A." If the consultant requests any extra work or extra 
monies, both Ports agree that this request shall be directed by the contracting Port to the 
Coordinating Committee, which shall recommend to the Ports whether payment for such extra work 
is appropriate. 

L~pp\ctuhw32\WPDocs\W2WOON)O103374.DOC 
MASTRR COST SHARING AGREEMENT 

346/486



B. If a dispute arises between the Ports, the non-contracting Port shall have the right to 
veto any proposed payment to the consultant or contractor for extra work conducted on behalf ofthe 
non-contracting Port, provided that the non-contracting Port agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the contracting Port, fiom any claims of the consultant or contractor arising fiom a veto by 
the non-contracting Port. 1f the non-contracting Port refuses to provide such written indemnity 
assurances, the contracting Port may pay the cost of such extra work and will be entitled to 
reimbursement from the non-contracting Port. 

C. The non-contracting Port shall not be responsible for any extra costs resulting fiom 
the negligence of the contracting Port in the administration of the third-party contract. 

Section 7. Rights and Obligations 

A. Ownership of Data and Records. Both Ports agree that all records, exhibits, work 
product and all related data collected or reproduced by a consultant or contractor ("data and 
records"), for whch the costs are shared pursuant to th s  Master Agreement, are to be the joint 
property of the Ports. The data and records shall not be released to any one nor used by anyone other 
than the Ports for any purpose or project without the express written authorization of the Executive 
Directors of the Ports, except to the extent that such data and records may be classified as public 
records under the California Government Code and except for use and release of such data and 
records for the direct benefit of either Port. 

B. Notices. Any notices to be given under or pursuant to this Master Agreement shall be 
served by mail or by personal delivery. When so given, such notice shall be effective two calendar 
days after the date of mailing or upon personal delivery, if not mailed. For the purpose hereof, unless 
otherwise provided in writing by the parties hereto, the address of the Port of Long Beach and the 
proper person to receive any such notice on its behalf is the Executive Director, Port of Long Beach, 
P.O. Box 570, Long Beach, California 90802. For the Port of Los Angeles, the proper person to 
receive notices on its behalf is the Executive Director, Port of Los Angeles, P.O. Box 151, San 
Pedro, California 90733. 

C. Termination. Either Port shall have the right to terminate this Master Agreement 
upon ten calendar days written notice to the other Port provided, however, such termination shall not 
affect the respective obligations of the Ports for any reimbursement due for bd-party contract costs 
accrued through the effective date of termination.. Lf termination of the Master Agreement occurs, 
each Port agrees to notify its consultants and contractors of any change in the scope of work or 
specific work tasks, whch may result fiom such termination. 

347/486



D. Cooperation and Port Staff Costs. Both Ports pledge to cooperate with each other and 
the consultant(s) selected to conduct the work. Both Ports agree that each will absorb its respective 
staff costs necessary to implement and meet the obligations of t h s  ~ a s t e k  Agreement. 

TS BOARD OF CITY OF LONG BEACH BY ITS BOARD OF 
S SIONERS 

Name: 
Title: 

Date: 4.6~ ,2007 Date: b 19 ,2007 

@ ATTEST: b ~ .  & 
. ;Pu/.r ,sAs/CC Name: ( 3 - b ~ ~  *e;- 

Title: & Title: L'~J?cu*u.p o-%to< 

Date: 2007 Date: 0 7007 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
ROCKARD J. DELGADTLLO, City Attorney ROBERT E. SHANNON, City Attorney 
City of Los Angeles City of Long Beach 

. By: By : 
Dominic T. ~ o l z h a b s /  

Principal Deputy City Attorney 

Date: ,2007 Date: ,2007 
# 

348/486



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
AND THE CITY OF LONG BEACH 

ESTABLISHING SPECIFIC CLEAN AIR ACTION PLAN 
COSTS TO BE SHARED 

[TITLE OF THIRD-PARTY CONTRACT] 

WHEREAS, the Cities of Los Angeles and Long Beach, acting by their respective 
Boards of Harbor Commissioners ("Ports") have entered into Los Angeles Agreement No. 

1 Long Beach Agreement No. ("Master Cost Sharing Agreement") 
expressing their desire to share the costs of certain contracts related to the SanPedro Bay Ports Clean 
Air Action Plan. 

WHEREAS, Ports are interested in sharing the cost of the contract for [describe 
purpose of contract]. 

NOW, THEREFORE, PORTS AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City of [insert] has retained [third-party] to undertake the following work: 
[describe]. The term of this contract is [term]. The total contract amount is [$ 1. The share of 
the City of Los Angeles shall be r % ]  percent; the share of the City of Long Beach shall be 
[ % I  percent. 

2. k e  terms and conditions of the Master Agreement are incorporated by 
reference into this agreement and Ports agree to abide by all the terms and conditions of said 
agreement. 

CITY OF LOS ANGELES BY ITS BOARD OF CITY OF LONG BEACH BY ITS BOARD OF 
HAR --wn.7 HARBOR CO SIONERS 

By: 
Name: 

Title Title: F$e~&t. 61aChPC 

Date Sa"pec* Date: 6 ,2007 

L L A  A 

Nan 
Titlc 

- - - - - - - - - - - .  
Name: k 5 t o v - t  \he;' 
Title: %&9cu\nus o ~ \ L ~  < 

Date: Jon47 ,2007 

07-00368 
CAAP PTH] 

349/486



APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
ROCKARD J. DELGADILLO, City Attorney ROBERT E. SHANNON, City Attorney 
City of Los Angeles City of Long Beach 

By: By: 
Joy M. Crose Dominic T. Holzhaus, 

Assistant General Counsel Principal Deputy City Attorney 

Date: ,2007 Date: ,2007 

C r t n i ~  i s  cl- 

\C "~d 
SG-y"~ 

L:\Apps\ctylaw32~WPDo~~\W2S\P00~00103375.~C 
AGREEMENT ESTABLISHTNG SPECIFIC COSTS TO BO SIlAiU!D P R M )  

350/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

351/486



TRANSMITTAL 2 352/486



353/486



354/486



Separator Page

11. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVING THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS 

IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE BY THE 

ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF ITS ALAMEDA 

CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY SENIOR 

LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS AND/OR 

SUBORDINATE LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 

AND AUTHORIZING SUCH OTHER ACTIONS AS ARE 

NECESSARY TO ASSIST THE AUTHORITY IN THE 

ISSUANCE OF SUCH REFUNDING BONDS AND MAKING 

A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO

355/486



IA 
THE PORT 
OF LOS ANGELES 

Executive Director's 
Report to the 

Board of Harbor Commissioners 

DATE: NOVEMBER 13, 2023 

FROM: EXECUTIVE OFFICE 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. .APPROVING THE EXECUTION 
AND DELIVERY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE ISSUANCE BY THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF ITS ALAMEDA 
CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY SENIOR LIEN REVENUE 
REFUNDING BONDS AND/OR SUBORDINATE LIEN REVENUE 
REFUNDING BONDS AND AUTHORIZING SUCH OTHER ACTIONS AS 
ARE NECESSARY TO ASSIST THE AUTHORITY IN THE ISSUANCE 
OF SUCH REFUNDING BONDS AND MAKING A DETERMINATION 
RELATING THERETO 

SUMMARY: 
Staff requests approval of certain documents related to the proposed issuance of the 
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (ACTA) Senior Lien Revenue Refunding 
Bonds and/or Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds (2024 ACTA Bonds) including 
certain disclosures required from the Port of Los Angeles. Given the Port of Los Angeles' 
role as a partial guarantor of ACTA's debt along with the Port of Long Beach, it must 
provide certain financial and operating disclosures to the bond market for any ACTA bond 
transaction both at the time of the initial offering and for as long as the bonds remain 
outstanding. ACTA is projecting that future revenues will be insufficient to cover debt 
service payments starting in Fiscal Year (FY) 2026 through 2037, and that shortfall 
advance payments would be required from the two ports to help make up the difference. 
The proposed transaction is expected to reduce the amount of debt service during this 
time period, thereby reducing the need for shortfall advance payments from the ports. 
Bond market conditions at the time of the transaction will determine the level of debt 
service savings that will be achieved. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Los Angeles Board of Harbor Commissioners (Board): 

1. Find that the Director of Environmental Management has determined that the 
proposed action is administratively exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Article II Section 2(f) of the Los Angeles City 
CEQA Guidelines; 

356/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 13, 2023 PAGE 2 OF 4 

SUBJECT: TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN RELATION 
TO THE ISSUANCE OF 2024 ACTA BONDS 

2. Authorize the execution and delivery of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the 
Letter of Representation, and other related documents and certificates in connection 
with the issuance and sale of the 2024 ACTA Bonds; 

3. Authorize the City of Los Angeles Harbor Department's Executive Director or Chief 
Financial Officer, each of them acting individually, to comply with the terms and intent 
of the Board's Resolution, to assist ACTA in the issuance of the 2024 ACTA Bonds, 
to execute and deliver any documents or instruments related thereto and to take such 
other actions as may be deemed necessary or desirable in order to carry out the 
purposes of the Board's Resolution subject to: (i) approval of the issuance of the 2024 
ACTA Bonds by ACTA; and (ii) the conditions set forth in the Resolution; 

4. Approve certain disclosures relating to the finances and operations of the Harbor 
Department to be contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement for the 2024 ACTA Bonds including the Audited Financial Statements of 
the Harbor Department, with such changes thereto as the Executive Director or the 
Chief Financial Officer may require or approve; and 

5. Adopt Resolution No. _ 

DISCUSSION: 
Background/Context - ACTA is a joint-powers authority created by the City of Los 
Angeles and the City of Long Beach in 1996 to construct, finance, and operate a freight 
expressway corridor connecting the rail system near downtown Los Angeles to the Ports 
of Los Angeles (POLA) and Long Beach (POLS). Since its formation, ACTA has issued 
several series of revenue bonds for this purpose. Currently, ACTA has approximately 
$1.6 billion in outstanding bonds, and is projecting that future revenues will be insufficient 
to cover debt service payments starting in FY 2026 through FY 2037 as a result of less 
cargo than expected being transported through the Rail Corridor. 
Both POLA and POLS are obligated under the terms of the Alameda Corridor Use and 
Operating Agreement to make certain payments known as Shortfall Advances, if ACT A's 
use fees and container charges are not sufficient to meet scheduled debt service 
payments on ACTA's bonds. The Shortfall Advances are limited to 40% of the debt 
service on ACTA's bonds, with each port obligated to pay 20%. In 2011 and 2012, POLA 
and POLS collectively made a total of $11.8 million in Shortfall Advances. Pursuant to the 
terms of the Use and Operating Agreement, ACTA is obligated to reimburse the Ports 
after certain obligations are met. 

In 2024, ACTA intends to issue debt to conduct a tender solicitation that will target ACTA 
bonds issued in 1999 and 2004. A tender is an invitation to existing bondholders to 
purchase their bonds with the proceeds of a new issuance. Given current market 
dynamics, undertaking such a transaction presents an opportunity to lower ACTA's debt 
service obligations. The success of the effort will depend upon the level of investor 
participation. 

357/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 13, 2023 PAGE 3 OF 4 

SUBJECT: TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN RELATION 
TO THE ISSUANCE OF 2024 ACTA BONDS 

ACTA plans to have transactions in 2025 and 2026 to target reducing Shortfall Advances 
for the two Ports from FY 2026 to FY 2037 by restructuring and refunding the remaining 
outstanding bonds at that time. This restructuring is expected to generate significant relief 
from projected shortfall payments for the two ports through FY 2037. If the tender is 
successful, the 2024 and 2025 issuances will reduce the size of the transaction required 
in 2026. 

Given the Port's role as a partial guarantor of ACTA's debt, it must provide certain 
financial and operating disclosures to the bond market for any ACTA bond transaction 
both at the time of the initial offering and for as long as the bonds remain outstanding. 
In recent years, the Board has approved documents for ACTA financing transactions to 
address the need for Shortfall payments from the Port in 2016 and 2022. 

Implications of this Action - By taking this action, the Board: 1) authorizes Harbor 
Department staff to carry out and comply with the terms and intent of the Resolution 
(Transmittal 1) and to assist ACTA in the issuance of the 2024 ACTA Bonds, subject to 
the conditions set forth in the Resolution; 2) authorizes staff to execute and deliver 
the Continuing Disclosure Certificate (Transmittal 2) and the Letter of Representation 
(Transmittal 3); and 3) approves certain disclosures concerning the finances and 
operations of POLA to be contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement for the transaction (Transmittal 4). 

The Continuing Disclosure Certificate would obligate the Harbor Department to update 
and disclose annually certain information about the Harbor Department finances and 
operations contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement for 
the 2024 ACTA Bonds and to provide notice of certain enumerated events in accordance 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission regulations for as long as the bonds 
remain outstanding. The Letter of Representation provides a certification from the 
Department that the information it is providing is accurate and complete. 

Other Required Approvals - The Board of Harbor Commissioners for POLB is expected 
to approve documents related to the ACTA transaction at its meeting on December 11, 
2023. ACTA's Governing Board is expected to approve the proposed transaction on 
December 14, 2023. The closing of the transaction is planned for February 2024. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 
The proposed action is the approval to execute and deliver documents and certificates in 
connection with 2024 ACTA Bonds, which is an administrative activity. Therefore, the 
Director of Environmental Management has determined that the proposed action is 
administratively exempt from the requirements of CEQA in accordance with Article II 
Section 2(f) of the Los Angeles City CEQA Guidelines. 

358/486



DATE: NOVEMBER 13, 2023 PAGE 4 OF 4 

SUBJECT: TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN RELATION 
TO THE ISSUANCE OF 2024 ACTA BONDS 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Approval of the proposed Resolution will approve the execution and delivery of certain 
documents by the Harbor Department which will facilitate ACT A's issuance of 2024 ACTA 
Bonds. The issuance of the 2024 ACTA Bonds will reduce ACTA's debt service 
obligations from FY 2026 through FY 2037. Currently, ACTA's debt service obligations 
are anticipated to generate shortfalls totaling approximately $769 million from FY 2026 
through FY 2037 because forecasted revenues will be insufficient to cover ACTA's 
operating costs and debt service obligations. 

Assuming that 20% of current bondholders elect to participate in the tender offer 
contemplated under the 2024 ACTA Bond transaction, FY 2026 through FY 2037 debt 
service obligations are anticipated to be reduced by approximately $208 million. The 
remaining $561 million in FY 2026 through FY 2037 shortfalls are anticipated to be 
addressed by subsequent financing transactions currently expected to occur in 2025 and 
2026. 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
The Office of the City Attorney has reviewed and approved the proposed Resolution as 
to form and legality and the proposed Continuing Disclosure Certificates as to form and 
legality. 

TRANSMITTALS: 
1. Resolution No. ------ 
2. Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
3. Letter of Representation 
4. Certain Disclosure Concerning the Finances and Operations of the Port of Los 

Angeles and the Harbor Department to be contained in the Preliminary Official 
Statement and the Official Statement 

/ftfJ ~ 
MARLA BLEAVINS 
Deputy Executive Director and 
Chief Financial Officer 

APPROVED: 

11),tchol&.- /Jiv6.~~~ 
~ l'--EUGENE D. SEROKA 

Executive Director 

Author: M. Bleavins 

FIS Approval: 'J!t!.__ (initials) 
CA Approval: ___ (initials) 

359/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

360/486



4886-4332-8146.1  

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF HARBOR COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
ISSUANCE BY THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF ITS ALAMEDA 
CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY SENIOR LIEN 
REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS AND/OR SUBORDINATE LIEN 
REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS AND AUTHORIZING SUCH OTHER 
ACTIONS AS ARE NECESSARY TO ASSIST THE AUTHORITY IN THE 
ISSUANCE OF SUCH REFUNDING BONDS AND MAKING A 
DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the Government 
Code of the State of California, as amended (the “Joint Powers Act”), the City of Los Angeles and 
the City of Long Beach (together, the “Members”) entered into that certain Amended and Restated 
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated as of December 18, 1996, as amended (the “JPA 
Agreement”), creating the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (previously known as the 
Consolidated Transportation Corridor Joint Powers Authority) (the “Authority”), a public entity 
separate and apart from the Members; and 

WHEREAS, as of December 31, 2022, the Authority had outstanding approximately $2.7 
billion aggregate principal amount or accreted value of its senior lien bonds, subordinate lien 
bonds, and second subordinate lien bonds, (collectively, the “ACTA Obligations”); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Los Angeles (the “City”), acting by and through its Board of 
Harbor Commissioners (the “Board”), entered into the Amended and Restated Alameda Corridor 
Use and Operating Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2016 (the “Use and Operating 
Agreement”), by and among the City, acting by and through the Board, the City of Long Beach, 
acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners (the “POLB”), the Authority, BNSF 
Railway Company and Union Pacific Railroad Company; and 

WHEREAS, the Use and Operating Agreement provides that if during any calendar year 
the debt service on the ACTA Obligations and certain other bond-related amounts are not paid in 
full (the “Required Annual Payment”), the City, acting by and through the Board, and POLB will 
advance to the Authority, from any legally available source, funds (“Shortfall Advances”) 
sufficient to pay a portion of the debt service on the ACTA Obligations and certain other bond-
related amounts to the extent the Authority’s use fees and container charges are insufficient; and 

WHEREAS, the contingent obligation of the City, acting by and through the Board, to pay 
the Shortfall Advances in any calendar year is limited to paying 20% of the Required Annual 
Payment due each year; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority currently projects that the City, acting through the Board, will 
be required to pay Shortfall Advances in the future; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to make a cash tender offer and/or exchange offer (the 

361/486



4 
4886-4332-8146.1  

“Senior Tender Offer”) to holders of all or a portion of its outstanding senior lien bonds (the 
“Tender Offer Senior Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to make a cash tender offer and/or exchange offer (the 
“First Subordinate Tender Offer” and together with the Senior Tender Offer, the “Tender 
Offers”) to holders of all or a portion of its outstanding subordinate lien bonds (the “Tender Offer 
First Subordinate Bonds” and together with the Tender Offer Senior Bonds, the “Tender Offer 
Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority is proposing to issue its senior lien revenue refunding bonds in 
one or more series (the “Senior Lien Refunding Bonds”) for the purposes of: (i) (A) purchasing 
or exchanging all or a portion of the Tender Offer Senior Bonds that the holders thereof elect to 
tender to or exchange with the Authority (such tendered or exchanged bonds, the “Tendered Senior 
Bonds”), and/or (B) refunding and defeasing to their redemption date or stated maturity date, as 
applicable, a portion of any or all maturities of the Authority’s outstanding senior lien bonds and 
(ii) paying costs of issuing the Senior Lien Refunding Bonds, including any premiums with respect 
to bond insurance and/or a debt service reserve surety policy, if any, for the Senior Lien Refunding 
Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority is proposing to issue its subordinate lien revenue refunding 
bonds in one or more series (the “First Subordinate Lien Refunding Bonds,” and together with 
the Senior Lien Refunding Bonds, the “Refunding Bonds”) for the purposes of: (i) (A) purchasing 
or exchanging all or a portion of the Tendered Senior Bonds or the Tender Offer First Subordinate 
Bonds that the holders thereof elect to tender to or exchange with the Authority (such tendered or 
exchanged bonds, the “Tendered First Subordinate Bonds”, and together with the Tendered 
Senior Bonds, the “Tendered Bonds”), and/or (B) refunding and defeasing to their redemption 
date or stated maturity date, as applicable, a portion of any or all maturities of the Authority’s 
outstanding senior lien bonds and/or subordinate lien bonds and (ii) paying costs of issuing the 
First Subordinate Lien Refunding Bonds, including any premiums with respect to bond insurance 
and/or a debt service reserve surety policy, if any, for the First Subordinate Lien Refunding Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Authority’s plan of finance with respect to the Refunding Bonds includes 
the option of obtaining bond insurance on all or a portion of the Refunding Bonds, and the purchase 
of one or more debt service reserve surety policies, in lieu of using bond proceeds to fund a debt 
service reserve fund for the Refunding Bonds, from a surety provider with a credit rating of at least 
“A” or better from at least one nationally recognized rating agency, for the purpose of achieving 
present value debt service savings; and 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the issuance of the Refunding Bonds and the related 
purchase or exchange of the Tendered Bonds and/or the refunding and defeasance of all or a 
portion of the outstanding bonds may reduce the Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles’ 
exposure to paying Shortfall Advances in the future; and 

WHEREAS, in order to assist the Authority with the issuance of the Refunding Bonds, 
there has been presented to this Board the following documents: 

362/486



5 
4886-4332-8146.1  

(a) a form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate”) one or more of which will be executed and delivered by the City, 
acting by and through the Board, in connection with the issuance of the Refunding Bonds; 
and 

(b) a form of the Letter of Representation (the “Letter of Representation”) one 
or more of which will be executed and delivered by the City, acting by and through the 
Board, which will set forth various representations of the City, acting by and through the 
Board, covering various matters requested by the underwriters of the Refunding Bonds; 
and 

(c) a form of the disclosure concerning the finances and operations of the Port 
of Los Angeles and the Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles (the “Harbor 
Department”) to be contained in the preliminary official statement(s) and the final official 
statement(s) of the Authority, that will be prepared and distributed by the Authority, from 
time to time, in connection with the issuance and sale of the Refunding Bonds;  

WHEREAS, neither the payment of the principal of or the interest on the ACTA 
Obligations or the Refunding Bonds shall constitute a debt, liability, or obligation of the City, the 
Board or the Harbor Department, but shall constitute a limited contractual obligation of the City, 
acting by and through the Board, to pay Shortfall Advances;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Harbor Commissioners of the 
City of Los Angeles, as follows: 

Section 1. Continuing Disclosure Certificate and Letter of Representation.  The 
form, terms and provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the Letter of 
Representation are in all respects approved, and the Executive Director of the Harbor Department 
(including any person serving in an acting or interim capacity) and/or the Chief Financial Officer 
of the Harbor Department (including any person serving in an acting or interim capacity), or their 
respective designees, any one or more thereof (each an “Authorized Officer”), are hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver one or more Continuing 
Disclosure Certificates and one or more Letters of Representation, including counterparts thereof, 
in the name and on behalf of the City, acting by and through the Board.  The Continuing Disclosure 
Certificates and the Letters of Representation, as executed and delivered, shall be in substantially 
the forms now before this Board and hereby approved, with such changes and revisions therein as 
shall be approved by the Authorized Officer or Officers executing the same and the City Attorney 
of the City (the “City Attorney”); the execution thereof by an Authorized Officer shall constitute 
conclusive evidence of the Board’s approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the 
forms of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the Letter of Representation now before this 
Board; and from and after the execution and delivery of each Continuing Disclosure Certificate, 
the officers, agents and employees of the Harbor Department are hereby authorized, empowered 
and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary 
or advisable to carry out and comply with the provisions of each such Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate. 

The Board hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the 

363/486



6 
4886-4332-8146.1  

provisions of each Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 

Section 2. Disclosure Relating to Port of Los Angeles and the Harbor Department.  
The disclosure relating to the Port of Los Angeles and the Harbor Department to be contained in 
the preliminary official statement(s) and the final official statement(s) of the Authority with respect 
to the Refunding Bonds in substantially the form now before this Board is hereby approved, with 
such changes thereto, including through any supplements or amendments thereto, as the City 
Attorney and an Authorized Officer may require or approve, and the execution of each Letter of 
Representation by an Authorized Officer shall constitute conclusive evidence of the Board’s 
approval of any all changes or revisions therein from the form of the disclosure now before this 
Board. 

Section 3. Additional Authorizations.  Each Authorized Officer and all officers, 
agents and employees of the Harbor Department, for and on behalf of the Board, are hereby 
authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary or advisable to assist the Authority with 
the issuance of the Refunding Bonds or in connection with the Tender Offers and/or the refunding 
and defeasance of the Authority’s outstanding bonds.  Each Authorized Officer and all other 
officers, agents and employees of the Harbor Department are further authorized and directed, for 
and on behalf of the Board, to execute all papers, documents and certificates that may be required 
in order to carry out the authority conferred by this Resolution, including, without limitation, 
entering into agreements and providing certificates which may be required by the provider of any 
bond insurance or debt service reserve surety policy for the Refunding Bonds (including, but not 
limited to, one or more non-assignment agreements, if one is required by the provider of any bond 
insurance or debt service reserve surety policy for the Refunding Bonds, provided any such 
agreement or certificate shall not impose any new financial obligations on the City, the Board or 
the Harbor Department).  All actions heretofore taken by each Authorized Officer and by all 
officers, agents and employees of the Harbor Department, for and on behalf of the Board, in 
connection with or related to the issuance and sale of the Refunding Bonds or in connection with 
or related to the Tender Offers and/or the refunding and defeasance of the Authority’s outstanding 
bonds, and in connection with the authorization, execution and delivery of, and performance of 
obligations under, the Use and Operating Agreement, and in connection with the authorization and 
performance of obligations under the JPA Agreement, are hereby approved, confirmed and 
ratified. 

Section 4. Severability of Invalid Provisions.  If any one or more of the provisions 
contained in this Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in 
any respect, then such provision or provisions shall be deemed severable from the remaining 
provisions contained in this Resolution and such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not 
affect any other provision of this Resolution, and this Resolution shall be construed as if such 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. The Board hereby 
declares that it would have adopted this Resolution and each and every other Section, paragraph, 
sentence, clause or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more Sections, paragraphs, 
sentences, clauses or phrases of this Resolution may be held illegal, invalid or unenforceable. 

Section 5. Section Headings and References; Interpretation.  The headings or titles 
of the several Sections hereof, and any table of contents appended to copies hereof, shall be solely 

364/486



7 
4886-4332-8146.1  

for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect of this 
Resolution. 

All references herein to “Sections” and other subdivisions are to the corresponding 
Sections or subdivisions of this Resolution; the words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereby,” “hereunder” 
and other words of similar import refer to this Resolution as a whole and not to any particular 
Section or subdivision hereof; and words of the masculine gender shall mean and include words 
of the feminine and neuter genders. 

Section 6. Governing Law.  This Resolution shall be construed and governed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect in the manner and at the 
time set forth in the Charter of the City, including Section 11.28.5 of the City Administrative Code. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 

 , 2023 
HYDEE FELDSTEIN SOTO, City Attorney 
Steven Y. Otera, General Counsel 

By    
____________, Deputy 

 

365/486



4886-4332-8146.1  

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned, duly qualified and acting as Secretary of the Board of Harbor 
Commissioners of the City of Los Angeles, certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy 
of a Resolution adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Board of the Harbor Commissioners 
of the City of Los Angeles held on  , 2023. 

By   
Secretary, Board of Harbor 
Commissioners of the City of Los 
Angeles 

Dated:  

 
 

366/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

367/486



   

1 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (this “Certificate”) is executed and delivered, effective 
November________, 2024, by the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”); the City 
of Long Beach, acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners (“POLB”); and the City of Los 
Angeles, acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners (“POLA”), in connection with the 
issuance by the Authority of its Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2024A (the 
“Series 2024A Bonds”), its Taxable Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2024B (the “Series 
2024B Bonds”), its Tax-Exempt First Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2024C (the 
“Series 2024C Bonds”), its Taxable First Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2024D (the 
“Series 2024D Bonds”, and collectively with the Series 2024A Bonds, the Series 2024B Bonds, and the 
Series 2024C Bonds, the “Bonds”).  The Series 2024A Bonds were issued pursuant to the terms of a Master 
Trust Indenture dated as of January 1, 1999, by and between the Authority and U.S. Bank Trust Company, 
National Association (as successor in trust to U.S. Bank National Association), as trustee (the “Trustee”), 
as previously amended and supplemented (the “Master Indenture”), and as further amended and 
supplemented by that certain Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of _______, 2024 by and 
between the Authority and the Trustee (the “Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture”). The Series 
2024B Bonds were issued pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture, as further amended and 
supplemented by that certain Sixteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of _______, 2024 by and 
between the Authority and the Trustee (the “Sixteen Supplemental Trust Indenture”). The Series 2024C 
Bonds were issued pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture, as further amended and 
supplemented by that certain Seventeenth Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of _______, 2024 and 
between the Authority and the Trustee (the “Seventeenth Supplemental Trust Indenture”). The Series 
2024D Bonds were issued pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture, as further amended and 
supplemented by that certain Eighteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of _______, 2024 by and 
between the Authority and the Trustee (the “Eighteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture”, and together 
with the Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Sixteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, and the 
Seventeenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the “Indenture”). 

The Authority, POLB and POLA hereby covenant as follows: 

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Certificate. This Certificate is being executed and delivered by the 
Authority, POLB and POLA for the benefit of the Owners and Beneficial Owners (as defined below) of the 
Bonds and in order to assist the Underwriters (as defined below) in complying with the Rule (as defined 
below). 

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture and the Official 
Statement (as defined below), which apply to any capitalized terms used in this Certificate unless otherwise 
defined in this Section, the following capitalized terms have the following meanings: 

“1999 Bonds” means the Authority’s: (i) Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt 
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A, (ii) Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt 
Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999B, (iii) Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable 
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999C, and (iv) Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable 
Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 1999D. 

“2004 Bonds” means the Authority’s: (i) Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt 
Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A, and (ii) Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 
Taxable Subordinate Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2004B. 

368/486



   

2 

“Annual Report” means the annual report filed by the Authority pursuant to, and as described in, 
Section 3 and 4 of this Certificate. 

“Beneficial Owner” means any person who (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or 
consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through 
nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for federal 
income tax purposes. 

“Commission” means the Securities and Exchange Commission, or any successor body thereto. 

“Dissemination Agent” means any person appointed in writing by the Authority to act as the 
Authority’s agent in complying with the filing requirements of the Rule. As of the date of this Certificate, 
the Authority has not appointed a Dissemination Agent. 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal securities 
disclosure (http://emma.msrb.org) or any other dissemination agent or conduit required, designated or 
permitted by the Commission. 

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

“Filing Date” has the meaning given to it in Section 3(a) of this Certificate. 

“Financial Obligation” means a: (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in 
connection with, or pledged as security or  a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; 
or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii). The term “Financial Obligation” does not include municipal securities as to 
which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

“Listed Events” means any of the events listed in Section 5 of this Certificate. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 15B(b)(1) of the Exchange Act, or any other entity designated or authorized by the 
Commission to receive reports pursuant to the Rule. 

“Official Statement” means the final official statement dated January __, 2024, of the Authority 
relating to the Bonds. 

“Rule” means Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Commission under the Exchange Act, as the 
same may be amended from time to time. 

“Underwriters” means the original underwriters of the Bonds required to comply with the Rule in 
connection with the offering of the Bonds on the effective date of this Certificate. 

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a) The Authority, on behalf of itself and POLB and POLA, must, or must cause the 
Dissemination Agent to, not later than April 1 (or June 1, with respect to POLB’s obligations under this 
Certificate, on and after the date that the 1999 Bonds and the 2004 Bonds are no longer Outstanding) of 
each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding (the “Filing Date”), commencing April 1, 2024, with 
respect to the report for the fiscal year ending in 2022, provide an Annual Report consistent with the 
requirements of Section 4 of this Certificate. Each Annual Report may be submitted as a single document 
or as separate documents comprising a package, and may include by reference other information as 

369/486



   

3 

provided in Section 4 of this Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the Authority, 
POLB and POLA may be submitted separately from the balance of such Annual Report and later than the 
date required above for the filing of such Annual Report if they are not available by that date. 

(b) Not later than 15 Business Days prior to the Filing Date, the Authority must 
provide such Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent (if one has been appointed). If the Authority is 
unable to file such Annual Report with the MSRB through EMMA by the Filing Date, the Authority 
must file a notice with the MSRB through EMMA in substantially the form of Exhibit A to this Certificate. 

(c) POLB and POLA must each provide to the Authority: 

(i) Not later than March 1 (or May 1, with respect to POLB’s obligations 
under this Certificate, on and after the date that the 1999 Bonds and the 2004 Bonds are no longer 
Outstanding) after the end of each of its respective fiscal years, commencing with the fiscal year 
ending in 2022, the applicable information described in Section 4(b) and Section 4(c) of this 
Certificate. 

(ii) At any other time any information requested by the Authority with respect 
to other disclosure obligations. 

(iii) Prompt notice of any change in POLB’s or POLA’s, as applicable, fiscal 
year. 

(iv) Notice of each of the following, as applicable, in sufficient time for the 
Authority to meet its obligations under Section 5 of this Certificate: (i) any bankruptcy, insolvency, 
receivership or similar event of POLB or POLA, (ii) the consummation of any merger, 
consolidation or acquisition involving POLB or POLA, (iii) the sale of all or substantially all of the 
assets of POLB or POLA other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive 
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any 
such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, and/or (iv) the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent 
or similar officer for POLB or POLA in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any 
other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of POLB or POLA, or if such jurisdiction 
has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and  officials or officers in possession 
but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an 
order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental 
authority having supervision over substantially all of the assets or business of POLB or POLA. 

(v) Prompt notice that the obligation of POLB or POLA, as the case may be, 
under this Certificate has been assumed in full by some other entity and evidence that such entity 
is responsible for compliance with this Certificate in the same manner as if it were POLB or POLA, 
as the case may be. 

(d) If the Authority’s fiscal year changes or the Authority receives notice from POLB 
or POLA that POLB’s or POLA’s fiscal year changed, the Authority will give notice of such change in the 
same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5 of this Certificate. 

(e) The Dissemination Agent (if one has been appointed) must (i) determine each year 
prior to the Filing Date and (ii) file a report with the Authority certifying that the Annual Report has been 
filed with the MSRB through EMMA pursuant to this Certificate, stating the date it was provided. 

370/486



   

4 

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Annual Reports must contain or include by reference 
the following: 

(a) Information Relating to the Authority. 

(i) The audited financial statements of the Authority for the Fiscal Year most 
recently ended, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as 
promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. If the Authority’s audited financial statements are not available by the Filing 
Date, the Annual Reports must contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the 
financial statements contained in the Official Statement, and the audited financial statements must 
be filed in the same manner as the Annual Reports when they become available. 

(ii) To the extent not included in the audited financial statements of the 
Authority, the Annual Report must contain or include by reference (i) for the most recently 
completed calendar year, as described in the Appendix A to the Official Statement under the 
heading “THE RAIL CORRIDOR AND RELATED PROJECTS - Maintenance and Operation of 
the Rail Corridor - M & O Charges,” the Monthly Amount (as defined in the Official Statement) 
and the amount the Railroads (as defined in the Official Statement) paid for insurance premiums, 
and (ii) information for the most recently completed fiscal year or calendar year, as applicable, in 
form and substance substantially similar to the information in the following tables set forth in the 
Official Statement: 

(I) Table 1 – “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority – 
Outstanding Senior Lien, First Subordinate and Second Subordinate Lien Bonds;” 

(II) Table 5 – “Schedule of Use Fees;” 

(III) Table 6 – “Use Fees and Container Charges;” 

(IV) Table 7 – “Ports of Long Beach and Los Angeles and Authority 
Container Throughput” (providing only the Authority information for the most recently 
completed calendar year); 

(V) Table 8 – “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority – 
Container Charges and Use Fees;” 

(VI) Table 9 – “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority – 
Container Charge and Use Fee Revenue” 

(VII) Table 10 – “Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority – 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position;” 

(VIII) Table 11 – “Historical Authority Revenue Debt Service 
Coverage.” 

(IX) Table 13 – “Historical Dedicated Revenue Debt Service 
Coverage.” 

(b) Information Relating to POLB. 

371/486



   

5 

(i) The audited financial statements of POLB for the Fiscal Year most 
recently ended, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as 
promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. If POLB’s audited financial statements are not available by the Filing Date, the 
Annual Reports must contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the financial 
statements contained in the final official statement relating to the Bonds, and the audited financial 
statements must be filed in the same manner as the Annual Reports when they become available. 

(ii) To the extent not included in the audited financial statements of POLB, 
the Annual Report must contain or include by reference (i) the outstanding principal amount of 
POLB’s Harbor Revenue Bonds and (ii) information for the most recently completed fiscal year, 
calendar year or twelve month period, as applicable, in form and substance substantially similar to 
the information in the following tables set forth in the Official Statement : 

(I) Table C-1 – “Port of Long Beach - Operating Revenues;” 

(II) Table C-2 – “Port of Long Beach -  Leading Revenue 
Producers;” 

(III) Table C-3 – “Port of Long Beach -  Revenue Tonnage and TEU 
Summary,” 

(IV) Table C-4 – “Port of Long Beach -  Revenue Tonnage by Cargo 
Type,” 

(V) Table C-5 – “Port of Long Beach -  Container Traffic” 
(providing only the information for the most recently completed calendar year); 

(VI) Table C-6 – “Port of Long Beach - Container Traffic” (providing 
only the information for the most recently completed POLB fiscal year); and 

(VII) Table C-7 – “Port of Long Beach - Comparative Summary of 
Statements of Revenues and Expenses.” 

(c) Information Relating to POLA. 

(i) The audited financial statements of POLA for the Fiscal Year most 
recently ended, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as 
promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. If POLA’s audited financial statements are not available by the Filing Date, the 
Annual Reports must contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the financial 
statements contained in the final official statement relating to the Bonds, and the audited financial 
statements must be filed in the same manner as the Annual Reports when they become available. 

(ii) To the extent not included in the audited financial statements of POLA, 
the Annual Report must contain or include by reference (i) the outstanding principal amount of 
POLA’s Parity Obligations (as defined in the Official Statement) and (ii) information for the most 
recently completed fiscal year or calendar year, as applicable, in form and substance substantially 
similar to the information in the following tables set forth in the Official Statement: 

372/486



   

6 

(I) Table B-1 – “Major Permittees (Tenants) of the Port of Los 
Angeles;” 

(II) Table B-2 – “Port of Los Angeles - Summary of Revenues, 
Expenses and Net Assets;” 

(III) Table B-3 – “Port of Los Angeles - Revenue Tonnage by 
Cargo Type;” 

(IV) Table B-4 – “Port of Los Angeles - Container Traffic” 
(providing only the information for the most recently completed calendar year); 

(V) Table B-5 – “Port of Los Angeles - Container Traffic” (providing 
only the information for the most recently completed POLA fiscal year); and 

(VI) Table B-6 – “Port of Los Angeles -  Shipping Revenue 
Breakdown.” 

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents, including 
official statements or other disclosure documents of debt issues of the Authority, POLB, POLB or related 
public entities, which have been filed with the MSRB through EMMA or the Commission. If the 
document included by reference is a final official statement, it must be available on EMMA. The 
Authority must clearly identify each such other document so included by reference. The contents, 
presentation and format of the Annual Reports may be modified  from time to time as determined in the 
judgment of the Authority to conform to changes in accounting or disclosure principles or practices and 
legal requirements followed by or applicable to the Authority, POLB or POLA or to reflect changes in the 
business, structure, operations,  legal form of the Authority, POLB or POLA or any mergers, 
consolidations, acquisitions or dispositions made by or affecting the Authority, POLB or POLA; provided 
that any such modifications must comply with the requirements of the Rule. 

SECTION 5. Reporting of Listed Events. 

(a) The Authority must file, in a timely manner, but not more than ten (10) business 
days after its occurrence, with the MSRB through EMMA, notice of the occurrence of any of the following 
events with respect to the Bonds:  

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(iii) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial  

(iv) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(v) Adverse tax opinions or issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability or of a Notice of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB); 

(vi) Tender offers; 

373/486



   

7 

(vii) Defeasances; 

(viii) Rating changes; 

(ix) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Authority, 
POLA or POLB; or 

(x) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms or 
other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Authority, POLA or POLB, 
any of which reflect financial difficulties. 

Note for purposes of the event described in subsection (ix) of this Section 5, the event is considered to 
occur when any of the following occurs: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for 
the Authority, POLB or POLA in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other 
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction 
over substantially all of the assets or business of the Authority, POLB or POLA, as applicable, or if such 
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in 
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of 
an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental 
authority having supervision over substantially all of the assets or business of the Authority, POLB or 
POLA, as applicable. 

(b) the Authority must give, or cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the 
following events with respect to the Bonds, if material, in a timely manner not later than ten (10) business 
days after the occurrence of the event: 

(i) Unless described in Section 5(a)(v), other material notices or 
determinations by the Internal Revenue Service with respect to the tax status of the Bonds or other 
material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(ii) Modifications to rights of Bond holders; 

(iii) Optional, unscheduled or contingent Bond calls; 

(iv) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; 

(v) Non-payment related defaults; 

(vi) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 
Authority or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Authority, other than in the 
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms; 

(vii) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of 
a trustee for the Bonds; or 

(viii) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Authority, POLA or POLB, or 
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights or other similar items of a 
Financial Obligation of the Authority, POLA or POLB, any of which affect security holders. 

374/486



   

8 

(c) Whenever (i) the Authority obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event 
described in Section 5(a) or (ii) the Authority obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event 
described in Section 5(b) and has determined that knowledge of the occurrence of such a Listed Event 
would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the Authority must promptly report the 
occurrence pursuant to subsection (d) of this Section 5. 

(d) the Authority must file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB in electronic 
format, accompanied by such identifying information as is prescribed by the MSRB, with a copy to the 
Authority. 

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Authority’s, POLB’s and POLA’s 
obligations under this Certificate will terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full 
of all of the Bonds or when the Authority, POLB or POLA, as the case may be, is otherwise no longer an 
obligated person within the meaning of the Rule with respect to the Bonds. If the Authority’s, POLB’s or 
POLA’s, as the case may be, obligations under this Certificate are assumed in full by some other entity, 
such person is responsible for compliance with this Certificate in the same manner as if it were the 
Authority, POLB or POLA, as the case may be, and the Authority, POLB or POLA, as the case may be, 
will have no further responsibility under this Certificate. The Authority must provide timely notice to the 
MSRB of the termination of the Authority’s, POLB’s or POLA’s, as the case may be, obligations under 
this Certificate pursuant to an assumption of its or their obligations under this Certificate. 

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The Authority may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Certificate, and may discharge any 
such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The 
Dissemination Agent may resign by providing sixty (60) days written notice to the Authority. The 
Dissemination Agent is not responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by 
the Authority pursuant to this Certificate. 

SECTION 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Certificate, the 
Authority, POLB and POLA may amend this Certificate, and any provision of this Certificate may be 
waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Section 3(a), Section 4, or 
Section 5, it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in 
legal requirements, change in law or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with 
respect to the Bonds, or the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertakings, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the 
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time 
of the original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the 
Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Owners of the Bonds in the 
same manner as provided in the Indenture for amendments to the Indenture with the consent of Owners of 
the Bonds, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the 
interests of the Owners or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Certificate, the Authority must describe 
such amendment in its next Annual Report, and include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the 
reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or, in the case of a change of accounting 
principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the 

375/486



   

9 

Authority. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing 
financial statements, (i) notice of such change must be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event 
under Section 5, and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made must present a 
comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements 
as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former 
accounting principles. 

SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this certificate may be deemed to prevent the 
Authority, POLB or POLA from disseminating any other information, including the information then 
contained in the Authority’s, POLB’s or POLA’s official statements or other disclosure documents relating 
to debt issuance, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Certificate or any other means of 
communication, or including any other information in any Annual Report notice of occurrence of a Listed 
Event, in addition to that which is required by this Certificate. If the Authority, POLB or POLA chooses to 
include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of Listed Event in addition to that 
which is specifically required by this Certificate, neither the Authority, POLB nor POLA will have any 
obligation under this Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or 
notice of a Listed Event. 

SECTION 10. Documents Provided to the MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB must be 
in electronic format and accompanied by identifying information, all as prescribed by the MSRB. Notice 
of the Listed Events described in Section 5 need not be given under this Section any earlier than the notice 
of the underlying event is given to Holders of the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture. 

SECTION 11. Default. In the event of a failure of the Authority, POLB or POLA to comply with 
any provision of this Certificate, any Owner or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as 
may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to 
cause the Authority, POLB or POLA, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this 
Certificate. A default under this Certificate will not be deemed an Event of Default under the Indenture, 
and the sole and exclusive remedy under this Certificate in the event of any failure of the Authority, POLB 
or POLA to comply with this Certificate will be an action to compel performance, and no person or entity 
will be entitled to recover monetary damages under this Certificate. 

SECTION 12. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of the Dissemination  Agent. The Dissemination 
Agent will have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Certificate, and the Authority agrees, 
to the extent permitted by law, to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, 
employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of 
or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses 
(including attorneys’ fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the 
Dissemination Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct. The obligations of the Authority under this 
Section will survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds. 

SECTION 13. Beneficiaries. This Certificate will inure solely to the benefit of the Authority, 
POLB, POLA, the Dissemination Agent, the Underwriters, the Owners and Beneficial Owners from time 
to time of the Bonds, and creates no rights in any other person or entity. 

SECTION 14. Counterparts. This Certificate may be executed in several counterparts, each of 
which is an original and all of which constitute but one and the same instrument. 

SECTION 15. Governing Law. This Certificate is governed by the laws of the State of California 
and the federal securities laws. 

376/486



   

10 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, have caused this 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate to be executed as of the date first above written. 

 ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY 

By:        
 Kevin Scott 
 Chief Executive Officer 

 ATTEST: 
By:        
Name:        
Its:        

The foregoing document is hereby approved as to form: 
By:        
Name:        
Title: Co-General Counsel    
Date:        

 CITY OF LONG BEACH, acting by and through its 
Board of Harbor Commissioners 

By:        
Name:        
Its:        

The foregoing document is hereby approved as to form: 
By:        
Name:        
Title:        
Date:        

 CITY OF LOS ANGELES, acting by and through its 
Board of Harbor Commissioners 

By:        
Name:        
Its:        

The foregoing document is hereby approved as to form: 
By:        
Name:        
Title:        
Date:        

 

  

377/486



   

11 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Obligated Person: Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

Name of Issue: Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2024A 

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable Senior Lien 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2024B 

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt First 
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2024C 

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable First 
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2024D 

Issuance Date: January __, 2024 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above named 
Bonds as required by Section 3 of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate dated as of __________, executed 
and delivered by the Authority; the City of Long Beach, acting by and though its Board of Harbor 
Commissioners; and the City of Los Angeles, acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners.  

Dated:  _______________ 

  
 ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION 

AUTHORITY 
  
 By:   
 Title:    
  

 

 

378/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 3

379/486



   

5 
4860-1917-0176.3  

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION  

[], 2024 

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, 
as Representative of the Underwriters 
560 Mission Street, Floor 3 
San Francisco, California 94105 
 
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 
3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 200 
Long Beach, California 90806 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (the “Authority”) proposes to issue its 
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2024A (the “Series 2024A Bonds”), its Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable 
Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2024B (the “Series 2024B Bonds”), its Alameda 
Corridor Transportation Authority Tax-Exempt Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2024C (the “Series 2024C Bonds”), its Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority Taxable 
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2024D (the “Series 2024D Bonds” and 
together with the Series 2024A Bonds, the Series 2024B Bonds and the Series 2024C Bonds, the 
“Bonds”), pursuant to a Master Trust Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1999 (the “Master 
Indenture”), as supplemented and amended by the First Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Second 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Third Supplemental Trust Indenture and the Fourth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, each dated as of January 1, 1999, the Fifth Supplemental Trust 
Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2003, the Sixth Supplemental Trust Indenture and the Seventh 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, each dated as of February 1, 2004, the Eighth Supplemental Trust 
Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2012, the Ninth Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated as of February 
1, 2013, the Tenth Supplemental Trust Indenture and the Eleventh Supplemental Trust Indenture, 
each dated as of May 1, 2016, the Twelfth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Thirteenth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture and the Fourteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, each dated as of 
July 1, 2022, (collectively, the “Prior Supplemental Indentures”) and by the Fifteenth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Sixteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Seventeenth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture and the Eighteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, each to be dated 
as of [], 2024 (the “Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture”, the “Sixteenth Supplemental Trust 
Indenture”, the “Seventeenth Supplemental Trust Indenture” and the “Eighteenth Supplemental 
Trust Indenture”, respectively, and the Master Indenture, as supplemented and amended by the 
Prior Supplemental Indentures and by the Fifteenth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Sixteenth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, the Seventeenth Supplemental Trust Indenture and the Eighteenth 
Supplemental Trust Indenture, the “Indenture”), each between the Authority and U.S. Bank Trust 
Company, National Association (or its predecessor-in-interest), as trustee (the “Trustee”).   

The Authority, BNSF Railway Company (“BNSF”), the Union Pacific Railroad Company 
(“Union Pacific” and together with BNSF, the “Railroads”), the City of Los Angeles, acting by 

380/486



4860-1917-0176.3  
  

and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners (the “Port of Los Angeles”), and the City of Long 
Beach, acting by and through its Board of Harbor Commissioners (the “Port of Long Beach” and 
together with the Port of Los Angeles, the “Ports”), have entered into that certain Amended and 
Restated Alameda Corridor Use and Operating Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2016 (the 
“Use and Operating Agreement”), pursuant to which the Railroads have agreed to pay certain fees 
and charges for the use of the Rail Corridor and the Ports have agreed to make certain Shortfall 
Advances on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein.  Certain revenues and other 
moneys to be derived by the Authority in connection with the Use and Operating Agreement are 
being pledged to secure the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds. 

The Bonds are being sold pursuant to one or more Bond Purchase Agreements, of even 
date herewith (the “Purchase Agreements”), between the Authority and J.P. Morgan Securities 
LLC, as representative (the “Representative”) of the Underwriters named therein. 

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given such terms in 
the Purchase Agreements or in the Use and Operating Agreement, as applicable. 

1. To induce the Authority and the Representative to enter into the Purchase 
Agreements and the Underwriters to purchase and reoffer the Bonds as contemplated in the 
Purchase Agreements, the Port of Los Angeles hereby represents and agrees with each of you as 
follows: 

(a) the information relating to the Port of Los Angeles in the Preliminary 
Official Statement of the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority relating to the Bonds, dated 
[__], 2024, [as amended prior to the date hereof] (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), and in the 
Official Statement relating to the Bonds, to be dated on or about [__], 2024, as the same may be 
amended or supplemented (the “Official Statement”), under the headings [“THE PORTS,” 
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE—The Authority and the Ports” and “AUTHORITY 
REVENUES—Cargo Throughput and Revenue Collections”] in Appendix A and in Appendix B, 
has been provided to the Authority by the Port of Los Angeles for use in the Preliminary Official 
Statement and the Official Statement and was or is, as of its date, and will be, as of the Closing 
Date, true and correct, and such information includes certain financial statements and other 
historical information with respect to the Port of Los Angeles, which fairly present the financial 
position of the Port of Los Angeles as of the dates indicated and the results of its operations, for 
the periods therein specified, and are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
applicable to the Port of Los Angeles applied on a consistent basis, and there has been no material 
adverse change in the financial condition or results of operations of the Port of Los Angeles since 
the date thereof; 

(b) since the date of the Port of Los Angeles’s audited financial statements 
included in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement, neither the Port of 
Los Angeles nor any of its divisions has sustained any material loss or interference with its business 
from fire, explosion, flood or other calamity, whether or not covered by insurance, or from any 
labor dispute or court or governmental action, order or decree, otherwise than as disclosed in the 
Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement; and there has not been any material 
adverse change affecting the financial position or results of operations of Port of Los Angeles, 
otherwise than as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement; 

381/486



4860-1917-0176.3  
  

(c) the City of Los Angeles has been duly incorporated and is a validly existing 
charter city under the laws of the State of California, with power and authority vested in its Board 
of Harbor Commissioners to manage its properties, and to conduct its business as described in the 
Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement; 

(d) this Letter of Representation and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate have 
been duly authorized, and have been or will be executed and delivered by the Port of Los Angeles 
and, assuming the due execution and delivery thereof by the other parties thereto, as applicable, 
constitute or will constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Port of Los Angeles 
enforceable in accordance with their terms, except to the extent that enforceability is subject to 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ rights and 
remedies generally and to the application of equitable principles where equitable remedies are 
sought; and the Use and Operating Agreement and the Use Permit (collectively, the “Port 
Agreements”) constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Port of Los Angeles 
enforceable in accordance with their terms, except to the extent that enforceability is subject to 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ rights and 
remedies generally and to the application of equitable principles where equitable remedies are 
sought; 

(e) the execution and delivery by the Port of Los Angeles of this Letter of 
Representation and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the performance by the Port of Los 
Angeles of its obligations hereunder and under the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the Port 
Agreements, and the consummation of the transactions herein and therein contemplated do not and 
will not (i) conflict with any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Charter of the City of 
Los Angeles, or (ii) conflict with, result in a material breach of or constitute a material default 
under any of the terms or conditions of any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, lease or other 
agreement or instrument to which the Port of Los Angeles is a party, or any laws, judgment, decree, 
rules or regulations applicable to Port of Los Angeles of any court or other governmental body or 
any other applicable requirement of law, except for conflicts, breaches or defaults which, 
individually or in the aggregate, would not materially and adversely affect the Port of Los 
Angeles’s ability to perform its obligations under this Letter of Representation, the Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate and the Port Agreements; and no consent, approval, authorization, order, 
registration or qualification of or with any such court or governmental agency or body was or is 
required for the execution and delivery of, and performance by the Port of Los Angeles of its 
obligations under this Letter of Representation, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the Port 
Agreements or the consummation by the Port of Los Angeles of the transactions contemplated 
herein or therein; 

(f) there are no legal or governmental proceedings pending to which the Port 
of Los Angeles or any of its divisions is a party or of which any property of the Port of Los Angeles 
or any of its divisions is the subject, which the Port of Los Angeles has reasonable cause to believe 
will, either individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the current or future 
financial position or results of operations of the Port of Los Angeles; and, to the best of the Port 
of Los Angeles’s knowledge, no such proceedings are threatened by governmental authorities or 
threatened by others; 

382/486



4860-1917-0176.3  
  

(g) there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in 
equity, before or by any court, government agency, public board or body, pending or, to the best 
of the Port of Los Angeles’s knowledge, threatened against the Port of Los Angeles contesting or 
affecting the powers of the Port of Los Angeles with respect to, or the validity or enforceability of, 
or any authority for, this Letter of Representation, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate or the Port 
Agreements; 

(g) the Port of Los Angeles is not in material breach of or in material default 
under any of the Port Agreements, and to its knowledge, the Port of Los Angeles is not in material 
breach of or in material default under any loan agreement, note, bond, resolution, indenture, 
agreement or other instrument to which the Port of Los Angeles is, or on or after the date of the 
Closing will be, a party or to which the Port of Los Angeles or any of its properties or assets is 
otherwise subject, and no event has occurred and is continuing that constitutes or that, with the 
passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a material breach of or material 
default or event of default under any such agreement, law, regulation or instrument. 

2. The Port of Los Angeles will undertake, pursuant to the Use and Operating 
Agreement and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, to provide certain annual financial and 
operating information and to provide notices upon the occurrence of certain enumerated events.  
The form of this undertaking is set forth in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate included as 
Appendix H in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement.  During the 
previous five years, the Port of Los Angeles has not failed to comply in any material respect with 
any of its previous undertakings under Rule 15c2-12. 

3. The Port of Los Angeles acknowledges and agrees that (i) in connection with the 
purchase and sale of the Bonds and with the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading up 
to the consummation of such transaction, the Underwriters are and have been acting solely as 
principals and not as the agents or fiduciaries of the Port of Los Angeles; (ii) the Underwriters 
have not assumed a fiduciary responsibility in favor of the Port of Los Angeles with respect to:  
(a) the offering of the Bonds or the process leading thereto (whether or not the Underwriters, or 
any affiliates of the Underwriters, have advised or are currently advising the Port of Los Angeles 
on other matters) or (b) any other obligation to the Port of Los Angeles except the obligations 
expressly set forth in the Purchase Agreements and in this Letter of Representation; and (iii) the 
Port of Los Angeles has consulted its own legal, financial and other advisors to the extent it has 
deemed appropriate in connection with this transaction. 

4. The Port of Los Angeles hereby approves the Authority’s obtaining of one or more 
debt service reserve surety policies, at the Authority’s option and as permitted by the Indenture, in 
lieu of funding the Debt Service Reserve Account for some or all of the Bonds with bond proceeds, 
by obtaining one or more surety policies from a surety provider whose credit rating is at least “A” 
or better from at least one nationally recognized rating agency, notwithstanding the provisions of 
Section 7.3(k) of the Use and Operating Agreement, or any other provision thereof. 

5. At the Closing, the Port of Los Angeles shall cause to be delivered to you the 
opinion of counsel to the Port of Los Angeles referred to in Paragraph [10(d)(xiii)] of each 
Purchase Agreement. 

383/486



4860-1917-0176.3  
  

6. No representation or covenant herein shall be deemed to be the representation or 
covenant of any official, officer, agent or employee of the Port of Los Angeles in his or her 
individual capacity. 

[Signatures on following page]

384/486



   

[Signature Page to POLA Letter of Representation] 
4860-1917-0176.3  

 

Very truly yours, 
THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES, 

BY ITS BOARD OF HARBOR 
COMMISSIONERS 

By:    
Title: 

Accepted as of the date hereof: 

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC 
On its own behalf and as Representative of 

RBC Capital Markets, LLC 
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC 
Samuel A. Ramirez & Co., Inc.  
Siebert Williams Shank & Co., LLC 

By:    
Name Michael Carlson 
Title: Managing Director 

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority 

By:    
Name: Michael Leue 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 

 

385/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 4

386/486



 B-1  
4888-1284-3665.2  

THE PORT OF LOS ANGELES 

[Subject to update] 

Port of Los Angeles (“POLA”) is obligated to make certain payments required by the Operating 
Agreement (as defined in the front part of this Official Statement) and is not responsible for paying, and is 
not guaranteeing the payment of, the principal or accreted value of (as applicable), premium, if any, or 
interest on the Bonds (including, the Series [2024] Bonds) (as such terms are defined in the front part of 
this Official Statement).  The Bonds are not secured by a lien on any properties or improvements of the 
City of Los Angeles or of POLA, or by a pledge of any revenues of POLA.  See [“SECURITY AND 
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS—Limited Obligations”] in the front part of this Official 
Statement.  Under certain circumstances and as described in the front part of this Official Statement under 
the headings captioned [“AUTHORITY REVENUES—Shortfall Advances and Other Port Advances”] and 
[“BONDHOLDERS’ RISKS—Shortfall Advances are Limited, Subordinate Obligations of the Ports”], the 
Operating Agreement requires POLA and POLB (as defined herein), severally and not jointly, to make 
Shortfall Advances (as defined in the front part of this Official Statement), the payment of which is a limited 
obligation payable equally by POLA and POLB and each port is not required to make Shortfall Advances 
that should have been paid by the other port.  Pursuant to the Operating Agreement, POLA has agreed that 
it will include in its budget, Shortfall Advances of which it has notice, but POLA is not required to reserve 
or to set aside any funds, and the payment of Shortfall Advances by POLA is payable after all of POLA’s 
other obligations, including operation and maintenance costs, have been paid. 

The information about POLA in this Official Statement was provided by POLA.  The Authority 
makes no representation concerning such information. 

General 

The Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles (the “LA Harbor Department”) is a proprietary, 
independent department of the City of Los Angeles similar to the Los Angeles Department of Water and 
Power and the Los Angeles Department of Airports.  The LA Harbor Department operates POLA 
independently from the City of Los Angeles, using POLA’s own revenues, and administers and controls its 
fiscal activities by and through the Los Angeles Board of Harbor Commissioners (the “POLA Board”), 
subject to oversight by the City Council of the City of Los Angeles.  The City of Los Angeles holds in trust 
and the LA Harbor Department administers POLA’s facilities, located in San Pedro Bay, approximately 
20 miles south of downtown Los Angeles. 

POLA has three major continuing sources of revenue:  shipping revenue, which is a function of 
cargo throughput; revenue from the rental of POLA’s land and buildings (i.e., revenue from permit and 
lease agreements); and the smallest component, fee and royalty revenue. 

POLA operates as a landlord, issuing permits for the use of POLA land, docks, wharves, transit 
sheds, terminals and other facilities.  POLA also is landlord to various shipyards, fish markets, ocean-
related entities (i.e., fisheries and ship repair), railroads, restaurants and other similar operations.  These 
arrangements are entered into under various lease and permit agreements.  Under the permit agreements the 
occupants agree to pay tariffs or fees established by POLA.  Permittees are generally shipping or terminal 
companies, agents or other private firms.  POLA has no direct role in managing the daily movements of 
cargo.  POLA also recovers its costs of providing services and improvements through tariff charges for 
shipping services. 

Most of the property on which POLA’s land, docks, wharves, transit sheds, terminals and other 
facilities are located is owned by the City of Los Angeles and administered by POLA, subject to a trust 

387/486



 B-2  
4888-1284-3665.2  

created pursuant to certain tideland grants from the State.  These tidelands were granted to the City of Los 
Angeles under the State Tidelands Trust Act by the California State Legislature in 1911 for the purpose of 
promoting commerce, navigation and fishery.  Subsequent state legislative action expanded the permitted 
uses of tidelands to include maritime commerce, fishing, navigation and recreation and environmental 
activities that are water-oriented and are intended to be of statewide benefit.  Certain additional 
requirements and restrictions are imposed by the tidelands grants, including limitations on the sale and 
long-term leasing of tidelands and limitations on the use of funds generated from the tidelands and tidelands 
trust assets. 

Under the tidelands trusts, funds from the tidelands may be transferred to the City of Los Angeles’s 
General Fund only for tidelands trust purposes and may not be transferred to the City General Fund for 
general municipal purposes.  All amounts in the Los Angeles Harbor Revenue Fund (as defined below) are 
subject to the tidelands trust use restrictions.  POLA does not expect that restrictions on the use of tidelands 
or with respect to tidelands funds will materially adversely affect POLA’s operations or finances of POLA.  
Tideland grants and terms of the tidelands trusts are subject to amendment or revocation by the California 
Legislature, as grantor of the trust and as representative of the beneficiaries (the people of the State). 

According to [______], during calendar year 2023, POLA was the busiest container port in North 
America in terms of cargo volume, handling approximately [__] million TEUs.  A “TEU” is a unit of cargo 
capacity often used to describe the capacity of container ships and container terminals and is based on the 
volume of a 20-foot long shipping container, a standard sized metal box which can be easily transferred 
between different modes of transportation, such as ships, trains and trucks.  According to the Pacific 
Merchant Shipping Association (the “PMSA”), POLA and the Port of Long Beach (“POLB”), combined, 
handled approximately [__] million TEUs during calendar year 2023, as compared to approximately [19.0] 
million TEUs during calendar year 2022. 

Physical Description and Geography 

POLA is located in the San Pedro Bay, approximately 20 miles south of downtown Los Angeles.  
POLA’s facilities lie within the shelter of a nine-mile-long breakwater constructed by the federal 
government in several stages, the first of which commenced in 1899.  The breakwater encloses the largest 
man-made harbor in the western hemisphere.  POLA operates primarily as a landlord, as opposed to an 
operating port.  POLA’s docks, wharves, transit sheds, and terminals are leased to shipping or terminal 
companies, agents, and to other private firms.  Although POLA owns these facilities, it has no direct hand 
in managing the daily movement of cargo.  POLA is a landlord to close to [300] entities.  In addition to 
major terminal operators, other tenants include marinas, commercial fishing operations, cruise operations, 
restaurants, and recreational facilities.  The major sources of income for POLA are from shipping services 
(wharfage, dockage, pilotage, space assignment charges, [etc.]), rentals, fees, concessions, and royalties.  It 
currently serves approximately [80] shipping companies and agents with facilities that include 
[270] berthing facilities along 43 miles of waterfront.  In terms of its size and volume, POLA is one of the 
world’s largest and busiest ports.  POLA encompasses approximately 7,500 acres (4,300 acres of land and 
3,200 acres of water).  POLA is a deep-water port with a depth of 53 feet in its main channel and at the bulk 
loader and supertanker channels.  Two major railroads serve POLA (Union Pacific Railroad Company 
(“Union Pacific”) and BNSF Railway Company).  POLA lies at or near the terminus of two major interstate 
freeways, the I-110 and the I-710, within the Los Angeles area freeway system.  Subsurface pipelines link 
POLA to major refineries and petroleum distribution terminals within the Los Angeles Basin.  POLA 
handles the largest volume of containerized cargo of all United States ports, and additionally ranks as 
number one in cargo value for United States waterborne foreign traffic.  POLA’s major trading partners, 
concentrated along the Pacific Rim, include [China/Hong Kong, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan, and 
Vietnam].  Cargo to and from these countries represents the bulk of the total value of all cargo shipped 
through POLA.  POLA currently has the capability to handle modern, deeper-draft vessels.  POLA’s 

388/486



 B-3  
4888-1284-3665.2  

channels have moderate maintenance requirements because there is no major river source of sand or silt 
coming into the harbor. 

Many of the container terminal operators located at POLA utilize the Intermodal Container Transfer 
Facility (the “ICTF”), a specialized rail yard for the transfer of containers to and from trucks and railcars, 
located five miles from POLA.  The ICTF was financed and constructed by Southern Pacific Transportation 
Company and the Intermodal Container Transfer Facility Joint Powers Authority, a joint powers authority 
organized by POLA and POLB.  The ICTF is operated by Union Pacific under a long-term lease agreement. 

POLA’s major permittees (tenants) as of June 30, 2023 are listed in Table B-1 below. 

TABLE B-1 
 

MAJOR PERMITTEES (TENANTS) OF THE PORT OF LOS ANGELES 
(In Alphabetical Order) 

(As of June 30, 2023) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________ 
* Eagle Marine Services, Ltd.  was rebranded to Fenix Marine Services, Ltd.  in late 2018. 
** The Yang Ming Marine Transport Corporation / Yang Ming Transport LTD.  permit expired October 10, 2021.  
Effective October 11, 2021, a successor permit was awarded to Everglades Company Terminal, Inc. 
Source: POLA 

 
POLA sets tariff charges for, among other things, wharfage, dockage, storage, pilotage, land usage, 

passenger fees and demurrage applicable to all ships and cargo using POLA-owned property and necessary 
for the orderly movement of cargo.  POLA and all other California public ports control and determine their 

389/486



 B-4  
4888-1284-3665.2  

own individual tariff structures.  However, the ports cooperate in setting tariff rates through membership in 
the California Association of Port Authorities (“CAPA”).  One of CAPA’s goals is to establish and maintain 
reasonable and, as far as practicable, uniform terminal rates, charges, classifications, rules and regulations 
for the handling and movement of domestic and foreign waterborne cargo.  These tariff provisions cover, 
among other things, space assignments at marine terminal facilities, as well as other miscellaneous terminal 
charges necessary for the orderly movement of cargo.  CAPA’s goal is to permit California ports to obtain 
an adequate return-on-investment to facilitate the necessary maintenance, expansion and improvement of 
marine facilities.  CAPA is exempt from federal antitrust laws, thereby allowing for this cooperative rate 
setting. 

Source of Funds for Payment of Shortfall Advances 

As discussed herein and in the front part of this Official Statement, pursuant to the Operating 
Agreement, POLA is obligated to include in its budget each fiscal year an amount equal to the amount of 
projected Shortfall Advances for such fiscal year that has been forecasted by the Authority and for which 
due notice thereof has been provided to POLA by the Authority.  The payment of Shortfall Advances by 
POLA is payable after all of POLA’s other obligations, including operation and maintenance costs and 
POLA’s debt service, are paid. 

POLA has established a special reserve fund known as the “Emergency/ACTA Fund”, the purpose 
of which is to pay for any unexpected expense that may arise during a fiscal year, including, but not limited 
to, Shortfall Advances.  As of June 30, 2023, approximately $[___] million is on deposit in the 
Emergency/ACTA Fund. 

Financial and Operation Information 

The Los Angeles Harbor Revenue Fund is a separate fund established by the Charter of the City of 
Los Angeles (the “Los Angeles Harbor Revenue Fund”).  All fees, charges, rentals and revenue from every 
source collected by POLA in connection with its possession, management and control of the Los Angeles 
Harbor District and Los Angeles Harbor Assets (as such terms are defined in the Charter of the City of Los 
Angeles) are deposited in the Los Angeles Harbor Revenue Fund.  All such moneys and revenues deposited 
in the Los Angeles Harbor Revenue Fund are under the direction and control of the POLA Board.  POLA 
expends moneys in the Los Angeles Harbor Revenue Fund, from time to time, to pay operating and 
maintenance expenses and debt service on its outstanding indebtedness.  Remaining revenues constitute 
surplus revenues and may be used for any lawful purposes, including, among other things, payment of 
Shortfall Advances. 

390/486



 B-5  
4888-1284-3665.2  

The following Table B-2 sets forth a breakdown of POLA’s operating revenues, expenses and net 
assets for fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 through 2023. 

TABLE B-2 
 

PORT OF LOS ANGELES 
SUMMARY OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET ASSETS 

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2023 
(in thousands of dollars) 

 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
Revenues      
Shipping Services      
Wharfage $   383,549 $   345,195 $   435,513 $   441,966 $                
Dockage 4,348 4,257 4,509 5,914  
Demurrage 202 200 207 133  
Pilotage 10,985 9,495 10,682 13,432  
Assignment Charges      11,244      10,418      12,938      24,397                 

Total Shipping Services(1) $   410,328 $   369,565 $   463,849 $   485,842 $                
Rentals      
Land $     65,291 $     72,099 $     76,475 $     85,092 $                
Other Rentals           674        1,004        1,706        1,745                 

Total Rentals $     65,965 $     73,103 $     78,181 $     86,837 $                
Royalties, Fees and Other Operating Revenues      30,134      24,998      27,683      55,163                 
Total Operating Revenues $   506,427 $   467,666 $   569,713 $   627,842 $                
      
Expenses      
Operating and Administrative Expenses      
Salaries and Benefits $     98,062 $   113,342 $   108,646 $   109,778 $                
Pension Expense Adjustment 20,913 28,805 33,086 14,840  
OPEB expense(2) 4,083 3,679 4,468 (2,208)  
City Services and Payments 45,223 48,366 45,876 45,531  
Outside Services 33,418 31,815 26,219 28,596  
Utilities 19,946 18,443 23,241 33,708  
Materials and Supplies 6,593 5,672 4,517 5,106  
Pollution Remediation Expenses (4,106) 89 924 --  
Marketing and Public Relations 2,510 2,388 1,372 2,101  
Workers’ Compensation, Claims and Settlement 193 3,272 14,255 1,712  
Clean Truck Program Expenses 3,120 1,014 752 2,613  
Travel(3) 733 508 71 281  
Other Operating Expenses        9,739      16,177        9,556      12,574                 

Total Operating and Administrative Expenses $   240,427 $   273,570 $   272,983 $   254,632 $                
      
Income from Operations before Depreciation $   266,000 $   194,096 $   296,730 $   373,210 $                
Depreciation    161,977    158,613    154,295    147,272                 
Operating Income $   104,023 $     35,483 $   142,435 $   225,938 $                
      
Nonoperating Revenues / (Expenses)      
Income from Investments in JPAs and Other Entities $       2,596 $       2,461 $       2,243 $       1,513 $                
Interest and Investment Income 32,804 39,643 (2,656) (47,744)  
Interest Expense (1,290) (24,707) (21,773) (18,962)  
Other Income and Expenses, net      27,151        2,025        9,240       (5,125)                 

Net Nonoperating Revenues/(Expenses) $     61,261 $     19,422 $    (12,946) $    (70,318) $                
      
Income Before Capital Contributions $   165,283 $     54,905 $   129,489 $   155,620 $                
Capital Contributions      3,523    3,440     7,116    11,906                 
Changes in Net Assets $   168,807 $     58,345 $   136,605 $   167,526 $                
      
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year $3,334,871 $3,503,678 $3,562,023 $3,698,628 $                
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle(2)                -                -                -                -                 
Total Net Assets - End of Year $3,503,678 $3,562,023 $3,698,628 $3,866,154 $                

 
See next page for footnotes. 

391/486



 B-6  
4888-1284-3665.2  

____________________ 
(1) For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, increase in shipping services revenues is, in part, attributed to the worldwide COVID-19 pandemic. 
(2) GASB Statement No.  75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” (“GASB 75”) establishes 
standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and expenses/expenditures.  
POLA implemented GASB 75 in fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  OPEB expenses incurred in prior fiscal years were recorded within “Salaries 
and Benefits” expense.  The net position at July 1, 2017 was restated by $23.9 million to adjust for the cumulative change in accounting principle 
as a result of GASB 75. 
(3) This line-item was previously named “Travel and Entertainment”.  For fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, decrease in “Travel” expenses is due 
to the worldwide COVID-19 pandemic. 
(4) GASB Statement No. 87, “Leases” (“GASB 87”) establishes standards for the recognition of certain leased assets and liabilities for leases 
that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on payment provisions 
of the contract.  The financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021 were restated as a result of the implementation of GASB 87.  
The beginning net position at July 1, 2020 was not restated due to the information to restate those amounts was not readily available and 
impractical to do so. 
Note: TEU = twenty-foot equivalent units. 
Source: POLA 

 
The following Table B-3 provides a summary of the type and volume of cargo handled at POLA 

for fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 through 2023. 

TABLE B-3 
 

PORT OF LOS ANGELES 
REVENUE TONNAGE BY CARGO TYPE(1) 

FISCAL YEARS 2013 THROUGH 2023 
(in thousands of metric revenue tons) 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 

General 
Cargo(2) 

Liquid 
Bulk 

Dry 
Bulk(3) Total(4) 

% Increase (Decrease) 
in Total Tonnage 
over Prior Year 

2013 156,300 7,800 1,000 165,100 (5.6)% (5) 
2014 165,000 10,500 900 176,400 6.8 
2015 165,100 10,300 1,400 176,800 0.2 
2016 167,300 14,300 1,200 182,800 3.4 
2017 184,300 13,200 600 198,100 8.4 
2018 178,000 15,500 1,000 194,500 (1.8) (6) 
2019 193,000 13,400 900 207,300 6.6 
2020(7) 170,000 12,300 700 183,000 (11.7) (8) 
2021 211,900 9,300 800 222,000 21.3 (9) 
2022 207,000 10,700 1,000 218,700 (1.5) (10) 
2023      

___________________ 
(1) Numbers are rounded. 
(2) General Cargo tonnage comprised of both TEU tonnage and non-TEU tonnage. 
(3) Dry bulk cargo includes steel slabs, sulfur, pipe, beams, scrap metal, coal, ores, cement, fertilizers and bauxite. 
(4) Computed on an accrual basis, adjusted for unverified amounts. 
(5) In October 2012, Transpacific 8, a service route jointly operated by Mediterranean Shipping Co., Maersk Line and CMA 
CGM, transferred from POLA to POLB and initially it impacted both cargo volume and associated revenue at POLA.  POLA 
has since recovered from the initial impact through ongoing capital investment to enhance capacity and recent favorable 
movement of alliance traffic. 
(6) Decline is attributed to realignment and consolidation of vessel services among the shipping alliances. 
(7) Tonnage rounding for liquid bulk (previously rounded to 12,200) and dry bulk (previously rounded to 800) has been corrected. 
(8) Decline in tonnage is, in part, attributed to the economic closures related to the worldwide COVID-19 pandemic. 
(9) Increase in tonnage is, in part, attributed to the worldwide COVID-19 pandemic. 
(10) Decline in tonnage is, primarily attributed to stagnation after the significant increase in tonnage in the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2021 attributed to the worldwide COVID-19 pandemic. 
Source: POLA 

 

392/486



 B-7  
4888-1284-3665.2  

The following Tables B-4 and B-5 provide information about the container traffic at POLA for 
calendar years 2019 through 2023 and for fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 through 2023. 

TABLE B-4 
 

PORT OF LOS ANGELES 
CONTAINER TRAFFIC 

CALENDAR YEARS 2019-2023 
(TEUs(1)) 

 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Inbound(2) 4,714,266 4,827,040 5,513,286 4,975,735  
Outbound(2) 1,756,177 1,531,406 1,184,145 1,187,085  
Empties 2,867,190 2,854,950   3,980,179 3,748,339                   
Total TEUs(3) 9,337,632 9,213,396 10,677,610 9,911,159  
____________________ 
(1) TEU counts are subject to adjustment which may occur throughout the year. 
(2) Full containers. 
(3) Totals may not sum due to rounding. 
Source: POLA 

 
 

TABLE B-5 
 

PORT OF LOS ANGELES 
CONTAINER TRAFFIC 

FISCAL YEARS 2019-2023 
(TEUs(1)) 

 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Inbound(2) 4,910,807 4,404,634 5,710,620 5,426,860  
Outbound(2) 1,860,452 1,595,607 1,447,132 1,147,140  
Empties 2,916,993 2,560,642   3,721,631   4,089,637                   
Total TEUs(3) 9,688,252 8,560,882 10,879,383 10,663,637  
____________________ 
(1) TEU counts are subject to adjustment which may occur throughout the year. 
(2) Full containers. 
(3) Totals may not sum due to rounding. 
Source: POLA 

 

393/486



 B-8  
4888-1284-3665.2  

The following Table B-6 shows the breakdown of shipping revenues by container and non-
container for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 through 2023.  Shipping revenues are comprised of 
wharfage, dockage, demurrage, cranes, pilotage, assignment charges, and storage. 

TABLE B-6 
 

PORT OF LOS ANGELES 
SHIPPING REVENUE BREAKDOWN(1) 

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014-2023 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30 

Total 
Shipping 
Revenues 

(000s) 

Container 
Shipping 
Revenues 

(000s) 
TEUs 
(000s) 

Container 
Shipping 
Revenue 
Per TEU 

Non-
Container 
Shipping 

(000s) 

Non-
Container 

Tons 
(000s) 

Non-
Container 
Shipping 
Revenue 
Per Ton 

2014 $377,200 $335,700 8,210 $ 40.89 $ 41,500 14,900 $ 2.79 
2015 364,900 325,500 8,191 39.74 39,400 15,100 2.61 
2016 368,500 324,100 8,391 38.62 44,400 18,500 2.40 
2017 398,300 351,800 9,206 38.21 46,500 17,300 2.69 
2018(2) 405,300 353,600 9,170 38.56 51,700 19,500 2.65 
2019 410,300 358,800 9,688 37.04 51,500 17,000 3.03 
2020 369,600 323,300 8,560 37.77 46,300 14,500 3.19 
2021(3) 463,800 421,400 10,879 38.74 42,400 12,800 3.31 
2022(3) 485,800 422,300 10,664 39.60 63,500 13,700 4.64 
2023        

____________________ 
(1) Numbers are rounded. 
(2) Non-Container Shipping Revenue was previously recorded as $51,800 (in thousands) and stated as such in POLA’s previous annual 
continuing disclosure reports (the “Prior Reports”).  As a result, Non-Container Shipping Revenue Per Ton was adjusted from $2.66 (in the 
Prior Reports) to $2.65. 
(3) Increase in shipping revenues is, in part, attributed to the worldwide COVID-19 pandemic. 
Note: TEU = twenty-foot equivalent units. 
Source: POLA 

 

394/486



 B-9  
4888-1284-3665.2  

The following Table B-7 shows a breakdown of total TEUs by country of origin for imports and 
country of destination for exports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. 

TABLE B-7 
 

PORT OF LOS ANGELES 
TEU COUNT BY COUNTRY* 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Exports Imports 
Country TEUs % of Total Country TEUs % of Total 

  %   % 
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
All Others   All Others   
Total Exports  100.0% Total Imports  100.0% 
____________________ 
* TEU = twenty-foot equivalent units. 
Source: Ports Import Export Reporting Services (“PIERS”).  Data from PIERS excludes domestic cargo and empties 

 
Security 

POLA’s security program is structured to secure POLA through deterrence and prevention.  
Security operations are conducted by the Los Angeles Port Police in collaboration with federal, state and 
local agencies.  Sworn and civilian personnel conduct patrols, inspections and investigations both on land 
and on the water.  These operations are supported by advanced surveillance and communications systems.  
Security for the supply chain and of the cargo entering POLA is accomplished through national and 
international cargo security standards and regulations.  The associated operational measures are principally 
conducted by U.S. Customs and Border Protection.  POLA was extensively involved in the development 
of these measures.  Additionally, POLA’s port security program places great emphasis on the security of 
key Port infrastructure including railways, roadways and bridges within the port complex.  In the years 
following the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, POLA was awarded numerous grants to fund security 
projects and equipment purchases by federal and state agencies including the U.S. Department of Homeland 
Security and the State of California Office of Homeland Security.  POLA continues to receive port security 
grant funds which are used to maintain security systems and to make system upgrades as the technology 
advances. 

The Maritime Transportation Security Act (MTSA) of 2002 required the development of security 
regulations for U.S seaports and for the ships that call on these ports.  The associated regulations were 
developed and implemented by the U.S. Coast Guard.  These security regulations focus on the sectors of 
the maritime industry that have a higher risk of involvement in a transportation security incident, including 
tank vessels, passenger vessels, and port facilities that handle passengers and certain kinds of dangerous 
cargos.  These regulations require, among other things, that port and vessels owners assess their 

395/486



 B-10  
4888-1284-3665.2  

vulnerabilities and develop plans that may include implementing vehicle, container and baggage screening 
procedures, accessing control measures and/or installing surveillance systems. 

In 2014, POLA established its Cybersecurity Operations Center (the “Center”), operated by a 
dedicated cybersecurity team, as a centralized location to monitor network traffic in order to prevent, detect 
and respond to cyber incidents under POLA’s control.  The Center prevents approximately 20 million 
cyber-intrusion attempts per month.  Since 2015, POLA also continues to maintain its ISO 27001 
certification for the Center.  ISO 27001 certification demonstrates that POLA is following information 
security best practice and delivers an independent, expert assessment of whether POLA’s information 
security management system complies with this international cybersecurity standard. 

In April 2019, POLA determined to form a cross-sector Cyber Resilience Center (the “CRC”) in 
order to further reduce the risks of cybersecurity threats that could disrupt the flow of cargo at POLA.  The 
CRC will expand the scope of stakeholder engagement to encompass the key parties operating in the POLA 
complex: shipping lines, marine terminal operators, railroad companies, labor and representatives from the 
trucking industry.  The CRC will enable key stakeholders to share cyber threat indicators and take defensive 
measures with each other as a means to reduce the potential of a cyber-incident experienced by any one of 
POLA’s stakeholders to disrupt multiple operations within POLA. 

Capital Improvement Projects. 

[Discuss whether this section has the latest updates] 

POLA’s capital improvement projects are categorized into five types of projects:  (i) Terminal [and 
Infrastructure] Projects, (ii) Transportation Projects, (iii) Security Projects, (iv) Public 
Access/Environmental Enhancement[/Zero Emissions] Projects, and (v) Maritime [Services] Projects. 
[Confirm correct CIP terminology as to be consistent throughout Appendix] 

POLA’s expenditures for capital improvement projects for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 were 
approximately $[114.3] million, comprised of:  Terminal Projects (a total of approximately $[69.1] million), 
Transportation Projects (a total of approximately $[7.2] million), Security Projects (a total of approximately 
$[2.6] million), Public Access/Environmental Enhancement Projects (a total of approximately $[22.9] 
million), and Maritime [Services] Projects (a total of approximately $[12.4] million). 

396/486



 B-11  
4888-1284-3665.2  

Table B-8 provides a summary of the total estimated project costs by category of POLA’s capital 
improvement program for fiscal years ending June 30, 2023 through 2027. 

TABLE B-8 
 

PORT OF LOS ANGELES 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM BY CATEGORY 

FISCAL YEARS 2023-2027 

Project Category 

Estimated 
Total Cost 
($ millions) 

Terminal [and Infrastructure] Projects $   757 
Transportation Projects 198 
Security Projects 15 
Public Access/Environmental Enhancement[/Zero Emissions] Projects 284 
Maritime [Services] Projects 240 
Total $1,493 
____________________ 
Source: Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles 

 
Terminal [and Infrastructure] Projects.  Following are summaries of certain of POLA’s major 

Terminal [and Infrastructure] Projects. 

Berths 167-169, MOTEMS-Shell.  POLA is constructing a new marine oil platform at the Shell Oil 
Terminal.  The primary goal of the $44.8 million project is to comply with the Marine Oil Terminal 
Engineering and Maintenance Standards (MOTEMS) to protect public health, safety, and the environment.  
The project scope is expected to include demolition of the timber wharves and construction and operation 
of a new MOTEMS-compliant wharf at Bert 168, with minor infrastructure improvements to connect the 
new loading platform to the existing landside pipelines and utilities.  The project includes a new 30-year 
lease.  Construction started in July 2021 and the first phase is expected to be completed in late 2023, with 
project completion expected in 2025.  POLA has used or intends to use [____] to finance costs of the 
project. 

Berths 177-182 Wharf Restoration.  POLA is finalizing design to construct approximately 382 
linear feet of concrete wharf (62-feet-wide).  The wharf will be upgraded to include additional seismic 
analysis to comply with POLA’s seismic code.  The existing wharf will be demolished and a new, higher 
capacity rectangular wharf will be constructed that will provide more utility.  The project scope includes 
response spectra for three earthquake levels such that [_____].  Project scope also includes slope erosion 
repair and bollard upgrades.  The total estimated project cost is $23.1 million and construction is expected 
to start October 2023, with project completion expected in [___].  POLA has used or intends to use [____] 
to finance costs of the project. 

Berths 238-239, MOTEMS-PBF Energy.  POLA is finalizing design of a new marine oil platform 
at the PBF Energy Oil Terminal.  The primary goal of the proposed $35 million project is to comply with 
the MOTEMS to protect public health, safety and the environment.  The project provides for a new marine 
oil terminal at Berth 238 to comply with the MOTEMS regulations.  The new terminal will consist of a new 
125 feet by 58 feet unloading platform at Berth 238, berthing dolphins, mooring dolphins, catwalks, and 
access ramp.  The project will also require the demolition of the two existing unloading platforms located 
at Berth 238 and 239, and other existing mooring and berthing dolphins.  The proposed project would also 

397/486



 B-12  
4888-1284-3665.2  

include a new 30-year lease.  Construction is expected to start in 2024, with project completion expected 
in [___].  POLA has used or intends to use [____] to finance costs of the project. 

Berth 302-305, Rail Mounted Gantry Crane Rail and Foundation.  POLA is in design to construct 
2,500 lineal feet of 145-feet gage crane rail (total of approximately 5,000 feet of crane rail), continuous 
grade beam foundation on piles, contaminated soil remediation, electrical infrastructure to operate five 145-
feet wide span rail mounted gantry (“RMG”) cranes in the north railyard, safety fencing, protection barriers, 
and miscellaneous site improvements.  The RMG cranes will be used to load and unload trains in the north 
railyard of the Berths 302-305 On-Dock Railyard Expansion project (discussed below).  The total estimated 
project cost is $38.7 million and construction is expected to start in 2025, with project completion expected 
in [___].  POLA intends to use [____] to finance costs of the project. 

Berths 302-305, On-Dock Railyard Expansion.  An expansion of the existing railyard at Berths 
302-305 is in design to add approximately 16,200 linear feet of railroad track in five new loading tracks 
and one tail track.  This project will improve the capacity of the existing overall on-dock railyard while also 
constructing infrastructure improvements including rail signal improvements, storm drain and low impact 
development, waterline relocation, and electrical improvement including relocation of high mast poles.  The 
total estimated project cost is $52.3 million, of which POLA is responsible for approximately $[__] million 
(a federal grant in the amount of $18.2 million awarded by the United States Maritime Administration 
([USDOT MARAD]) and a federal grant generated by the State of California Trade Corridor Enhancement 
Program in the amount of $19.2 million will also fund the project costs).  Construction is expected to start 
in 2025, with project completion expected in [___].  POLA intends to use [____] to finance its portion of 
the costs of the project.   

Pier 400 Corridor Storage Tracks Expansion Project.  The existing Pier 400 rail storage yard is in 
need of expansion in order to accommodate future rail volumes on Terminal Island.  Construction of the 
Pier 400 Storage Tracks Expansion Project is currently underway to address these issues.  The project scope 
includes a concrete rail bridge with lighting, six new railroad storage tracks, an asphalt access roadway, 
new crossovers and switches, as well as modifications to the existing compressed air system of the Pier 400 
Rail Storage Yard and Bridge.  The project scope also includes the relocation of a portion of the Pier 400 
lead track onto POLA’s property, realignment of the track connection to the existing rail storage yard, 
modifications to Reeves Avenue, and relocation of the existing at-grade crossing at Nimitz Avenue to 
Reeves Avenue.  The total estimated project cost is currently budgeted at $73.2 million, of which POLA is 
responsible for approximately $[___] million.  POLA intends to use [____] to finance its portion of the 
costs of the project and a federal grant generated by the State of California Trade Corridor Enhancement 
Program in the amount of approximately $21.6 million will also be used to fund projects costs.  Construction 
is expected to finish in 2024. 

Port of Los Angeles and Port of Long Beach Goods Movement Workforce Training Facility.  The 
Joint Ports Goods Movement Workforce Training Facility will be the first training center in the United 
States dedicated to the goods movement industry.  The project will be a joint effort between POLA and 
POLB with a total project cost of $150 million.  The facility will replicate goods movement environments, 
such as marine cargo terminals, providing a safe training environment for workers.  In addition, the facility 
will provide the region’s workforce with skills to succeed in careers that utilize newer and cleaner human 
operated technologies.  POLA and POLB will fund project costs and project funding will also be 
supplemented with State of California funding in the amount of $110 million.  The project is targeted to 
begin design in late 2023, with construction expected to start in 2025, and project completion expected in 
[___]. 

Berth 306 Wharf Expansion.  POLA is finalizing design to construct 1,250 lineal feet of 100 gage 
concrete wharf, retrofit 300 lineal feet of wharf and dredge Berth 305 to a depth of -55 feet, AMP 

398/486



 B-13  
4888-1284-3665.2  

[upgrades][installation, which is shore side electrical power, also referred to as “Alternative Maritime 
Power”], including 5 vaults, 2.2 acres of container terminal backland, high voltage electrical infrastructure 
for 24 ship-to-shore cranes from Berths 301-306.  This project will allow Fenix Marine Services, Ltd., one 
of Port’s tenants, to accommodate increased capacity.  The total estimated project cost is $256 million, and 
construction is expected to start by the end of 2024, with project completion expected in [___].  POLA 
intends to use [____] to finance costs of the project. 

Terminal Island Maritime Support Facility (TIMSF).  [POLA is in the planning stage for the design 
and construction of approximately 70 – 80 acres, including grading, paving, power, lighting, fire protection, 
perimeter fencing, utilities, roadability canopy, longshore restrooms, guard booths, and roadway connecting 
to the future Maritime Support Facility Access/Terminal Island Rail System Grade Separation (discussed 
below – Something appears to missing in this sentence, please clarify)].  This project would serve as a 
chassis support facility.  The total project cost is approximately $194.63 million.  This project was awarded 
a $149.3 million grant from California State Transportation Agency.  Construction is expected to start in 
2025, with project completion expected in [___].  POLA has used or intends to use [____] to finance its 
portion of the costs of the project. 

Transportation Projects.  Following are summaries of certain of POLA’s current Transportation 
Projects. 

State Route 47 (SR-47)/Vincent Thomas Bridge & Front Street/Harbor Blvd Interchange 
Reconfiguration.  This interchange is an important transportation facility providing access to the LA 
Waterfront, residential community of San Pedro, Terminal Island, and West Basin Container Terminal.  
The project would improve traffic safety and operational deficiencies at the interchange.  The $110 million 
improvements, which includes $73.0 million in grant funding, will include replacing the existing westbound 
off-ramp from the Vincent Thomas Bridge currently located on the south side of [__] with a new off-ramp 
located on the north side of [__].  Additional improvements include realigning the existing westbound on-
ramp onto SR-47 and I-110 connector; modifying the westbound off- ramp onto Harbor Boulevard; and 
modifying the eastbound on-ramp onto the Vincent Thomas Bridge toward Terminal Island.  Project design 
was completed in 2023 and construction is expected to start in early 2024, with project completion expected 
in [__].  POLA has used or intends to use [____] to finance its portion of the costs of the project. 

Maritime Support Facility Access/Terminal Island Rail System Grade Separation.  POLA is in the 
design stage for the design and construction of a four-lane, rail-roadway grade separation.  This project 
would eliminate significant truck access impediment into the proposed Terminal Island Maritime Support 
Facility (the “TIMSF”), and connect the TIMSF to Terminal Way, Ferry Street, and Pier 300.  The total 
project cost is approximately $39.23 million.  This project was selected to receive $20 million of United 
States Department of Transportation FY 2022 RAISE grant funding and a federal grant generated by State 
of California Trade Corridor Enhancement Program in the amount of approximately $15 million.  POLA 
has used or intends to use [____] to finance the remaining portion of the costs of the project.  Construction 
is expected to start in late 2025, with project competition expected in [___]. 

Navy Way and Seaside Avenue Interchange Improvements.  POLA is in the planning stage for the 
design and construction of modifications to the intersection of Navy Way and Seaside Avenue to improve 
traffic operations and safety.  The project would eliminate left turns and improve the geometry to reduce 
collision potential at this intersection.  Project improvements include an auxiliary lane for westbound traffic, 
elimination of a traffic signal at the intersection, new eastbound collector-distributor road, widening of the 
north side highway bridge over both Ports’ rail tracks.  Project costs are currently budget at $65.7 million 
and construction is expected to start in 2026, with project completion expected in [_____].  The project was 
awarded $41.8 million in grant funding by the California State Transportation Agency.  POLA has used or 
intends to use [____] to finance the remaining portion of the costs of the project. 

399/486



 B-14  
4888-1284-3665.2  

Public Access/Environmental Enhancement[/Zero Emissions] Projects.  Following are 
summaries of certain of POLA’s current Public Access/Environmental Enhancement[/Zero Emissions] 
Projects. 

West Harbor Development.  The West Harbor Development is a commercial development along 
the LA Waterfront which will include 42 acres of outdoor space for restaurants, retail, fresh markets, office 
space, waterside activities, and an open-air amphitheater for live entertainment.  The first phase of 
construction are City improvements comprised of the San Pedro Promenade and Town Square project [add 
more detail here? How many phases? Project costs?].  The developers, The Ratkovich Company and Jerico 
Development, are expected to invest approximately $100 million in this redevelopment.  Project 
construction began in December 2022 and project completion is expected in 2025.  Project costs are being 
or will be funded by [______]. 

San Pedro Waterfront Promenade Phase II.  A continuation of San Pedro Promenade and Town 
Square project which completed construction in 2021 for a total project cost of $53.7 million, this San Pedro 
Waterfront Promenade Phase II project will continue the new public promenade to the southerly end of the 
new West Harbor Development.  This new public promenade will run parallel to the Los Angeles Main 
Channel.  The promenade will include such amenities as public seating, landscaping, hardscape, signage, 
and architectural finishes.  Total project cost is estimated $23.7 million and project costs have been and 
will be funded by [________].  Construction began in 2023 and project completion is expected in 2025. 

Wilmington Waterfront Promenade.  Creating a “window on the waterfront” for the Wilmington 
community, the promenade project includes the realignment of Water Street parallel to the existing railroad 
tracks and construction of a community park adjacent to the Banning’s Landing Community Center, along 
with a waterfront promenade, public pier, public dock, public restrooms with a green roof, playground, and 
parking lots.  Project improvements along Water Street includes utilities, street work, grading, paving, 
striping, lighting, and landscaping.  Other project improvements to the nine-acre site include irrigation, 
signage, and furnishings such as public seating, bike racks, and drinking fountains.  Total project cost is 
estimated at $77.3 million and project costs will be funded by [_____] .  Construction started in November 
2020 and is expected to be completed in 2023 [status?]. 

Avalon Promenade Bridge and Gateway Project.  The Avalon Promenade Bridge and Gateway 
Project is a companion piece to the Wilmington Waterfront Promenade project, and includes a signature 
pedestrian bridge along Avalon Boulevard that is currently in the design phase [update?].  This bridge will 
link the Wilmington Waterfront Promenade that is currently under construction [update?] to the future 
Avalon Promenade and Gateway.  Design of the Avalon Promenade and Gateway project was resumed in 
late 2022 and will be constructed with the pedestrian bridge in 2024.  Avalon Promenade Bridge and 
Gateway will consist of a pedestrian bridge over the railroad tracks and Water Street, entry plaza, 
landscaping, hardscape, parking, restrooms, and architectural finishes with a total estimated project cost of 
$65 million.  The pedestrian bridge element was awarded Measure M grant funds in the amount of $10.2 
million from Metro/South Bay COG and $42.1 million from California State Transportation Agency.  The 
remaining project costs will be funded by [________]. 

208 East 22nd Street Parking Lot Improvements.  POLA is currently in the design phase for 
development and redevelopment of 17.5 acres at the 208 East 22nd Street parking lot, creating up to 1,900 
parking stalls.  Project improvements include grading, paving, drainage, lighting, security fencing, 
additional entrances, and pay stations.  The total project budget is estimated at $20.8 million and 
construction is expected to start in 2025, with project completion expected in [____].  POLA expects to use 
[____] to fund project costs.   

400/486



 B-15  
4888-1284-3665.2  

Zero Emissions Port Electrification and Operations Program.  POLA is in the planning stages of 
a $299 million program to support the future power demand requirement throughout POLA for zero-
emission operations, as set by the 2017 San Pedro Bay Ports Clean Air Action Plan (the “CAAP”) goal to 
achieve a 100-percent zero-emission cargo harbor equipment fleet by 2030.  The program consists of four 
major components: construction of a fourth rack at the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 
(“LADWP”) power receiving station in Wilmington (thr “RS-Q”), and separate projects to construct 
distribution lines and other electrical infrastructure from the RS-Q to the Outer Harbor, West Basin, and 
Terminal Island.  Design and construction work is anticipated to be done by LADWP, in close coordination 
with POLA’s Engineering Division.  POLA expects to use [____] to fund project costs. [Timing for 
program?] 

Maritime [Services] Projects.  Following are summaries of certain of POLA’s major Maritime 
[Services] Projects. 

Harbor Administration Building - HVAC Replacement.  The project consists of the redesign and 
replacement of the heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (the “HVAC”) system at POLA’s 
administration building with an electric system in response to the City of Los Angeles policies and 
commitment for zero carbon in major renovation of buildings.  The total project budget is estimated at $14 
million and construction is expected to start in 2025, with project completion expected in [____].  POLA 
expects to use [____] to fund project costs. 

Environmental and Regulatory Matters 

Environmental Compliance.  POLA was the first port in the nation to have an Environmental 
Management Division.  POLA’s Environmental Management Division provides full environmental 
services related to water, soils and sediments, air and associated living resources, as well as environmental 
assessment documentation.  In 2003, POLA adopted an environmental policy, which calls for continuous 
environmental improvement and the implementation of pollution prevention measures.  POLA’s 
Environmental Management System meets the specifications of the International Organization for 
Standardization Standard 14001 for environmental management systems. 

POLA is required to comply with the provisions of a number of federal and state laws designed to 
protect or enhance the environment.  Environmental assessments are conducted in accordance with the 
federal National Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”) and the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”).  These two laws require consideration and disclosure of environmental impacts of development 
projects.  Other federal environmental laws applicable to POLA include the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act, which governs the treatment and disposal of certain substances; the Clean Water Act and 
the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuary Act, which govern the dumping of dredged materials; the 
Rivers and Harbors Act, which governs navigable waterways; and State and Federal Endangered Species 
Act.  Enforcement agencies include the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, the California Air Resource Board, the 
South Coast Air Quality Management District, and the California Department of Toxic Substances Control.  
POLA is also required to conform to provisions of a number of other State environmental and health safety 
laws. 

In addition to these laws and the implementing regulations, POLA has instituted additional 
programs and procedures to protect the environment, each of which are designed to, among other things, 
limit POLA’s liabilities.  In 2006, POLA and POLB established the Clean Air Action Plan (the “CAAP”).  
See “Clean Air Action Plan” below.  In 2010, POLA adopted its Water Resources Action Plan aimed at 
significantly reducing water pollution discharges from land, vessels and the watershed and removing 
contaminated sediments.  These programs are backed up by long-term monitoring of the applicable media. 

401/486



 B-16  
4888-1284-3665.2  

Clean Air Action Plan.  [Any other Updates?] In 2006, POLA, together with POLB, developed the 
CAAP with input from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the California Air Resources Board, 
and the South Coast Air Quality Management District.  The CAAP was updated and reauthorized in 2010 
and again in 2017.  The CAAP is POLA’s comprehensive plan to address air pollution emissions from port-
related sources and contains aggressive long-term goals through 2023 to reduce health risk, diesel 
particulate matter, nitrogen and sulfur oxides, and greenhouse gases.  Pursuant to the CAAP, POLA has 
undertaken several programs to lower air pollution levels at POLA.  Emission sources targeted by the CAAP 
include ships, trains, cargo handling equipment, harbor craft and heavy-duty trucks.  POLA’s voluntary 
Vessel Speed Reduction Program has been included as part of the CAAP and it has produced notable 
reductions in ship emissions as they approach and depart POLA.  The CAAP also includes a Technology 
Advancement Program that evaluates and demonstrates new and emerging emissions treatment 
technologies.  In 2008, the CAAP Clean Truck Program (the “Clean Truck Program”) was implemented, 
which essentially replaced older polluting trucks with newer clean trucks, thereby reducing truck emissions 
by over 90% at POLA and the surrounding communities.  According to the POLA Inventory of Air 
Emissions 2022, through implementation of the CAAP, since 2005, there has been an 88% reduction in 
diesel particulate matter, a 97% reduction in sulfur oxides, a 62% reduction in nitrogen oxides emissions, 
and a 4% reduction for greenhouse gases from Port-related sources.  The CAAP and its associated various 
measures have cost POLA over $[300] million to date.  As a result of continuing initiatives as well as zero-
emission truck and cargo-handling equipment goals outlined in the CAAP 2017 Update, the CAAP will 
continue to require a significant investment by POLA, POLB and private sector businesses to expedite the 
introduction of new and innovative methods of reducing emissions prior to any federal or State requirements 
being imposed on POLA and POLB.  Since April 1, 2022, POLA and POLB have charged a Clean Truck 
Fund (“CTF”) rate on all loaded containers entering/exiting POLA and POLB.  The purpose of the CTF 
rate is to generate funds to accelerate the deployment of clean trucks, in support of achieving the goal of 
zero-emission trucks by 2035.  The CTF rate is $10 per loaded 20-foot equivalent unit (TEU) or $20 for 
containers longer than 20 feet.  To date, the CTF rate has generated approximately $[__] million for POLA 
and POLB since implementation.  Zero-emissions trucks are permanently exempt from the CTF rate and 
certain trucks that are placed into service by a specified date and certain qualified low nitrogen oxides 
emissions trucks receive an exemption from the CTF rate through a specified date.  Collected CTF rates 
will be used to facilitate the purchase of zero-emission trucks and associated infrastructure that services 
POLA and POLB. 

[Discuss what disclosure POLA would prefer regarding ISR] 

Stevedoring and Cargo Handling 

Arranging for cargo handling services is the responsibility of each shipping line.  Cargo handling 
at POLA is provided pursuant to a contract between the Pacific Maritime Association (the “PMA”) and the 
International Longshore and Warehouse Union (“ILWU”).  The PMA represents most of the steamship 
lines, marine terminal operators, car loading bureaus and cargo companies on the Pacific Coast.  Most of 
the ILWU members work under contract with the PMA.  The current contract between the PMA and the 
ILWU was entered into on June 14, 2023 and was ratified on August 31, 2023, as a six year contract, 
retroactive to July 1, 2022. 

This agreement was reached after a contract negotiation process that took 13 months to complete, 
which included the ILWU membership working without a contract for nearly a year after their prior 
agreement expired on June 30, 2022. 

Since 2002, there have been two other periods of prolonged labor unrest which led to an interruption 
of the normal course of business at POLA.  In October 2002, after the PMA and the ILWU failed to 
negotiate a new contract, there was a lock out by the stevedoring companies, thereby shutting down all 

402/486



 B-17  
4888-1284-3665.2  

West Coast ports, including POLA, for ten days.  Work resumed when then-President Bush ordered the 
ports to re-open pursuant to the Taft Hartley Act.  Additionally, in November 2012, after the Harbor 
Employers Association (“HEA”) and ILWU Marine Clerks Association Local 63 Office Clerical Unit 
(“ILWU, Local 63 OCU”) failed to negotiate a new contract, the approximately 600 clerical workers 
represented by ILWU, Local 63 OCU walked off the job.  Although only about 450 clerical workers 
throughout both Ports participated in the strike, thousands of workers represented by a sister union refused 
to cross the picket lines.  As a result, 10 out of the 14 terminals at POLA and POLB were shut down for 
eight days.  Work resumed when the HEA and ILWU, Local 63 OCU reached a tentative agreement 
whereby ILWU, Local 63 OCU members received modest increases in wage and pension benefits, and the 
HEA promised to outsource no more than 14 jobs over a four-year period. 

Other than the periods of uncertainty with the contract negotiations which occurred in 2002, 2012, 
2014/15, [2022/23 - Discuss additional disclosure needed], there has generally been a history of cooperative 
working relationships between the ILWU and the employer groups represented by the PMA and HEA.  
Prolonged work slowdowns or stoppages, if they occur, could adversely affect POLA revenues and its 
ability to pay any Shortfall Advances.  POLA understands that the risk of a work slowdown is the greatest 
as negotiations get closer to the end of the current contract and until a new agreement is reached.  To that 
end, in 2017, POLA created a new division, Labor Relations & Workforce Development, focused on 
promoting greater coordination with the ILWU, PMA, POLA, and other labor partners.  The Labor 
Relations & Workforce Development was recently renamed the Labor Relations & Government Affairs 
division and such division continues to work closely with the ILWU, PMA, and all other labor unions and 
their employers that operate at POLA. 

San Pedro Bay Port’s Cooperative Working Agreement 

On February 27, 2015, the U.S. Federal Maritime Commission approved an amendment to a 
cooperative working agreement previously entered into by POLA and POLB.  The amendment allows the 
two ports to discuss and agree on projects and programs that address congestion issues (including, 
establishing initiatives to increase terminal productivity, facilitate chassis availability and usage, and 
improve drayage truck turn times), transportation infrastructure needs and the reduction of pollution caused 
by port-related activities. 

On April 23, 2015, POLA and POLB hosted a meeting of supply chain stakeholders to gather input, 
insights and solutions focused on improving the performance of the supply chain.  On May 27, 2015, POLA 
and POLB announced the creation of issue-specific working groups focusing on peak operations and 
terminal optimization to develop ways to strengthen the competitiveness of POLA and POLB. 

In 2021, in response to the supply chain congestion issues, POLA and POLB, under the cooperative 
working agreement, met to discuss ways to relieve congestion.  These meetings brought together POLA, 
POLB, marine terminal operators, railroads, shipping lines, organized labor, Biden-Harris Administration 
officials, and other stakeholders to work towards solving ongoing congestion.  The meetings began in 2021 
and ran through June 2022 and the dialogue and initiatives developed through the meetings helped to resolve 
the congestion issues experienced at POLA and POLB. 

Outstanding Indebtedness 

As of December [__], 2023, POLA had approximately $[___] million in parity debt outstanding, 
comprised of long-term revenue bonds.  The long-term revenue bonds mature on or before 2045 and bear 
interest at rates between 3.00% and 5.00% [Confirm].  POLA has established a Commercial Paper (“CP”) 
Program supported by bank credit lines to issue commercial paper notes to provide interim financing 
primarily for the construction, maintenance and replacement of POLA’s structures, facilities and equipment 

403/486



 B-18  
4888-1284-3665.2  

needs.  POLA is authorized to issue its CP notes from time to time for up to $375 million, so long as 
adequate liquidity support for the CP notes is in place, to finance a portion of its capital improvement 
program on a short-term basis.  POLA’s liquidity support for its CP program expired in August 2018 and 
was not subsequently renewed.  As a more economical alternative, in June 2019, POLA secured a revolving 
line of credit, in which it was able to issue and to have outstanding, from time to time, up to $150 million 
aggregate principal amount of its Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles Revenue Revolving 
Obligations.  However, such revolving line of credit was never utilized, expired in June 2022, and was not 
subsequently renewed.   

[POLA’s Parity Obligations [(as such term is defined in the front part of the Official Statement)/(as 
such term is defined below)] are special, limited obligations of POLA payable solely from revenues of 
POLA, which are generally derived from ownership and operation of POLA and which include shipping 
revenue, rental revenue and fees and royalty revenue.  Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power 
of the City of Los Angeles, the State of California or any political subdivision thereof is pledged to payment 
or principal of, premium, if any, or interest on POLA’s Parity Obligations.  POLA has no taxing power.  
POLA’s Parity Obligations are senior in payment to POLA’s obligation to make Shortfall Advances.] 
[Subject to update/removal] 

[“Revenues” means: (a) all money received or collected from or arising out of the use or operation 
of any harbor or port improvement, work, structure, appliance, facility or utility, service, or watercraft, 
owned, controlled or operated by the City of Los Angeles in or upon or pertaining to the lands and waters, 
or interests therein, of said City in the Harbor District (as defined in the Charter of the City of Los Angeles); 
all tolls, charges and rentals collected by POLA; and all compensations or fees required to be paid for 
franchises or licenses, or otherwise by law or ordinance or order, to the City of Los Angeles for the operation 
of any public service utility upon lands and waters, or interests therein, of the City of Los Angeles in the 
Harbor District; provided that for the avoidance of doubt user fees collected by POLA on behalf of, or 
required to be transmitted to, third parties pursuant to applicable law and not commingled with Revenues, 
will not be deemed to be Revenues; and (b) all interest or gain derived from the investment of amounts in 
any of the funds or accounts established under the Indenture (except interest and gain derived from the 
Rebate Fund).] [Subject to update/removal] 

[“Parity Obligations” means all revenue bonds, revolving obligations and related bank notes, or 
notes of POLA authorized, executed, issued and delivered by POLA, and all contracts of POLA authorized 
and executed by POLA, the payments of which are on a parity with each other, and which are secured by a 
pledge of and lien on the Revenues.] [Subject to update/removal] 

Audited Financial Statements 

The audited financial statements of POLA for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, and 
the report of the auditor dated December [__], 2023, are included below as Appendix B-1.  Moss Adams 
LLP, the independent auditor, has not been engaged to perform and has not performed, since the date of its 
report included herein, any procedures on the financial statements of POLA addressed in that report.  Moss 
Adams LLP also has not performed any procedures relating to POLA’s information included in this Official 
Statement. 

404/486



 

 B-1-1  
4888-1284-3665.2  

APPENDIX B-1 
 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
PORT OF LOS ANGELES 

(HARBOR DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES) 
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022  

 

405/486



Separator Page

12. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL 

AGREEMENT WITH AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, 

INC. FOR THE ENGINEERING AND ARCHITECTURAL 

SERVICES FOR THE PORT OF LOS ANGELES AND 

PORT OF LONG BEACH GOODS MOVEMENT TRAINING 

FACILITY

406/486



407/486



408/486



409/486



410/486



For

411/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 1

412/486



Transmittal No. 1
413/486



Transmittal No. 1
414/486



Transmittal No. 1
415/486



Transmittal No. 1
416/486



Transmittal No. 1
417/486



Transmittal No. 1
418/486



Transmittal No. 1
419/486



Transmittal No. 1
420/486



Transmittal No. 1
421/486



Transmittal No. 1
422/486



Transmittal No. 1
423/486



Transmittal No. 1
424/486



Transmittal No. 1
425/486



Transmittal No. 1
426/486



Transmittal No. 1
427/486



Transmittal No. 1
428/486



Transmittal No. 1
429/486



Transmittal No. 1
430/486



Transmittal No. 1
431/486



Transmittal No. 1
432/486



Transmittal No. 1
433/486



Transmittal No. 1
434/486



Transmittal No. 1
435/486



Transmittal No. 1
436/486



Transmittal No. 1
437/486



Transmittal No. 1
438/486



Transmittal No. 1
439/486



Transmittal No. 1
440/486



Transmittal No. 1
441/486



Transmittal No. 1
442/486



Transmittal No. 1
443/486



Transmittal No. 1
444/486



Transmittal No. 1
445/486



Transmittal No. 1
446/486



Transmittal No. 1
447/486



Transmittal No. 1
448/486



Transmittal No. 1
449/486



Transmittal No. 1
450/486



Transmittal No. 1
451/486



Transmittal No. 1
452/486



Transmittal No. 1
453/486



Transmittal No. 1
454/486



Transmittal No. 1
455/486



Transmittal No. 1
456/486



Transmittal No. 1
457/486



Transmittal No. 1
458/486



Transmittal No. 1
459/486



Transmittal No. 1
460/486



Transmittal No. 1
461/486



Transmittal No. 1
462/486



Transmittal No. 1
463/486



Transmittal No. 1
464/486



Transmittal No. 1
465/486



Transmittal No. 1
466/486



Transmittal No. 1
467/486



Transmittal No. 1
468/486



Transmittal No. 1
469/486



Transmittal No. 1
470/486



Transmittal No. 1
471/486



Transmittal No. 1
472/486



Transmittal No. 1
473/486



Transmittal No. 1
474/486



Transmittal No. 1
475/486



Transmittal No. 1
476/486



Transmittal No. 1
477/486



Transmittal No. 1
478/486



Transmittal No. 1
479/486



Transmittal No. 1
480/486



Transmittal No. 1
481/486



Transmittal No. 1
482/486



Transmittal No. 1
483/486



Transmittal No. 1
484/486



Separator Page

Transmittal 2

485/486



Criteria for Evaluation:
(A) Firm Qualifications, Experience and References, (B) Project Organization, Personnel and Staffing, (C) Project Approach, Work Plan, Management and Timeline,
(D) Rates, Fees, and Budget Control, (E) Clarity and Comprehensiveness of the Proposal

AECOM Consultant Team #2 Consultant Team #3 Consultant Team #4 Consultant Team #5

Rater 1 96 88 92 80 76
Rater 2 92 88 83 84 81

Rater 3 96 93 84 92 84

Rater 4 96 84 68 68 60

Rater 5 96 91 92 73 76

 Average 95 89 84 79 75

LBE Preference 8 8 8 8 3

Total 103 97 92 87 78

RANK 1 2 3 4 5

Engineering and Architectural Services for POLA and POLB Goods Movement Training Facility
Final Evaluation Summary

Transmittal No. 2
486/486


	11.29.23 Special Agenda
	1(b)  RESOLUTION NO.____________ - ISSUANCE OF A NON-APPEALABLE LEVEL II COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT (NO. 23-03) TO APM TERMINALS PACIFIC LTD. FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF THREE CONTAINER CRANES AT PIER 400
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2
	Transmittal 3
	2. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEGAL SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. 21-9809 WITH THOMPSON COBURN LLP FOR FEDERAL CLEAN AIR ACT MATTERS
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2
	3. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT NO. 12- 3049 BETWEEN THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES HARBOR DEPARTMENT AND THE CITY OF LONG BEACH HARBOR DEPARTMENT TO HOST AND MAINTAIN THE PORTS&apos; DRAYAGE TRUCK REGISTRY
	Transmittal 1
	4. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVE REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-11 WITH LOS ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2
	5. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVE REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-12 WITH LOS ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2
	6. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL OF REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-10 WITH HARBOR BREEZE CORPORATION
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2
	7. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL OF REVOCABLE LICENSE NO. 2023-09 WITH ODYSSEY YACHT CHARTER, LLC
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2
	8.  RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - COMMUNITY INVESTMENT GRANTS FOR INTERNATIONAL TRADE EDUCATION PROGRAMS, INC. DBA EXP AND LOS ANGELES MARITIME INSTITUTE
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2
	Transmittal 3
	Transmittal 4
	9. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - AWARD AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT. CONTRACTOR_ SKANSKA USA CIVIL WEST CALIFORNIA DISTRICT INC. STATE ROUTE 47(SR-47)_VINCENT THOMAS BRIDGE AND FRONT STREET_HARBOR BOULEVARD INTERCHANGE RECONFIGURATION. SPECIFICATION NO. 2816
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2
	Transmittal 3
	10. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL OF A COST SHARE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES HARBOR DEPARTMENT AND THE PORT OF LONG BEACH TO FUND A TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT WITH PACIFIC HARBOR LINE, INC.
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2
	11. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE BY THE ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF ITS ALAMEDA CORRIDOR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY SENIOR LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS AND_OR SUBORDINATE LIEN REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS AND AUTHORIZING SUCH OTHER ACTIONS AS ARE NECESSARY TO ASSIST THE AUTHORITY IN THE ISSUANCE OF SUCH REFUNDING BONDS AND MAKING A DETERMINATION RELATING THERETO
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2
	Transmittal 3
	Transmittal 4
	12. RESOLUTION NO. ____________ - APPROVAL AGREEMENT WITH AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. FOR THE ENGINEERING AND ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR THE PORT OF LOS ANGELES AND PORT OF LONG BEACH GOODS MOVEMENT TRAINING FACILITY
	Transmittal 1
	Transmittal 2

